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BRIEF PROFITE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Dilip Suryavanshi: Non-Executive Director

He holds a master's degree in Civil Engineering from the University of labalpur; He has over 40 years of
experience ill the business of construction. He has been a Director of the Company since incorporation. He

was the President ofthe Madhya Pradesh Buiiders Association.

2. Satish Chandra Pandey -Non Executive lndependent Director

He holds bachelor's degree in Civil Engineering from Government College of Engineering and Technolos/,

Raipur. He is a retired government servant and was the Vice President of lndian Road Congress. He has

previously worked as Engineer-in-Chief and Secretary with the Public Work Department, Government of
Madhya Pradesh. During his 38 years ofexperience and career in the Public Works Department, his credit of

supewising malor roads, bridges and building works, including Indore bypass, a proiect of World Bank

3 AshwiniVerma - Non Executive lndependent Director

He holds a bachelor's degree in civil Engineering from Raiiv Gandhi Proudyogiki vishwavidyalaya, Bhopal. He

has over 31 years of experience in architectural and site engineerin8 services. He is a partner of M/s. AV &

Associates, He has preyiously worked in various capacities in M/s. Gawali & Associates, Architects and

Engineers, M/s. Waseem & Associates, M/s, Pradeep K Saxena & Associates and Harekrishna Colonisers

Private Limited.

4 Pooia lvlaheshwari - Non Ilxecutive Independent Directol'

She holds Master's degree in Commerce from Barkatullah University, Bhopal. She also holds the degree of

Masters of Business Administrations from Barkatullah University, Bhopal. She has 7 years of experience in the

field ofconsultancy in financing and recovery in t}le Banking Sector-
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Tel No. - +9122 49186000
Email id : amitdabhade@linkintime,co.in
Website : www.linkintime.co.in



DBt INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(ctN- u74110MP2010PTC023673)

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 13s Annual General Meeting of tle Members of DBL Infra Assets Private Llmited [ClN:
U74110M P2010PtC0236731 will be held at the Registered 0ffice of the Company situated at Plot No.5, lnside Govind Narayan

Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal '462016 [M.P.) on Monday, September 18, 2023 at 10.00 am to transact the
following Businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Standalone & Consolidated financial statements includinS the balance sheet and

statement for change in the equity, profit and loss and cash flow of the Company for tle financial year ended March 31,2023,
together with the reporB ofthe board of directors and auditor5 thereoni

2. To re-appoint Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi (DlN: 000399441 as a director, who retires by rotation and being eligible, ofrer himself for

the re-appointmenL

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Item No.3

To conslder and approve the limit of Rs. 4195 crores under section 185, 186 and other appltcable provislons of
Companles Act, 2013 for providing loans/guarantee/seqtrities to the Subsldiaries Companies/Associates

Companles/Private Companies/Jvs for the financial year 2023'24.

To consider and ifthought fil to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Speclal Resoludon:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions ofsection 185, 186 and other applicable provisions ofthe Companies Act. 2013.

read witlr the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and subject to all otier applicable Prcvisions of tlte

Companies Act, 20i3, if any, (incl;ding any statutory modification or re-enactment tlereof for tle time being in forceJ and the

provisions of the SE8 t ( Lisiing obligatio ns and D isclosu res Requirements) Regulatio ns, 2 015, the consent of the members be

and is hereby accorded by the Board of Directors ofthe Company, to give unsecured loans, advances and to provide guarantee or

security to a;y ofSubsidiary Companies and/orAssociate Companies [whether public or private company) and/ or roint Venture

and/ oiTrust and/ or sody Corporate(sl for providing Loans (whether funded or non-funded] by any Bank, Financial Institution,

NBiC, Company or o0rer body corporate(sl for providing financial support as per the requirement ofthe lenders/ Government

authorities and business necessity not exceeding to Rs. 4195 crores [Rupees Four Thousand One Hundred Ninety Five Crores

Onlyl in one or more tranches a;d the said loary' guarantee/security given by the Company shall be utilized for the Principal
business activities of tie recipient company(ies).

The details ofthe limits are as under:

Limit
(in
Crore
s

90

150

100
75
BO

100

BO

90

150

Name of Companies Purpose of
giving loan

Rate of Interest

1 Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways
Private Limited

Associate To meet the
routine/
principal
business
activities of
the Company

Interest will be
charged as per tle
provision of
section 186 of the
Companies Act,
2013, ifapplicable,
as amended from
time to time

2 Narenpur Purnea Highways Private
Limited

Associate

3 ReDallewada Highways Limited Associate

4 Dhrol Bhadra Highways Limited Associate

5 Pathrapali-Kathghora
Private Limited

Highways Associate

Bhopal Redevelopment Realty
Private Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary
of the Holding Company

7 Bangalore Malur Highways Limited Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holding Company

B Malur Bangarpet Highways Limited Wholly owned subsidiary
of the Holding Company

9 DBL Poondiyankuppam Highways
Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary
of the Holding Company

DBL Viluppuram Highways Limited Wholly owned subsidiary
of the Holdi Com n

100

s.
No

Status

6

10



12 DBL-Siarmal Coal Mines Private
Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary of
the Holding Company

370

13 DBL lnfia Tech Private Limited Wholly owned subsidiary of
the Holding Company

500

14 Bangarupalem Gudipala Highways
Limit€d

Wholly owned subsidiary of
the Holdins ComDanv

BO

15 Raipur-Visakhapatnam-CG-2
Highways Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary of
the Holding ComDany

150

16 Karimnagar Warangal Highways
Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary of
the Holdinq Company

200

Maradgi S Andola-Baswantpur
Highways Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary of
the Holding Company

200

1B Mehagama Hansdiha Highways
Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary of
the Holdinc ComDanv

120

19 Urga Pathalgaon Highways Limited Wholly owned subsidiary of
the Holdins Company

250

20 Bengaluru-Vijayawada
Expressway Package-1 Limited

Whoiiy owned subsidiary of
the Holdinq Company

150

Bengaluru-Vijayawada
Expressway Packaqe-4 Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary of
the Holdins ComDanv

150

22 Bengaluru-Vijayawada
Expressway Package-7 Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary of
the Holding Company

725

23 DBL Pachhwara Coal Mine Private
Limited

Subsidiary of the Holding
Company

50

24 Wholly owned subsidiary of
the Holding Company

20

25 Ialpa Devi Engineering Private
I-imited

Wholly owned subsidiary of
the Holding Company

75

26 DBL Transmission Private Limited Wholly owned subsidiary of
the Holding Company

20

Subsidiary of the Holding
Company

27 DBL-VPR Mining Private Limited 20

2A Infradevelopers PrivateDBL
Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary of
the Holding Company

50

29 DBL lniia Venture Private Limited Wholly owned subsidiary of
the Holding Company

200

35030 Other Companies (unidentifed
companies/not yet incorporated
/through acquisition companies or
otherwise)

Total 4195

11 Sannur Bikarnakette
Limited

Highways Wholly owned subsidiary of r 00
the Holdin Com n

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Eoard ofDiredors ofthe Company be and is hereby autlorized to do allsuch acts deeds, matters,
and things, in its absolute discretion, as may be considered necessary, expedient or desirable and to settle any question or doubt
that may arise in relation thereto in order to give effect to the foregoing resolution or otherwise considered by the Board of
Directors in the interest ofthe Company."

By Order of the Board of Dlrectors of
DBL Itrfta Assets Private Ltmit€d

sd/-
Pra$/a Raghuwanshi

Company Secretary & Compliance Oflicer
CIN: U74110MPZ01oPT C02367 3
Regd. Office: Plot No. S,Inside Govind Narayan
Sirgh Gate Chuna Bhatti,
Kolar Road Bhopal, MP-,+62016

Place: Bhopal
Datet 22,08.2023

17

21

Deevin Seismic Systems Private
Limited
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DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes:

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY, TO ATTEND AND
VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THAT A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A PERSON CAN

ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING 50 AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN
1O% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. IN CASE A PROXY IS PROPOSED TO
BEAPPOINTED BYA MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN 100/6 OFTHE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OFTHE COMPANY CARRYING

VOTING RIGHTS,THEN, SUCH PROXYSHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER. Proxies

in order to be effective must be received at the Company's registered office at Plot No. 5, Inside Covind Narayan Singh Cate,

Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal (M.P) 462016, not Iess than 48 hours before the commencement ofthe AGM.

b. The information required to be provided under the Secretarial Standards on Ceneral Meetings, regarding tle Directors whose

re-appointment is proposed, the relevant lnformation in respect ofthe business under item No.2 has been annexed separately
in A!nexure A.

ln terms ofS€ction 152 ofthe Act, Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi (DlN: 00039944) Director, retire by rotation atthe Meetingand being

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment The Board of Directors ofthe Company commends his re'appointment

d. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send the
Company, a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the

Meeting

e. MeDbers/proxies are requestd to bring their attendance slip duly completed along with their copy of Annual Report to the

MeetinS.

f. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send to the

Company a certified copy of tie Board Resolution authorizing tieir representative to attend and vote on their behalfat the

Meeting

g. ln case ofloint holders attending the Meeting only such ioint holder which is higher in the order of names will be entitled to

vote.

h. The documents referred to in tle proposed resolutions and explanatory statement are open for inspection at the Corporate

ofnce ofthe company during working hours except on holidays.

i. The Director's Report, Auditoy's Reportand Audited Balance Sheetas at March 31,2023 and the Pro6t and Loss Account& cash

flow statement for the period ended on tiat date are enclosd.

j. Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of Companies Act,

20i3 and Register of Contracts or arangements in which directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the

Companies Act 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at tie AnnualCeneral Meeting.

k. The details Company's Registrar &Transfer Agent [RTA) is as under:'

Name ofRTA:
Address:
TelNo.
E-mail:
Website

Link lntime India Private Limited
c-101,247 Park L.B.S MarE, vikhroli (westl, Mumbai, Maharashtra- 400083
+9122 49186000
amitdabhade@linkintime.co.in
www.linkintime.co.in

l. Members who have not registered / updated their e-mail addresses with RTA, if shares are held in physical mode or with their

Dps, ifshares are held in ;le.tronic mode, are requested to do so for receiving all future communicatrons from the Company

including Annual Reports, Notices, Circulars, etc., electronically.

m. pursuant to Section 125 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not having any unclaimed or unpaid dividends liable to

be Eansfered to the lnvestors Education and Protection Fund

n. Members holding shares in elecEonic mode are requested to intimate any change in their address or bank mandates to their

Depository Partiiipants (DPs] with whom tley are rnaintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical

mode are requested to advise any change in theiraddress or bank mandates to the Company / RTA-

o. Memberc are requested to notify any change in their address to the Company immediately.

Regd, Omce Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal - 462016
Ph.No. 0755-4029999, Far 0755-402999B E-Matl: dblinfraassets@gmail com

(cfN. u74110M P2 0loPTCO23673)



p.

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(crN- u74r 10 M P 2 010 PT C02367 3l

Member desirous of seeking any information on the accounts or operations of the Company is requested to forward hisAer
query in writing to the Company atleast 48 hours prior to the Meetin& so that the required information can be made available
at the Meetin&

The rclevant explanatory statement pursuant to Sectjon 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect ofspecial business as set
out above is annexed hereto.

A route map showing directions to reach tle venue ofthe 136 Annual ceneral Meeting is given at the end ofthis Notice as per
the requirement ofthe ofthe Secretarial Standards-2 on "General Meetjngs".

q.

By Order ofthe Board ofDirectors of
DBL Infra Assets Prlvate Limited

sd/-
PraSya Raghuwanshi

Company Secretary & Compliance Omcer

CIN: U74110MP2010PTC023673
Regd. Office: Plot No. S,Inside covind Narayan
Sirgh Gate Chuna thatti,
Kolar Road Bhopal, MP-,{62016

Place: Bhopal
Date| 22.08.2023

Re8d. Of8ce Plot No. 5, lnside covind Narayan Singh Cate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal - 462016
Ph.No. 0755-4029999, F a* 07 55- 4029998 E-Mail: dblinfraassets@gmail.com

r.



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(crN- u 741 10 M P2 010 PTC02367 3)

Annexure ofto the notlce ofA[nualceneral Meeting
IExplanatory Statement pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item No.3

The details of limits are as under:

s.
No

Status Purpose of
giving loan

Rate oflnterest Limit
(in
Crore
s)

1 Dodaballapur Hoskote
Hishways Private Limited

Associate To meet the
routine/
principal
business
activities of
the Company

lnterest will be
charged as per
the provision of
section 186 of
the Companies
Act, 2013, if
applicable, as

amended from
time to time

90

2 Narenpur Purnea Highways
Private Limited

Associate

3 Repallewada
Limited

100

4 Dhrol
Limited

Bhadra Highways Associate 75

5 Pathrapali-Kathghora
Highways Private Limited

Associate BO

6 Bhopal Redevelopment Realty
Private Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holding Company

100

Bangalore Malur Highways
Limited

wholly owned subsidiary
of the Holding Company

B()

B Malur
Limited

Bangarpet Highways Wholly owned subsidiary
of the Holding Company

90

9 DBL Poondiyankuppam
Hishways Limited

wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holding Company

150

10 DBL Viluppuram Highways
Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holding Company

11 Sannur Bikarnakefte
Highways Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holding Company

DBL-Siarmal Coal
Private Limited

M ines Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holdins ComDany

370

13 DBL lnfra Tech
Limited

Private Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holding Company

500

Regd. Omce: Plot No. 5, lnside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal - 4620L6
Ph.No. 0755-4029999, Fax: 0755-4029998 8-Mail: dblinfraassets@gmail.com

The Board has considered that in the ordinary course of business, the Company is required to give toans and
provide guarantee and securities on behalf of the Subsidiary Companies and/or Associate Companies (whether
public or private company) and/ or loint Venture and/ or Trust and/ or Body Corporate(s) while providing
financial support/Loans as per t]le requirement of t}le lenders/Government authorities and business necessity
from time to time. The Board has considered thatthe Companies (Amendment Act), 2017, the Central Government
has substituted the section 185 and according to tlat, now the Company is eligible to give loans and provide
guarantee or security on behalf of the other Companies to the Bank and Financial lnstitutions, etc. where any or
all the directors are interested, subiect to the requirement for approval of the members by way of special
resolution and that the amount of loans, guarantee and securities should be utilised by such Companies for their
principal business activities. Hence, in order to conduct the smooth operations ofthe business and align with the
various legislations, policies, guidelines laid down by various statutory authorities/lenders and other operational
business requirements of the Subsidiary Companies and/or Associate Companies (whether public or private
company) and/ or loint Venture and/ or Trust and/ or Body Corporate(s) for providing Loans (whether funded or
non-funded) by any Bank, Financial lnshtution, NBFC, Company or other body corporate(s), on the basis of
recommendation ofAudit Committee, the Board of Directors ofthe Company has proposed to obtain approval of
the shareholders by way of special resolution as contained in the notice of tie Annual General Meeting for an
amount of Rs. 4195 crores [Rupees Four Thousand One Hundred Ninety Five Crores 0nlyJ in one or more tranches
at any time and the said loan/ guarantee/any security given by the Company shall be utilized for the principal
business activities of the recipient Company(ies).

Name ofCompanies

150

Highways Associate

7

100

100

12



15 Raipur-Visakhapatnam-CG-2
Highways Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holding Company

150

16 Karimnagar Warangal Highways
Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holding Company

200

L7 Maradgi S Andola-Baswantpur
Highways Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holding Company

200

1B Mehagama Hansdiha Highways
Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holdins Company

120

19 Urga Pathalgaon Highways Limited Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holding Company

250

20 Bengaluru-Viiayawada
Expressway Package-1 Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holding Company

150

15021 Bengaluru-Vijayawada
Expressway Package-4 Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holding Company

22 Bengaluru-Vijayawada
ExDresswav Package-7 Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe HoldinE Company

725

23 DBL Pachhwara Coal Mine Private
Limited

Subsidiary of the Holding
ComDany

50

20Deevin Seismic Systems Private
Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holding Company
Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holding Company

7525 ,alpa Devi Engineering Private
Limited

2026 DBL Transmission Private Limited Wholly owned subsidiary
of the Holding Company

20DBL-VPR Mining Private Limited Subsidiary of the Holding
Company

5028 PrivateDBL Infradevelopers
Limited

wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holding Company

200Wholly owned subsidiary
ofthe Holding Company

29

350OtIer Companies (unidentified
companies/not yet incorporated
/through acquisition companies or
otherwise)

30

419 5Total

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(crN- u74l t 0 tr.r P2 01 0 pT co23 67 3l

14 Bangarupalem Gudipala Highways
Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary BO

of the Holdi Com an

The Board recommends as a Special Resolu$on set forth in ltem No. 3 of the accompanying Notice for the approval of tle
Members.

None ofthe Directors, Key Managerial Personnel ofthe Company or their relatives or any of other ofiicial(sJ of the Company are

financially interested in the aforesaid resolution, however they may be deemed to be interested 6nancially or othenvise to the
extent oftheir directorship or the shareholding by them in such Companies, ifany.

Regd, Omce: Plot No. 5, lnside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, BhoPal - 462076
Ph.No. 0755'4029999, Fax: 0755-4029998 E'Mail: dblinfraassets@gmail com
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DBL Infra Venture Private Limited



(ANNEXURE A TO NOTICE DATED AUGUST 22, 2023]
Detalls ofDirectors SeeHng Appoinunent/Re-Appointmetrt/variadon of the terms ofremuneration atthe forthcoming

Annual Getreral Meedng
IPuruuant to Secretarial standard 2 on Ceneral Meeting)

Name ofDirector Dilip Suryavanshi

DIN 00039944

Date of Birth and age 12.10 .1956, [66 years]

Date ofAppointsnent on the Board 31.05.2010

Craduate (8.8.-Civill

Experience and Expertise He holds a master's degree in Civil Engineering from the University oflabalpur; He has
over 40 years ofexperience in the business of construction. He has been a Director of
the Companysince incorporation. Hewas the Presidentofthe Madhya Pradesh Builders
Association.

Directorships held in other public
companies and private companies
(excluding foreign companies.

Directorshin in Listed Comnanies:

1. Dilip Buildcon Limited

Directorship in other Unlisted public Companies:

1. DBL Chandikhole Bhadrak Highways Limited

1. Kymore lron ore A/t Ltd
2. Suryavanshi Minerals Private Limited
3. DNN Media Communication Private Limited
4. Acquilla Properties Private Limited
5. DBL Infi'adevelopers Private Limited

Metnberships/Chairmanships of
committees across all comPanies

He is the Chairman & member of the followin, committee in followine
commiftees of the ComPanies:

Natur€ ofCommlttee

I Dilip
Buildcon
Limited

Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee

Stakeholder's Relationship Commift ee Member

Risk Management Committee Chairman

Business Development and
Administration Committee

Chairman

Lending and lnvestment Committee Chairman

Enquiry Committee for leak of
Unpublished Price Sensitive information

Member

2 DBL Infia
fusets
Private
Limited

Audit Committee
Member

Nomination and remuneration committee
Member

Stakeholder's Relationship Committee
Chairman

Risk Management Committee
Chairman

Enquiry committee of UPSI
I\4ember

Number of Meetings attended
during the year

11 of 11

10

Qualifications

Directorshin in other Private ComDanies:

Member

No. of Equity Shares held in the
Company



Disclosures of relationship b€tween
Diredors inter-sa

Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi is not related to any other Director ofthe Company

Terms and Conditions of appointment
or re-appointment along with details
ofremuneration souSht to be paid and
remuneration last drawn by such
person

Details regarding terms and condition ofappointment are given in item No. 3 as set
out in the notice ofAGM.

By Order ofthe Board ofDirectors of
DBI- Infra AsseLs Private Limited

sd/-
Pragya Raghuwanshi
Company Secretary

CIN: U74110MP2010Plt C023673
Regd. Omce: Plot No. 5,lnslde Govird Narayan
Stngh Gate Chuna Bhatti,
Kolar Road Bhopal, MP-,162016
Place: thopal
Datet 22,08.2023



DBL IN]RA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
CINr U74110MP2010Y[ C023673

Regd. Omce: Plot No. 5, lnside covind Narayan Singh Cate, Chuna Bhafti, Kolar Road, Bhopal462 016, Madhya pradesh

Tel No.i +91 755'4029999
Website: wwwdbiapl.com, Email ld: dblin fraassets@gmail.com

,r*oninffnTllnlfilT'J,.',no
(PLEASE FILL ATTENDENCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRT{NCE OF THE MEETING HALL)

Registered Folio No. / DP ID No./Client ID No
Name and Address of the Member(s)

Joirt Holder 1

,olDt Holder 2

No. ofshares held

l/We hereby record my/our presence atthe l3dAnnual CeneralMeeting ofthe Companyheld at Plot No.5, Inside Covind Narayan
Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, l(olar Road, Bhopal (M.P) 462076 on Monday, September 18,2023 at 10.00 a.m., Bhopal, Madhya
Pradesh.

Member's/Proxy's name in Block Letters Member's/Proxy's Signature

Note:

. Please read the instrudions mentioned in the notes ofNotice of13tn AnnualGeneral Meeting dated August 22,2023.

. only Member/Prorrycan attend the Meeting. No minors would be allowed atthe Meeting

. Member / Prory wishing to attend the Meeting must bring tlis attendance slip to the meeting and handover at the entrance, duly
filled in and signed.

. loint shareholders may obtain addidonat Slip at the venue oftle meeting.



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
ClNf U74110MP2010PI COZ367 3
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PROXY FORf,I

(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) ofthe Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules,2014l

ctN u7 41t0MP201oPT CO2367 3

Name ofthe company DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
ReEistered office Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, thopal 462 016,

Madhya Pradesh

Name of the Memberfs :

Registered Address :

E-mail lD
DP ID: ............................................

I/We, beingthe member (sl of...
.... Folio No./ Client lD:

shares ofthe above'named company, hereby appoint

1

2

Name : ..,.,

Address :

Email ld :

Signature : ................................-............, or failing him^er
Name: ...............-............................

Address:
Email ld :

Signature:............................................., or failing himAer

as my/our proxy to attend and vote [on a poll) for me/us and on my/ourbehalfat the 13t' AnnualCeneral Meetingofthe Company
tobeheldat Plot No. 5, Inside Covind Narayan Singh Cate, Chuna Bhatti, KolarRoad, Ehopal462 016, Madhya Pradesh on Monday.
September 18, 2023 at 10.00 a.m. and at any adiournment thereofin respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Sr. No. RESOLUTIONS
Ordinary Business:

1 Ordltrary Resolutior!:
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone & Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023 and
Statement of Pro6t and Loss for theyearended on that datealongwiti the Cash Flow Statementand notes forming
Dart ofaccounts tosetherwith the ReDorts ofDirectors'and the Auditors'thereon.

2 Ordinary Resolution:

To Re'appoint Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi (DlN: 00039944], who retires by rotation, as Director, who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment

3

To consider and approve the limit of Rs. 4195 crores under sedion 185, 186 and other applicable provisions of
Companies Act,2013 for providing loans/guarantee/securities to the Subsidiaries Companies/Associates
Companies/Private Companies/Jvs for the financial year 2023-24.

Signed this ............day of .................2023
Signature ofmembers
Signature of Prory holders (s).................
Reference Folio No. / DP lD & Client lD..
No. of shares ...............
Note:

Affix
Revenue
Stamp Rs

1. The Prorry form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office ofthe Company not less
than 48 hours before tle commencement of tle Meeting.

2. A Prory need not be a memberofthe Company

3. Pursuant to the provisions ofSection 105 ofCompanies Act,2013, a person can act as a pror.J on behalfofmembers not exceeding
fifty and holding in the agSregate not more than 1096 of the total share capital ofthe Company carrying voting rights. A member
holding more than 1096 ofthe total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and
such person shallnot act asa proxy forany other person or shareholder.

4. For Resolutions, Notes, please refer to tie Notice of 13th Annual Ceneral Meeting.

Spe.ialResolution:
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Form McT-l2
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lPursuant to section 109(5) oft]e Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1)(c) of the Companies [Management and Adminisftation)
Rules,2014l

crN u741 10MP2010PTC023673
Name ofthe Company DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered omce Plot No.5, Inside Covind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna thatti, Kolar

Road, Bhopal462 016, Madhya Pradesh
POLLING PAPER

Name ofthe Shareholder (s) [in block letters)

Name ofthe loint holder (s), ifany

Postaladdress
Class ofshares Equity

Number ofshares held

Registered Folio No/Client ld

DP It)

I/We hereby exercise my/ our vote in respect of the Ordinary/ Special Resolution enumerated below, by conveying my/our
assent or dissentto the Resolutions by placinga tick (JJ mark at the appropriate box:

Ite
m
No

Item Details No. of
shares
held by
me

I assent
to the
Resolutio
n

I dissent
from the
Resoluti
on

Ordinary Business
1 ordlnary Resoludon:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone & Consolidated
Balance sheetas at 31st March.2023 and Statement of Proft and Loss for
tle yearended on that date alongwith the Cash Flow Statementand notes
forming part ofaccounts together witl the Reports of Director's and tle
Auditors thereon.

2 Ordtnary Resoludon:
To Re-appoint Mr. Dilip suryavanshi [DlN: 00039944), who retires by
rotation, as Director, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment

3 speclal Resoludon:
To consider and approve the limit ofRs.4195 crores under section 185,

186 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for
providing loans/guarantee/securities to the Subsidiaries
companies/Associates Companies/Private Companies/Jvs for tle
lnan ial year 2023-24.

Date:
(Sl8nature ot Shareholder)
Place:
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DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED

BOARD'S REPORT

To,
The Members,
DBL Infra Assets Private Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their l3LhAnnual Report on the business and operations ofthe Company and
the IndAS Financial Statements ofthe Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 is as under:
.in Lakhs

DBL InfTa Assets Private Limited (DIAPL) is involved in the business ofinfrastructure facility.

During the financial year 2022-23, the tol.al income stand at Rs, 1163.06 Lakhs. However, the Company has incurred
Net Loss after tax amounting to Rs. 6059.45 Lakhs. Your directors are hopeful for the bright future ofthe company in
the years to come.

DIVIDEND

Particulars
Year ended 31$
March,2023

Year
3lsl
2022

ended
March,

Year
31.t
2023

ended
March,

Year
31.t
2022

elrded
March,

Standalone Consolidated

Total Income 1163.06 442.84 5707.51 11,3 1 1.51
Totalexpenses 10811.53 6038.39 1s833.36 19,562.1.2

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items
and tax

(e648.47) (5 s9 s.s s) (8,2 s0.61)

Exceptional items 3 5B7,BB

Profit / (loss) before tax (6060.s8) (sses.ss) 1391.86 (8,2 s0.51)
Tax expense

CLrrrenr tr\ [0.04] 0.04 (0.04J 0.04
Deferred tax [1.08] 88,85 (Be.e2)

Profit/(Loss) for the year from
continuing operations

(60se.46) (sses.se) (B,r60.72')

Other comprehensive income
B (i) item that will be reclassified to profit
or loss

Iii) Income tax relating to items that will be
reclassifibd to profit or loss

Share of Profit (Loss) ofAssociates

3301.25

[830.86)

(s730.24)

Total Comprehensive lncome for
period [Comprising Profit (Loss)
other Comprehensive lncome for
period)

the
and
the

(60s9.46) (ss9s.s9) ( 19 s6.80) (15,612.+7)

Earning per equity shares
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

(302.e7)

t302.971

(279.78)
(27e.7 8)

ln view oflosses incurred during the year, your directors did not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended
31st March, 2023

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY'S WORKING DURING THE YEAR

(1012 s.86)

tt5t7.7?

1303.05

(7 ,4sr.7 4)

(227.36)
(221.36)

(180.62)
(7 80.62)



CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY

Equity

During the period under review, there has been no change in the Capital structure of the Company. Authorized
Capital ofthe Company is Rs.2,00,00,000 (Two Crores only) ranking paripassu with rhe existing equity shares.

As on March 31, 2023, none oft}te directors ofthe Company hold arty instrument convertible into equity shares of
the Company.

Status ofShares in D-mat Form

As on March 31, 2023, the Company has 2000000 paid up equity shares. The details of the dematerialised and
physical shares are as under:

Sr. No lcapital Details No. ofshares o/o ofTotal issued Capital
1

lHeld 
in dematerialised form in NSDL 2000000 100

2
lPhysical

0.0 0 0.00

Total 2000000 100.00

Debentures

Subsequent to the Voluntary Face value Redemption, the Company has 7027 existing Non-Convertible Debentures
of face value of Rs. 9,61,576/- each a*$egating to a total of k.6,75,69,94,552/-.

Further as per SEBI circular: SEBI/HO/MIRSD/CRADT/CIR/P/2020 /207 dated Odober 22, 2020, your Company
has deposited Rs. 7,02,700/ - (Rupees Seven Lakhs Two Thousand Seven Hundred only) in favour of BSE Limited
for Recovery Expense Fund.

Reserves

Due to loss, the Company has neither created nor transferred any amouot to Debenture Redemption Reserve as
per Section 71(4) ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

The details relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V ofthe Act-

(a) accepted during the year: NIL
(bJ remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end ofthe year: NIL
(c) whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year
and if so, number olsuch cases and the total amount involved: NIL

GENERAL DISCLOSURES

During the year under review, the Company has notentered into any transactions which covered under the following
provisions and no disclosure or reporting is required:

(iJ As per rule 4(4) ofthe Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,2014, the Company has not issued
equity shares with differential ri8hti as to dividend, voting or otherwise:

(ii) Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of tle Act and rules made there under

During the period under review, the Company has done Voluntary Redemption on November 29,2022 of fhe
following non-convertible debentures (in line with the Debentures Trust Deed dated August 23, 2021 entered into
between DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited and Axis Trustee Service Limited) ("NCDs") which were issued and
allott€d on a private placement basis and listed with BSE Limited. The Company has done face value Redemption
ofRs. 27,00,05,448 in aggregate.

Deposits



(iii) As per rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the Compary has not issued
shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme;

(iv) As per rule 12(9) of the Companies [Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the Company has not issued
equity shares under the scheme ofemployee stock option;

(v) As per rule 16(4) ofthe Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,2014, there are no voting rights
exercised direcdy or indirectly by the employees in respect ofshares held by them. The Company does not
have any scheme of provision ofmoney for the purchase ofits own shares by employees or by trustees for the
benefit ofemployees;

(vi) No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board;

(vii) There is no Corporate lnsolvency Resolution Process initiated by and against the Company under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (lBC);

(viii) No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the
Company's going concern status and operations in future.

(ix) There is no one time settlement ofloans taken from banks and financial Institutions;

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

Being an Infrastructure Company, the Company is exempted under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with
respect to any loan made, any guarantee given or any security provided or any investment made by a Company.

However, tlle details of loa[, guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013
forms part of Financial Statements,

DETAILS OF SHARES TRANSFER OF THE ASSOCIATE COMPANIES TO SHREM INVIT

The Company alongwith its holding Company "Dilip Buildcon Limited "("DBL") have executed a non-binding Term
Sheet, with 'Shrem lnvlT "(an infrastructure investment trust, registered under Indian Trust Act 1882 with
Securities and Exchange Board of IndiaJ, for transferring their investment in Equity Share Capital and Promoter's
Unsecured Loan in respect ofsubsidiaries (Hybrid Annuity Model ("HAM") projects. Equity transfer to Shrem lnvlT
shall be completed in a progressive manner after the completion of the prolects, subject to receipt of approvals
from the respective project lenders and NHAL The consideration for the transfer ofshares will be received in form
of Units ofthe InvlT/cash. The details of shares transferred by the Company till 31't March, 2023 are as follows:

s.
No.

Name ofthe Company No. ofshares
held by the
Company at

the beginning
of tlle year

No. of
Shares

transferr
ed to

shrem

No. ofShares
held by the
Company at
the end of
tlle year

Status ofthe Company
as on March 31, 2023

1

DBL Bangalore Nidagatta
Hishways Private Limited

158905 158905 0 No more associated
with the Company

2

DBL Bellary Byrapura
Highways Private Limited

367776 367776 No more associated
with tie Company

(x) There is no amount of unpaid/unclaimed dividend and shares which are required to be transferred in IEPF
(lnvestor Education and Protection Fund) as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, there is no cha[ge in the nature ofbusiness ofthe Company,

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, SECURITY AND INVESTMENT

HOLDING COMPANY

Your Company is a wholly owned subsidiary ofthe Dilip Buildcon Limited.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY:

0



3
DBL Byrapura Challakere
Highways Private Limited

357730 3577 30 0 No more associated
with the Company

4
DBL Gorhar Khairatunda
Highways Private Limited

346993 346993 0 No more associated
with the Company

5 DBL Rewa Sidhi
Privater

Highways 78210 44693 33517 Associate

r The Company has transferred the entire shareholding held in DBL Rewa Sidhi Highways Pivate to Shrem lnvlT on
August 01,2023

DETAILS OF SHARES ACQUIRED/ SUBSCRIEED:

'The Company hss translerred the entire shareholding held in DBL Nidogotto Mysore Highwoys Privote Limited to
Shrem InvlT on August 03,2023

(b) Statement of the Subsidiaries & Associates

As or March 31, 2023, the Company has 7 (Seven) Associate Companies.

There has been no change in the nature ofbusiness activities ofany ofthe subsidiaries.

In accordance with SectioD 129(3) ofthe Companies Act, 2013, the Company has prepared a Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company and all its Subsidiaries and associatesi is forming part ofthe Annual Reporr As per the
provisions of Sectior 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a
separate statement containing the salient features ofthe financial statements of the Subsidiary-is prepared i[ Form
AOC-1 and the same is annexed to this Annual ReporL

Associates Companies:

(i) DBL Rewa Sidhi Highways Private Limited (DRSHPL)

DRSHPL was incorporated as special purpose vehicle on April 11, 2018 under the Companies Act, 2013 having its
registered omce situated at Plot no. 5, lnside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal 462 016,
Madhya Pradesh, to undertake the project of"Construction ofChurhat b,?ass including Tunnel on Rewa Sidhi section
of NH 75E from chainage 33.200 to chainage 55.400 (desiSn length 15.350 km.) in the state of MP on Hybrid Annuity
Mode." The Company has transferred 44693 equity shares to Shrem InvlT. DRSHPL is an Associate of the Company.

During the period under review, DRSHPL has achieved revenue from operations of Rs. 10857.99 Lakhs and has
incurred Net Loss after Tax ofRs. 2565,13 Lakhs.

However, the Company has transferred the entire shareholding held in DRSHPL to Shrem lnvlT on August 01, 2023
The Company is no longer associated with DRSHPL.

s.
No.

Name of tlle Company Type of
Shares

No. of
Shares held

by the
Company at

the
beginning of

tlle year

No. of
shares

acquir€d
by way

of
ts?nsfer

from
DBL

No. of
shares

acquired
by way of

subscriptio
nto

preferentia
I allotment

No. of
Shares
held by

the
Compan
y at the
end of

tlle year

o/o ol
holding
acquire
dason
March

37,
2023

1 Dodaballapur Hoskote
Highways Private Limited

Equity 90396 26888 75299 132583 49o/o

2 Narenpur Purnea
Highways Private Limited

Equity 71896 12+90 8555 49o/o

3 Pathrapalli Kathghora
Hiqhways Private Limited

Equity 7 6581, 1407a 10412 1010 71 49o/o

Repallewada
Limited

Highways Equity 88534 0 199205 49o/o

5 Dhrol Bhadra
Limited

Highways Equity 0 0 62348 30o/o

6 DBL Nidagatta Mysore
Hiqhways Private Limitedt

Equity 477772 0 0 417772 49o/o

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES INCLUDED tN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

92941

4 1L067 t

6234A



(ii) DBL Nidagatta Mysore Highways private Limited (DNMHpL)

DNMHPL was incorporated as special purpose vehicle on April 09, 2018 to uldertake the project of "Six Laning of
Nidagatta-Mysore Section from Km 74.20 to Km 135.304 ofNH-275 in the State of Karnataka io be executed on Hybrid
Annuity Mode." DNMHPL is an Associate of the Company.

During the period under review, DNMHPL has achieved revenue from operations of Rs. 28206.03 Lakhs and has
incurred Net Loss after Tax of Rs. 624.58 Lakhs.

However, the Company has transferred the entire shareholding held in DNMHPL to Shrem InvlT on August 03, 2023.
The Company is no longer associated with DNMHpL.

(iii) Narenpur Purnea Highways Private Limited (NpHpL)

NPHPL was incorporated on October 07, 2020 under the Companies Act, 2013 having its registered office situated at
PIot no. 5, Inside Govind Narayan singh Gate, chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal 462 016, Madhya pradesh. NpHpL is
involved in the business to undertake the project of "Construction and upgradation of NH - 131A from Km 34.G00
(design Ch: 6 000) near Narenpur to Km 79.970 (design Ch: 53.000) near Purnea to 4 lane standard and from Km
79.970 (design Ch: 53.000) to Km 82.000 (design Ch: 55.000) near Purnea to 2 lanes with paved Shoulders standard
in the State of Bihar on Hybrid Annuity Mode." NPHPL is an Associate of the Company. Further, NpHpL has been
converted from private to public company and has received the conversion certificate ofincorporation from Registrar
of companies, Gwalior on ldy 12, 2023.

During the period under review, the Company has achieved revenue from operations ofRs. 24845.78 Lakhs and has
incurred Net Loss after Tax of Rs, 2277.09 laldts.

(v) Dhrol Bhadra Highways Limited (DBHL)

DBHL was incorporated on December 29, 2020 under the Companies Ac! 2013 having its registered office situated
at Plot no, 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal452 016, Madhya pradesh. DBHpL
is involved in the business to undertake the project of "Four Laning of Dhrol - Bhadra Patiya section of NH-151A
(Between Ex. Km 5+700 to Km 13+600 of SH-25) and Bhadra Patiya - Pipaliya Section of NH-151A (Between Ex. Km
73+000 to Km.44+800 and Ex. Km. 38+350 to 24+000 ofCSH-6) in Gujaratthrough Public Private Partnership (PPPJ
(the "Project") on design, build, operate and traNfer(the "DBOT Annuity" or "Hybrid Annuity"J basis.

Further to inform you that DBHL has issued and allotted 29489 equity shares by way of preferential allotment to the
Company. Pursuant to the said allotment DBHL is an associate ofthe Company. DBHL is an Associate ofthe Company,

(vi) Pathrapali-Kathghora Highways Private Limited (PKHPL)

PKHPL was incorporated as a special purpose vehicle on May 07. 2020 to undertake the project of "Four lane with
paved shoulder configuration of Pathrapali-Kathghora (Km. 53.300 to Km. 92,600J Pkgll of Bilaspur-Kathghora
section of NH-111 (New NH-130J in the State of Chhattisgarh under Bharatmala Pariyojna on Hybrid Annuity Mode.".
PKHPL is an associate ofthe Company,

During the period under review, the Company has achieved revenue from operahons of Rs. 20444,99 Lakhs and has
incurred Net Loss after Tax of Rs. 2066.29 Lakhs.

During the period under review, NPHPL has achieved revenue from operations of Rs. 62796.05 Lakhs and has
incurred NetLoss afterTax of Rs. 3221.58 Lakhs.

(iv) Repallewada Highways Limited (RHL)

RHL was incorporated on October 13, 2020 under the Companies Ac! 2013 having its registered office situated at
Plot no.5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh cate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal 462 016, Madhya pradesh. RHL is
involved in the business to undertake the project of "Four laning of NH-363 from Repallewada (Design Km
42.ooo/Existing Km 288.510) to Telangana/Maharashtra Border (Design Km 94.602/Existing Km 342.000J @esign
Length = 52.602 Km) in the State ofTelangana under NH (OJ on Hybrid Annuity mode [HAM)." RHL is an Associate
ofthe Company.

During the period under review, DBHL has achieved revenue from operations of Rs. 31326,87 Lakhs and has incurred
Net loss after Tax of Rs. 1849.30 Lakhs.



(vii) Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Private Limited (DHHPL)

DHHPL was incorporated on September 25, 2020 under t}Ie Companies Act, 2013 having its registered office situated
at Plot no. S,lnside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal462 016, Madhya Pradesh. DHHPL
is involved in the business to undertake the projed of"4laning from km.42.000 to }(rr.80.00 ofDodaballapur Bypass
to Hoskote section of NH-648 (Old NH-207) on Hybrid Annuity Mode under Bharatmala Pariyojna in the state of
Karnataka (Package-ll)."

The Company (DBL) has transferred 26888 Equity shares held in Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Private Limited to
DBL Infra Assets Private Limited on January 11, 2023. Currendy, DHHPL is an associate of the Company. Further,
DHHPL has been converted from private to public company and has received the conversion certificate of
incorporation from Registrar ofcompanies, Gwalior on July 12, 2023

Duringtheperiodunderreview,theCompanyhasachievedrevenuefromoperationsofRs,37254.87Lakhsandhas
incurred Net Loss after Tax ofRs. 3067.02 Lakhs.

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

During the period under review, there is no amount of unpaid/unclaimed dividend which is required to transfer in
IEPF 0nvestor Education and Protection Fund) as per the provisions ofthe Companies Acl 2013.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH
HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

During the year under reviewand the date of report, there is no materialchange and commitments made which affect
the financial position ofthe Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place a mechanism to identiry, assess, monitor and mitigate various risk to key business

objectives. Maior risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating
actions on a continuing basis. The Company has adopted the risk management policy which includes identification of

elements ofrisk, ifany, which in the opinion ofthe Board may threaten the existence ofthe Company in order to avoid

events, situations or circumstances which may lead to negative consequences on the Company's businesses, and

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

The Company has designed and implemented a process driven framework for Internal Financial Controls ("IFC"J

withir the meaning ofthe explanation to Section 134(5)(e) ofthe Companies Ac! 2013 read with Rule 8(5)[viiD of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board is of the opinion that t}le Company has sound Internal Financial

Control commensurate with the nature and size of its business operadons and operating effectively and no material
weakness exists. The Company has a process in place to continuously monitor the same and identiry gaps, ifany, and

implement new and/or improved controls wherever the effect of such gaps would have a material effect on the

Company's operations, This process includes the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal
Financial Control that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and emcient conduct of its business,

including adherence to company's policies, safeguarding of its assets, t]le prevention and detection of frauds and

errors, accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, and timely preparation ofreliable financial information,
as required under the AcL

The Board of Directors of t}le Company have adopted various policies like Related Party Transactions Policy, Vigil

Mechanism Policy, Policy to determine Material Subsidiaries and such other procedures for ensuring the orderly and

emcient conduct ofits business for safeguarding of its assets, the preventioIl and detection of frauds and errors, the

accuracy and completeness oft}Ie accounting records, and the timely preparation ofreliable financial information

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness ofthe internal control

system and suggests improvements to strengthen the same, The Company has robust management information

system, which is an integral part ofthe control mechanism.

DETAILS OF SICNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or ribunals impacting the 8oin8
concern status and Company's operations in future.



define a structured approach to manage uncertainty and to make use ofthese in t}leir decision-making pertaining to
all business divisions and corporate functions. Therefore, a mechanism to inform the Board about risk assessment
and minimization procedures and periodical reyiew to ensure that executive managemelt controls risk by means of
a properly designed framework is in place.

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT

Statutory Auditors & their report

M/s. Mukund M. Chitale & Co., were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company on 30th September,

2022 for a term of 5 years from 126 Annual General Meeting ofthe Company till the conclusion of the 17th Annual
General Meeting ofthe Company to be held in the calendaryear 2027.

The Company has obtained a certificate for their independence and eligibility for their appointment as Statutory
Auditors, and the same are within the limits as specified in section 141 ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

M/s. Mukund M. Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai have audited the book of accounts of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and have issued the Auditor's Report there on. There are no qualifications
or reseryations or adverse remark or disclaimers in the said reporL Further, no fraud has been reported by the
Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board during the period under review.

The Auditor's Report, read together witi the notes on financial statemerts are self-explanatory and hence do notcall
for any funher comments under section 134 ofthe AcL

Further, the Company has obtained a certificate for their independence and eligibility for their appointment as

Statutory Auditors, and the same are within the limits as specified in seaion 141 ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

Secreta ria I Audit & Auditor's Report

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Board of
Directors has appointed M/s Piyush Bindal and Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Bhopal as Secretarial
Auditor of the Company to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial yeat 2022-2023. On the basis of the said

appointment, M/s Piyush Bindal and Associates Practicing Company Secretaries, Bhopal has issued the Secretarial
Audit Report for the financial year 2022-2023 in form MR-3 which is annexed to the Board's Reportas Annexure-1
which is self-explanatory and do not call for any further explanation ofthe Board.

Internal Auditors

As per the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable rules aIld provisions, the

lnternal Audit Report for the Financial Year 2022-23 issued by M/s. Sahni Hasija & Co. Chartered Accountants oCAI
Firm Registration No. 019535C) was submitted to the Board.

Further, as per the proyisions of Section 138 of tle Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable rules and provisions,

if any. The Board of Directors in its meeting held on luly 10, 2023 has appointed M/s Churuwala & Associates,

Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (FRN: - 1081O1W), as an Internal Auditor to conduct internal audit of the Company

for the FinancialYear 2O23-24,

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGT EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars as required under the provisions ofSection 134(3) (ml ofthe Companies Ad, 2013 read with Rule 8

of the Companies (Accounts] Rules, 2014 in respect of conservatior oF enerB/, technolos/ absorption, foreign

exchange earnings and outgo etc, does not apply to tie Company.

The particulars as required to furnish for theyear 2022-23 ate mentioned below:

S. No. Particulars Comments
(A) Conservation ofenergy ln view of business activities, the

Company is not a manutacturing
Company and using very less power
for its business activities hence; it is
not beneficial for the interest of the

ti) the steps taken or impact on conservation of enerry;
(ii) the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of

energy;

riii) the capital investment on energf conservation equipment

Cost Auditors & its report

Pursuant to the provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable rules and provisions, if
any, tJre requirement ofCost Audit is not applicable to the Company.



company to take substantial steps for
tie conservation of energy

(B) Technology absorption
ti) the efforts made towards technology absorption
(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction,

product development or impoft substitution;
in case of imported technolory (imported during the last three
years reckoned from the beginning ofthe financialyear)-
(a) the details oftechnology imported
[b) the yearofimpon
[c) whether the technolod been fully absorbed

Iiii)

(d) if not fully absorbed, aleas where absorption has not taken
Dlace. and the reasons therboi and

The Company uses latest technology
and equipment in its business.
Further the Company is not engaged
in any manufacturing activity.

Iiv) the expenditure incurred

T

Research and Development During the year the Company has not
spent any amount towards research
and developmental activity.

Foreign exchange earninls and Outgo lnflow Out Flow
0.00 0.00

(c)
The Foreign Exchange earfed in terms of actual inflows during
tie year and the Foreign lExchange outgo during the year in
termsofactualoudlows I

BOARD OF THE COMPANY

a) Constitution ofthe Board

The composition ofthe Board is in con rmity with Regulation 17 ofthe SEBI ILODR] Regulations,2015 and Section

149 of the Companies Act, 2013. As
comprising of One Non-Executive Di
Women lndependent Director.

31st March, 2023 the Company's Board comprises of 4 (Four) Diredors,
r and 3 (Three) Non- Executive Independent Directors, including one

The Board is satisfied that the current composition reflects an appropriate mix of knowledge, skills experience,

expertise, diversity, and lndependenc The Board provides leadership, strategic guidance, an obiective and

independent view to the Company's ment while discharging its fiduciary duties, thereby ensuring that the
management adheres to the high standa ofetiics, transparency, and disclosure. The Directors on the Board ofthe
Company as on the date ofthe Report a as follows

1. Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi
2. Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey
3. Mr. AshwiniVerma
4. Mrs. Pooja Maheshwari

No Executive Director
Executive lndependent Director
Executive Independent Diredor
Executive Women lndependent Director

No
N

N

o
o

b) ChanBes in the composition ofboa of directors

owing changes were made in the composition of Board ofDirectors of theDuring the Financial Year under review,
Company:

1. Mrs. Pooja Maheshwari was appoin as an Additional Director in the category oflndependent Woman Director
on November 11,2022 and her appo tment was regularized by the Shareholders of the Company in the Extra-

Ordinary General Meeting held on F 08,2023

c) Changes in the key managerial pe onnel of the company:

During the year under review, no cha were made in the positions of Key Managerial Personnel ofthe Company

d) ln addition to the above following hanges took place after the year under review

No change took place after tie end of under review

e) Directors seekingre'appointmen

In terms of the provisions of the Compa
will retire by rotation and being eligible,

ies Act, 2013, Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi (00039944) Director of the Company
himselffor reappointment at the ensuing Annual General MeetinS.



The Board recommends his re-appointment for the consideration of the Members of the Company at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

ln case of appointment/re-appointment of Directors, the details of respective Directors as stipulated under
Regulation 36(3) ofthe Listing Regulations are included in tie Notice ofAnnual General Meeting.

Q Women Independent Director

Pursuant to SEBI ILODR) Regulations, 2015, your Company is a 'high value d€bt listed entity'and is required to
appoint Women lndependent Director.

g) Independent Directors and their Declaration

The Company has appointed 3 (three) Independent Directors which are in accordance with the requirement of the
SEBI (LODRJ Regulations, 2015.

The terms and conditions of appointment of the Independent Directors are placed on the website at t]Ie web link:
htFs://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx

All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of
the SEBI ILODR] Regulations, 2015 read with Section 149(6) of t]e Companies Ac! 2013. As per the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations 25 (8) states that every Independent Director, at the first meeting ofthe Board in which he participates
as a Director and thereafter at the first meeting ofthe Board in every financialyear, or whenever there is any change
in the circumstances which may affect his status as an independent director, submit a declaration that he meets the
criteria of independence as provided in clause (b) of sub regulation (1) of regulation 15 and that he is not aware of
any circumstance or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact his ability
to discharge his duties with an obiective independent iudgment and without any external influence and the board of
directors ofthe companyshall take on record the declaration and confirmation submitted by the independent director
under sub-regulation (8J after undertaking due assessment ofthe veracity ofthe same.

ln the opinion ofthe Board, the lndependent Directors possess the requisite expertise and experience (lncluding the
proficiency ofthe independent director as ascertained from the online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by
the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs notified under sub-section (1) ofsection 150 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and
are the persons of high integrity and repute. They fulfill the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 and the Rules made thereunder and are independent ofthe management

Further, as per the Companies (Creation and Maintenance of Databank of Independent Diredors) Rules, 2019 and
Companies (Appointment and Qualification ofDirectors) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, the declaration
received from the lndependent Directors of t]!e Company related to online Proficiency Self-Assessment Test are
mentioned below:

Sr. No Name of Independent Directors

Applied online for
inclusion ofname in

data bank

Cleared the
online

Proficiency test
Exemption
category

L Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey 07 .02.2020 N.A Yes

2 Mr. Ashwini Verma 05.02.2020 09.0t.2021

3 Mrs. Pooia Maheshwari 17 .10.2022 No

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Company prepares tJte schedule of the Board Meeting in advance to assist the Diredors in scheduling their
programme. The agenda of the meeting is circulated to the members of the Board well in advance along witi
necessary papers, reports, recommendations and supporting documents so that each Board member can actively
participate on agenda items during tJle meeting.

The Board met 11 (ElevenJ times during the FinancialYear 2022-23 viz April25,2022,May 27,2022, A\E\st 09,2022,
September 08, 2022, September 15, 2022, October 29,2022,November 01, 2022, November 11, 2022, November 19,
2022, February 07 ,2023 and Nlarch 24,2023.

The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.

Mrs, Pooja Maheshwari (DINr 09783425) was appointed as Independent Woman Director on the Board as required
under the provisions of the Companies Ac! 2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.



The details ofaftendance ofthe Directors ofthe Company are as under:

Sr. No. Name ofthe Directors Cate8ory Attendance
Held Eligible to

Attend
Aftended

1 Non- Executive Director 11 11 11

2 Mr, Satish Chandra Pandey Non- Executive Independent
Director

11 1l 11

3 Mr. Ashwini Verma Non- Executiye Independent
Director

11 11 11

+ Mrs. Pooja Maheshwari Non- Executive Independent
Director

11 3 3

The Board has complete access to any information within the Company. The Company has provided inter alia
following information:

. Financial results of the Company, its Subsidiaries;

. Minutes ofmeeti[gs ofthe Board, Committees, resolutions passed by circulations and minutes oft}te meetings of
the Board ofSubsidiary Companies;

. Periodic compliance reports which includes non-compliance, ifany;

. Disclosures received from Directors;

. Related party transactions;

. Regular business updates;

. Report on adion taken on last Board Meeting decisiom;

. Various Policies ofthe Board;

. Code of Condud for the members of the Board;

. Discussion with the Auditors and the audit committee members.

PROGRAMME FOR FAMILIARIZATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company conducts familiarization programme for all t})e directors at the time oftheir appointment and also at
regular intervals to enlighten the directors regarding their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company and the
nature of the industry in which the Company operates, the business model ofthe Company etc, The details regarding
the familiarization programme conducted during the year are put up on the website of the company and can be
accessed atthe followingweblink: https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx

GOVERNANCE CODES

(a) Code ofBusiness Conduct & Ethics

The Company has adopted Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management ("the Code") which is

applicable to the Board of Directors and all Employees ofthe Company. The Board of Directors and the members of
Senior Management Team ofthe Company are required to affirm Compliance ofthis Code. The Company has received
the annual affirmation declaration from the Board of Directors and Senior Management The Code requires Directors
and Employees to act honesdy, fairly, ethically and with integrity, conduct themselves in professional, courteous and

respecful manner. The Code is displayed on the Company's website atthe weblink: https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx

b) Conflict of lnterests

Each Director informs the Company on an annual basis about the Board and the Committee positions he occupies in
other Companies including Chairmanships and notify changes during the year. The Members of the Board while
discharging their duties, avoid conflict of interest in the decision-making process. The Members of Board restrict
themselves from any discussions and voting in transactions in which they have concern or interesL

c) Insider Trading Code

The Company has adopted a Code of conduct for prevention of Insider Trading ("the Code") in accordance with the
SEBI (Prohibition of lnsider Trading) Regulations, 2015, amended time to time (The PIT Regulations). This Code is

displayed on the Company's website at the weblink. https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx

Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi

INFORMATION AVAILABLE FOR THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD



The Company has also formulated 'The Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information (UPSI)' in compliance with the PIT Regulations. This Code is displayed on the Company's
website at the weblink https://dbiapi.com/Policies,aspx

Further pursuant to the amendments in SEBI (PIT) Regulations, 2018, the Compaoy has also formulated Policy for
Procedure of lnquiry in case of Leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and constituted an Enquiry
Committee to take appropriate action on becoming aware of leak of unpublished price sensitive information and
inform the Board prompdy of such leak, inquiries and results of such inquiries. The Policy is displayed on the
Company's website at the weblink : https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx

The Enquiry Committee shall consist of minimum 3 (three) Members of the Board of Directors oft}le Company,

During the period under review, the Company has not receiyed any complaints related to leak of Unpublished Price
Sensitive information. No meeting was held during the nnancialyear 2022-23.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors has constituted various mandatory and other Committees to deal with specific areas and

activities which concern the Company and requires a closer review. The Committees are formed with approval ofthe
Board and function as per the applicable provisions. These Committees play an important role in the overall
management ofday-to-day affairs and governance ofthe Company. The Board Committees meet at regular intervals
and take necessary steps to perform its duties entrusted by the Board. The Minutes ofthe Committee Meetings are
placed before the Board for noting. During the year under review, the Board has the following Committees:

A) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was constituted by our Board in accordance with Regulation 18 ofthe SEBI (LODRI Regulations,

2015. The composition. quorum, terms of reference, functions) powers, roles and scope are in accordance with the

Re8ulation 18 of the SEBI ILODR) Regulations, 2015. All the members of the committee are financially literate, Mr.

Satish Chandra Pandey, Mr. Ashwini Verma and Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi possesses financial exPertise.

The Committee was constituted on March 21,2022 by the Board of Directors of the Company, the Audit Committee

met 9 (ninel times during the Financial Year 2022'23 on May 27,2022, August 09, 2022, Septembet 0a' 2022'

September 14, 2022, November 01, 2022, November 11, 2022, November 19, 2022, February 07, 2023 and March 24,

2023.

The members of tte Committee, Meednts and Attendance during the financial year 2022.23 arc mentioned
below:

Sr,
No.

Designation Number
attended

of meetitrgs

1 9 of 9

2 Mr. Ashwiniverma Member -lndependent Director 9 of9

3 Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi Member Director 9 of9

Mrs. Pra$.a Raghuwanshi, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee

The terms ofreference ofAudit Committee Inter-alia, includes tlle followinS:

[i) The recommendation for appointment remuneration and terms of appointment ofauditors of the company;

[ii) Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness ofaudit process;

(iii)Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions ofthe company with related parties;

(iv) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
(vJ Valuation of undertakings or assets ofthe Company, wherever it is necessary;

(vi) Evaluation ofinternal financial controls and risk management systems;

(vii) Mo[itoring the end use offunds raised through public offers and related matters;
(viii] Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to

ensure that the financial statement is correct sufficient and credible;
(ix) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;
(xf niUewing with the management the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before

submission to the board for approval with particular reference to:

Name ofDirectors

Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey Chairman -lndependent Director



a. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in tlle board's report
ir terms ofclause (c) ofsub-section 3 ofsection 134 ofthe Companies Act, 2013;
b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;
c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise ofjudgment by managemeng
d. Significant adiustments made in the financial statements arising out ofaudit findings;
e. Compliance with listiog and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
f. Disclosure ofany related party transactions;
g. Qualifications in the draft audit report;

(xi) Reviewing with the managementthe quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;

(xii] Reviewing with t]le management the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public
issue, rights issue, preferentialissue etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the
offer document / prospectus / notice and the reportsubmitted by the monitoring agency, monitoring the utilization
of proceeds of a public or rights issue and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in
this matter;

(xiii) Approval orany subsequent modification oftransadions ofthe company with related parties;

[xiv) Reviewing with the management performalce of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy ofthe intemal
control systems;

(xv) Reviewing the adequary of internal audit funcions, if a[y, including the stucture of the internal audit
departmenq staffing and seniority of the official heading the department reporting structure, coverage and

frequency of internal audiq

(xviJ Discussion with internal auditors ofany significant findings and follow up there on;

(xvii) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure ofinternal control systems ofa material nature and reporting the mafter
to the board;

[xviii) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences about the nature and scope of audit as well
as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area ofconcern;

(xix) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,

shareholders (in case ofnon-payme[t of declared dividends) and creditors;

()o{) To review the functioning ofthe Whisde Blower mechanism;

(xxi)Approval ofappointment ofCFO (i.e. the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance

function or discharging that functionJ after assessing the qualincations, experience and background etc. ofthe

candidate;

(xxii)Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee, shall mandatorily review the followiDg information:

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results ofoperations;
2. State;ent of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit committeeJ submitted by

managemenq
3. M;nagement letters of internal control & wealoesses issued by the statutory auditors;

4. lnterlal audit reports relating to internal control wealoesses; and

5. The appointrnenl removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor shall be subiect to review by

the Audit Committee."

Details ofestablishment ofviSil mechanism for directors and employees

The Company has formulated the Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy. The policy aims for conducting the

affairs in a fair and transparent manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and

ethical behaviour, All permanent employees ofthe Company are covered under the Vigil Mechanism Policy.

A mechanism has been established for employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected

fraud or violation ofCode ofConduct and Ethics. lt also provides for adequate safeguards against the vidimization
of employees who avail of the mechanism and allows direct access to the Chairperson of t}le Audit Committee in



exceptional cases. Further, no whisde blower complaint has been received during the financial year 2 022-23. The
Policy is available on the website ofthe Company at the weblink https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx

B) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted by the Board in accordance with the provision
of Regulation 19 ofSEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The composition, quorum, terms ofreference, functions, powers,
roles and scope are in accordance witi Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Poliry is available on
the website oftle Company at the weblink: https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx

The Committee was constituted on March 21,2022 by the Board of Directors of the Company, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee met twice during the Financial Year 2022-23 on September 08, 2022 and November 11,
2022

The members of the Committee, Meetings and Attendance during tie financial year 2022-23 are mentioned
below:

Mrs. Pragya Raghuwanshi, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee

The terms and reference ofthe Nomination and Remuneration Committee are mentioned below:

Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence ofa director and
recommending to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, executive directors key
managerial personBel aod other employees;

ii. Formulating of criteria for evaluation of the independent directors and tlte Board;

iii. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

iv. Identirying persons who qualiry to become directors or who may be appointed in one Ievel below the key
managerial personnel in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommending to the Board their
appointment and removal, and carrying out evaluations ofevery director's performance;

v, Analysin& monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation matters;

vi. Determining the company's policy on specific remuneration packages for executive directors including
pension rights and any compensation payment, and determining remuneration packages ofsuch directors;

vii. Determining compensation levels payable to the key managerial personnel and other staff (as deemed
necessary) which shall be market-related, usually consistirg ofa fixed and variable componenq

viii. Reviewing and approving compensation strates/ from time to time in the context of the then current Indian
market in accordance with applicable laws;

ix. Performing such other activities as may be delegated by the Board of Directors and/or are statutorily
prescribed under any law to be attended to by tie Nomination and Remunerahon Committee."

C) Stakeholder's Relationship Committee

Stakeholde/s Relationship Committee has been constituted by the Board in accordance with Regulation 19 ofSEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015

The Committee was constituted on March 21,2022 by the Board of Directors of the Company, the Stakeholder's
Relationship Committee met once during the Financial Year 2022-23 on l,J.ryu,st 09,2022,

L

Sr. No, Name of Directors Desitnation

1 Mr. Ashwini verma Chairman - Independent Director 2of2

2 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey Member - Independent Director 2ofz

3 Member - Director 2of2

Number of meetings
attended

Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi



Name ofDirectors Designation Number of
attended

me€tings

1 Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi Chairman -Director

2 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey Member - lndependent Director 1of 1

3 Member - lndependent Director 1of1

The members of tlle
mentioned below:

Committee, Meetings and Attendance during the f.nancial year 2022-23 are

Mrs. Pra$/a Raghuwanshi, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee

Particulars Pending as on
date of
allotment ofNCD
(April01,2022)

During the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2023

Pending as
March 31, 2023

on

Received Redressed

Shareholder
Complaints

NIL NIL NIL

D)Risk Management Comnrittee

The Risk Management Committee has been constituted by the Board in accordance with Regulation 21 of SEBI

ILODR) Regulations, 201S. Based on the skills/expertise/competence of the Board of Director in their functional
areas, your Company has done the Competency mapping ofthe directors ofthe Company and their efficient services

/guidance used for the improvement in the organization.

The Committee was constituted on March 27,2022 by the Board ofDirectors ofthe Company, the Committee met

twice during the Fin ancial Y ear 2022-23 on September 05. 2022 a\d Febrwry 20,2023.

The members of tlle Committee, Meetings and Attendance during the financial year 2022-23 are
mentioned below:

Sr. No. Name ofDirectors Designation Number ofmeetings
attended

Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi Chairman -Director

2 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey Member - Independent Director 2of2

Mr. Ashwini Verma Member - Independent Director 2of2

Mrs. PraSra Raghuwanshi, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee

Terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are mentioned below:

1. Laying down risk assessment plan, minimisation procedures and informing the Board of the same;

2, Framin& implementin& reviewing and monitoring t}le risk management plan for the Company; and

3. Performing such otheractivities as may be delegated bythe Board and/orare statutorily prescribed undert]le
Listing Regulations.

Sr.
No,

1of1

Mr, AshwiniVerma

The trrms ofref€r.ence ofthe Stakeholder's Relationship Committee ofthe Company includes the following:

a) Consider and resolve grievances of tlle security holders of the Company, including complaints related to the
transfer ofshares, non-receipt of annual report and non-receipt ofdeclared dividends; and

b) Carrying out any other function as prescribed under t]le Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Status of lnvestor Complaints for Debt for the Financial Year ZOZ2-23

During the year no complaint was received, attended and resolved by the Company. Details of the same are
mentioned below:

1 2of?

3

NIL



The committee has formulated a Risk Assessment and Management Policy to create and protect shareholders'
value by minimizing threats or losses and identifuing and maximizing opportunities, fusk Management Policy of
the Company oudines different kinds of risk and risk mitiga6ng measures to be adopted by the Board. The
Company has adequate internal control systems and procedures to combat the risk.

coRPoRATE SOCTAL RESpONSIBILITy (CSR)

As per the provisions of section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company does not fulfil the criteria
stipulated under section 135 (1) of Companies Act, 2013, Hence the provisions with respect to Corporate Social
Responsibility are not applicable to the Company.

ENQUIRY COMMITTEE FOR LEAK OF UNPUBLISHED PRICE SENSITIVE INFORMATION

Pursuant to the amendments in SEBI (PIT) Regulahons, 2018, the Company has also formulated policy for
Procedure of Inquiry in case of Leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive lnformation and constituted an Enquiry
Committee to take appropriate action on becoming aware of leak of unpublished price sensitive information and
inform the Board promptly ofsuch leak, inquiries and results ofsuch inquiries.

The composition of Enquiry Committee for leak ofUnpublished Price Sensitive information comprises of3 (three)
Members. Details ofthe same are mentioned below:

S. No. Name Designation

1 Mr. Ashwini Verma Chairman - Independent Director
2 Mr, Satish Chaldra Pandey Member - Independent Director
3 Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi Member - Director

All Directors responded through a structured questionnaire giving feedback about the performance ofthe Board,
its Committees, lndividual Directors.

Criteria for evaluation of Board as a whole

i. Board Composition & Quality;
ii. Board Meetings;
iii. Committees;
iv. Core Governance & Compliance; and
v. Risk ManagemenL

Criteria for evaluation of Committees

i. Structureofcommittees;
ii. Appropriateness ofdelegation of responsibilities by the Board to its committees;
iii. Compositio[ of the committ€es;
iv. The meetings are conducted iIl a manner that ensures open communication and meaningful participation;
v. The amount ofinformation received is appropriate for discussion and decision makng purposes;
vi. The reporting by each ofthe Committees to the Board is sufficient;
Vii. Committees takes effective and proactive measures to perform its functions; and
viii. The frequency ofthe Committee meetings is adequate.

Criteria for evaluation of the Independent Directors

i. Knowledge & Expertise;
ii. Participation in Board Meetings;
iii. InterpersonalSkills;

i-

The Company has not received any Complaint related to leak of ulpublished price sensitive information of the
Company hence no meeting was held during the financial year 2022-23.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Board has laid down the manner in which formal annual evaluation of the performance of the Board and
individual directors has to be made. It includes circulation of questionnaires to all Directors prepared pursuant to
the provisions ofSEBI (LODRJ Regulations, 2015, for evaluation ofthe Board, Board composition and its structure,
its culture, Board effectiveness, Eoard functionin& information availability, etc. These questionnaires also cover
specific criteria and the grounds on which all directors in their individual capacity will be evaluated.



iv. Professional Conduct & Iodependence;
v. Diligence;
vi. Roles & Responsibilities; and
vii. Disclosure & Reporting.

During the year under review, the Company has not entered into a contract or arrangement with related party
referred to in sub-section [1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence AOC -2 is not applicable to the
Company.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Disclosures of Loans and advances in the nature of loans to Subsidiaries/Associates/others by name and amount
at the year end and the maximum amount of loans outstanding during the year has been disclosed in Financial
Statements annexed with this Report The said disclosures are also given in the Financial Statements ofSubsidiary/
Associate Companies.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosure required as per proyisions of sec 797(72) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5[2] of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed to the Board Report as

Annexure -2.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3) (a) and Section 92 [3), the Annual Return of the Company in the
prescribed Form MGT-7 is available on the website ofthe Company at www.dbiapl.com

COMPLIANCE wITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute ofCompany Secretaries oflndia and thatsuch systems are adequate and operating
effectively.

PARTICUUIRS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH REUTTED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB.
sEcTroN (1) oF SECTTON 188:

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, with
respect to the Directors' Responsibility Statement tie Directors confirm that:

(a,) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accoulting standards had been followed along lvith
proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made iudgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view ofthe state of affairs of dle Company

at the end ofthe financial year and of the loss ofthe Company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sumcient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in

accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of t]le Company and for preventing and

detecting ftaud and other irregularities;

fdJ there is no ft-aud which are reportable by the Auditors to the Central Government, and which needs to be

disclosed in tlle Board report during the year under review.

[e) that the Directors have laid down internal financial conhols to be followed by the Company and t-hat such

internal financial conEols are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(0 the directors had prepared the annual accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 on a Soing
concern basis; and

(g, the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions ofall applicable laws and

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.



Our holding Company i,e. Dilip Buildcon Limited has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of
sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

[Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Ac! 2013 and the rules framed there under. Internal Complaints
Committee (lCC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassmenl All employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) ofthe Company are also covered under the said policy.

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to Regulation 53(eJ of (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, name of the
debenture trustees with full contact details to be disclosed. The details ofthe same are mentioned below:

Axis Trustee Services Limited

The Ruby, 2rd Floor (SW)
29, Senapati Bapat Mar&
Dadar West, Mumbai -400028
Email id :rahul,vaishya@axistrustee.in
Tel No. +91 022-62300451
Website :www.axistrustee.com

CREDIT RATINGS

The Company has been assigned a credit rating of CARE BBB+; Stable by CARE Ratings on senior, listed, secured

redeemable, non-conyertible debentures (NCDs), During the year under review, there is no change in the Credit

Rating.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Company is grateful to its customers, shareholders, suppliers, financial institutions, bankers, Central and State

Governmerlts for their constant supportto the Company. The Directors also place on record their deep appreciation

ofthe contribution made at all levels the consistent growth oft}le Company was made possible by their hard work,

loyalty, dedication, co-ordination and supporL

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors
DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

sd/-
Dilip Suryavanshi
DlNr 00039944
Director

sd/-
Ashwini verma
DIN:06939756
lndependent Director

Place: Bhopal
Datet 22.08.2O23
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DISCLOSURE UNDERTHE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013



Annexure-1

FORM NO. MR.3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAT YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

lPursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of SEBt (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amendedl

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by DBl, INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE tlMlTED (hereinafter called the
"Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our
opinion, the company has during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 31't March 2023
(Audit Period) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has

proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and sub.iect to
the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Company for the Financial Year ended on 31't March 2023 according to the provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder including any re-enactment
thereof,

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;

iii) The Depositories Act, 1995 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

ivl Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct lnvestment and External Commercial

Borrowings;
v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of

lndia Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'): -

a ) The Secu rities a nd Excha nge Boa rd of lndia (Substa ntia I Acq uisition of Sha res a nd Ta keove rs)

Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

To,
The Memberc,
DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE TIMITED
(Formerly Known as High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
CIN: U74U0MP2010PTCo23673
Plot No. 5, lnside covind Narayan Singh Gate,
Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh - 452016



b)

c)

The securities and Exchange Board of rndia (prohibition of rnsider Trading) Regurations, 2015;
The securities and Exchange Board of rndia (rssue of capitar and Discrosure Requirements)
Begulations, 2018; (Not Appricabre to the company during the Audit period)
The. securities and Exchange Board of rndia (shaie Basei Emproyee Benefits and sweatEquity) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the company during the Audit period)
The Securities and Exchange Board of rndia (Registrars to an tssue ano strare Transfer Agents)Regulations, 1993 regarding the companies Act and dearing wiih crient; (Not Appricabre tothe Company during the Audit period)
The Securities and Exchange Board of rndia (tisting obrigations and Discrosure Requirements)regulations, 2015;
The Securities and Exchange Board of rndia (rssue and Lrsting of Debt securities) Regurations,2008;

The Securities and Exchange Board of rndia (rssue and ListinS 0f Non-convertibre securities)Regulations, 2021;
The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021{Not Apptkabte to the company during the Audit pir'i"lf 

"iJ'' 
'

The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Buyback of i..rritl"r1 Regulations, 2018 (NotApplicable to the company during the Audit pe;iod)

d)

e)

h)

0

i)

i)

vi) compriances / processes / systems under other specific appricabre Laws (as appricabre to thelndustry) to the company are being verified on tne u.ris of periodic certificates under internalCompliance system submitted to the Board of Directors oi,h" Corprny.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:i secretariar standards issued by The.rnstitute of corp.nv su.ru*ries of rndiai (compried with)ii' The Securities and Exchange. Board of rnara (t-istini oirigations and Discrosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015. (Complied with)

we further report that during the.year under review the company has generary compried with theprovisions ofthe Acts, Rures, Regurations, Guiderines, stanaari-s nientioned above.

We further report that during the Audit period under review:- The Board of Directors of thecompany is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,Non-Executive Directors and lndependent oir".,"^ i".rrii"g rndependent woman Director. Theprocesses reratinS to changes in the composition of the eoaid ot oirectors ,.ri""t pi.L irr"irc th.year were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.- Adequate notice is given to a[ directors to schearr. ir," s"r;j Meetings, agenda and detaired noteson agenda were sent generally seven aays in aavance otr'", ii.n g,ora held at shorter notice, and asystem exists for seeking and obtaining furtt ur inrorm.tion-"nd crarifications on the agenda itemsbefore the meeting and for meaningful particlpation ,,,i" ru",,"C.- As per the minutes of the Meetings du.ly recoided .narign"Jrv tr," chairman, the decisions of theBoard were unanimous and no dissenting ri"r, f,.r" i""', ,-"1ora"O.



We further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company

there seems to be adequate systems and processed in the Company commensurate with the size and

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and

guidelines.

We further report that during the period following specific events/actions took place in pursua nce of the

above-referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc. having a maior bearing on the Company affairs:

a) the Company has redeemed non-convertible debentures ('NCDS') (in line with the Debentures

Trust Deed dated August 23, 2021 entered into between DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited and Axis

Trustee Service Limited) on 29rh November, 2022 amounting to lNRs. 27,00,05,448.00 by reducing

the face value of the NcDs from lNRs. 1o,oo,ooo each to lNRs. 9,51,576 each which were issued

and allotted on a private placement basis and listed with BSE timited. Subsequent to the Face

value Redemption, the Company has 7027 existing Non-Convertible Debentures of the face value

of lNRs. 9,61,576/- each aSSregating to a total of lNRs. 6,75,69,94,552/-.

Place: Bhopal
Date: 29.07,2023

For Piyush Bindal & Associates
"Company Secretaries"

PiYush Bindal
(ProprietorI

FCS - 5749
CP. No. 7t142

Peer Review Cert, No.t 92212020

Firm's Registration No. S2012MP18 00

UDIN: F005749E000703491



This ,eport is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and lorms integral
part of this Report.

Annexure-A to Secretarial Audit Report
To,

The Members,
DBt INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE TIMITED
(Formerly Known as High Fly Airlines private Limited)
CIN: U74110MP2010PIC023573
Plot No. 5, lnside Govind Narayan Singh Gate,
Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal, Madhya pradesh - 4G2016

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 of even date is to be read along
with this letter.

Manatement's Responsibility

1. lt is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise
proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations
and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor's Responsibility

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures
followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

3. we believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the company,s management is
adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

4. wherever required, we have obtained the management's representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer

5. The secretarialAudit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viabirity ofthe company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

6' We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.



7. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that

the processes and practices followed provided a reasonable basis for my opinion.

Place: Bhopal
Oate: 29.07.2023

For Piyush Bindal & Associates

"Company secretaries"

Piyush Bindal
(Proprietorl

FCS - 6749
CP. No. 7442

Peer Review Cert. No.| 92212020

Firm's Registration No. S2012MP185400
UDIN: F005749E000703491



Annexure - 2
DETAILS OF REMUNERATION

Particulars of employees

Statement as per provisions ofsec 197(12J ofthe Companies A.t, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) ofthe Companies (Appointme[t and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

a) Disclosure ofthe top ten employees irl terms of remunention drawn during the ,inancial year ended March 31, 20231

1

PAYAL MISHRA FINANCE &ACCOUNTS,
(MANAGER)

BACHELOR'S DECREE.
c0MMERCE/CA

30
11

0r,08-2019 13,00,000.00
MGP&CO. NA

2.

PARESH CHANDRA
SEN

FINANCE &ACCOUNTS,
(MANAGER)

MASTER'S DEGREE.
COMMERCE

47
25

1A-12-2017 9,30,779.17
PARAM AGENCIES NA

3.

KRISHNA CODANI FINANCE &ACCOUNTS,
(MANACER)

BACHELOR'S DEGREE.

coMMERCE/CA
2A

5
27 -04-2022 6.70.500.00 BANSAL GROUP,

BHOPAL
NA

4.
SUDEEP PANDEY FINANCE & ACCOUNTS,

(ASST MANACER)
BACHELOR'S DEGREE.
coMMERCE/CA

2A
3

t0-03-2022 6,00,300.00
NA!'I\EET CARG &

ASSOCIATES
NA

5.

SUDESHNA
CADHAVE

FINANCE &ACCOUNTS,
(ASST MANAGER)

BACHELOR'S DE6REE.
coMMERCE/CS

27
4

0r-04-2019 5,43,300.00 NA

6.

DEEPAK
CHAURASIYA

FINANCE & ACCOUNTS.
(sR EXECUTTVE
(ACCOUNTS))

BACHELOR'S DE6REE.
COMPUTER
APPLICATION

2A 01-02-2014 4,83,000.00

7

TARUN SARATHE FINANCE &ACCOUNTS,
(ASST MANA6ER)

BACHELOR'S DECREE.
coMMERCE/CA 28

6
06-12"2021 4,18,500.00

MISHRA TIWARI &
ASSOCIATES,

BHOPAL

NA

8

AMOL
MAHESHWARXAR

FINANCE & ACCOUNTS,
(MANACER)

MASTER'S DECREE.
COMMERCE

50
27

01-72-2021 4,06,424.30 scc PRo,EcIs P

LTD,
NA

9
6ARIMA SINGH FINANCE & ACCOUNTS,

(EXECUTIVE)
BACHELOR'S DECREE.
COMMERCE

31
I

0r-04-2017 2,45,593.31
AECIS BPO NA

s,
No.

Employee Name Designation, nature
employment

of Educational
Qualification

Age
(year

s)

Exper
ience

Date of
loining

Rcmuneration paid
(Rs.) employer

g/oof Equity
shares held
in the

Ilclalion$,ith
Dir€ctor or
manager if



b) there are no employees employed throughout the financial year, who was in receipt ofremuneration for tiat year which, in the aggregate, was not less than one crore and
two lakh rupees;

c) tiere are no employees employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any pan of that year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less
than eight lal'.h and fifty thousand rupees per month;

dl there are no employees employed employee tiroughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt ofremuneration in thatyear which, in the aggregate, or as the
case may be, at a ftrte which, in tie aggregats, is in excess of tiat drawn by t}le managing director orwhole-time director or manager and hotds by himself or ilong with his
spouse and dependent children, not less than tr,vo percent of the equity shares of the company.

Forand on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors
DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

sd/-
Dilip Suryavanshi
Director
DIN:00039944

Placer Bhopal
Datet 22.O8.2O23



DBL Infra Asset Private Limited

Financial Statement for the year ended
31't March2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
Report on the Audit of Standalone lnd AS financial statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Standalone lnd AS financial statements of DBL lnfra
Assets Private Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at l\/arch 31
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive lncome, the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the Standalone lnd AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information. ("Standalone lnd AS Financial Statements").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Standalone lnd AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the lndian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 1 33 of the Act, read
with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("lnd AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at ltlarch 31 ,2023, its loss and total other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the Standalone lnd AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Audrting specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone lnd AS financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Standalone lnd AS financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on Standalone
lnd AS financial statements.

3. Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current year.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

2

Sr.
No.

Key Audit Matter Auditor Response

1 lnvestment in Subsidiary and Associate
Companies and its impairment and
lnvestment in Units of lnvlT

Our audit
following:

procedures jncluded the

.Obtained an understanding from the
emenr, assessed and testedmana

$d-



MUKUND
-M. CHITALE
& co.

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS

(Refer to Accountrng Policy under Note
1 .10 and 1.11 - "lnvestments in
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures" and "lnvestments in Units of
lnvlT's respectively)

The Company has equity investments in
subsid iaries and associate companies.

The Company accounts for equity
investments in subsidiaries and associate
companies at cost (sublect to impairment
assessment).

For investments carried at cost amounting
to Rs. 23,247.63 lakhs where an indication
of impairment exists, the carrying value of
investment is assessed for impairment and
where applicable an impairment provision
is recognrsed.

The Company accounts for investments in
Units of lnvlT at fair value through Other
Comprehensive lncome (FVOCI).

The accounting for investments is a Key
Audit Matter as the determination of
recoverable value for impairment
assessment involves significant
management judgement and estimates
such as future expected level of operations
and related forecast of cash flows, market
conditions, drscount rates, terminal growth
rate etc.

the design and operating effectiveness
of the Company's key controls over the
impairment assessment.

o Evaluated the Company's process
regarding impairment assessment by
involving auditor's valuation experts,
as applicable to assist in assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation
model including the independent
assessment of the underlying
assumptions relating to discount rate,

. terminal value etc.
oAssessed the carrying value of all
individually materiai investments,
where appljcable, to determine
whether the valuatrons performed by
the Company were within an
acceptable range determined by us
and the auditor's valuation experts.

. Assessed the fair value of lnvestment
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive lncome (FVOCI) to
determine whether valuation
performed by the Company is made at
fair value.

. Evaluated the cash flow forecasts
(with underlying economic growth rate)
by comparrng them to the approved

' budgets and our understanding of the
internal and external factors

. Checked the mathematical accuracy
of the impairment model and agreed
the relevant data on sample basis with
the latest budgets, actual past results
and other supporting documents.

. Evaluated the adequacy of the
disclosures made in the Standalone
lnd AS Financial Statements.

Based on the above procedures
performed, we did not identify any
sig nifica nt exceptions in the
management's assessment in relation
to the carrying value of equity
investments in subsidiary and
associates and to the fair value of
lnvestments measured at fair value
through orner comprehensive income
FVOCI

,-/-



MUKUND
.M. CHITALE
& co.

CHARTEREO
ACCOUNTANTS

4. lnformation other than the Standalone lnd AS financial statements and Auditor's report
thereon
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other informatron.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not
include the Standalone lnd AS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The
Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of our auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Standalone lnd AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we will not express any form of assurance thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial st.,tements, our responsibility is
to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone lnd AS
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read lhe other information included in the above reports, rf we conclude that there is
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance and determinethe actions underthe applicable laws and regulations. we have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management's responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS financial statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone lnd AS financial statements thai give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the company in accordance with the tnd AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the lnd AS accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the companies (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone lnd AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the Standalone lnd AS financrat statements, Company's Board of Directors is
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.

5
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6. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone lnd AS financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone lnd AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. t\/isstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users tafen on tne
basis of these Standalone lnd AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with standards on auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone lnd AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery. rnrentional omissions,
m isrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section ,143(3Xi) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materral uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the abillty of the company to
continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncerta jnty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Standalone lnd AS
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequare. to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's reporl.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease lo continue as a going
concern.

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone lnd AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone lnd AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governence regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audjt fandings, inciuding any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audtr

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, arrd to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where appticabte, retated safeguards. 

yp-
I
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most signiflcance in the audit of standalone lnd AS financial statements of
the cunent period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
i) As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2020 ("the Orde/) issued by the Central

Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
"Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order.

ii) As required by section ',l43 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of Standalone lnd AS
financial statements.

,ir-

b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive lncome,
the Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are

in agreement with the books of account.

d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone lnd AS financial statements comply with the lnd AS

specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2023,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on

March 3'1, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

Q Wth respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

iompany and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

'Annexure 2" to this report.

g) Wth respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

i-he requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion, the provision of
section '197 is not applicable as the Company is a private limited Company.

h) Wth respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 1 
.1 of the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone lnd AS

financial statements.
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otheMise, that
the lntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented that no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause iv (a) and iv(b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 1 1(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the flnancial year ended March 31, 2023.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 106655W

A^,hlt-
(S. M. Chitale)
Partner
M.No. 111383

UDIN: 231 1 1 383BGTWY5992
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16,2023
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Annexure I to the lndependent Auditor's Report ofeven date on the Standalone lnd AS financial
statements of DBL Infra Assets Private Limited

Referred to in paragraph [7(i)] under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of
our report of even date

According to the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

a) i) The Company does not have any items of Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-of-
use Assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ixaxi) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

ii) The Company does not have any lntangible Assets and hence reporting under clause
3(i)(axii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company does not have any items of Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-of-
use Assets and hence reporting under clause 3(i)(b) ofthe Order are not applicable to the
Company.

c) According to the information and explanations given by the Company, there are no
immovable properties and accordingly the reporting under clause 3(ixc) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

d) The Company does not have any items of Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use
assets and accordingly the reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no
proceedings have been initiated or is pending against the Company during the year for
holding any benami property underthe Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

a) The Company's does not hold any inventories and, accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits at any point of time during
the year, from banks orfinancial institutions and, accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has made investments in, provided guarantees and granted loans, secured or
unsecured, to Companies or any other parties during the year, in respect of which:

a) During the year, the Company has provided loans to its six associate companies and two
other companies; the details are as given below. The company has not provided any
guarantee, or security to any entity. The details are given below:

(i)

(iii)

lv

(ii)
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Rs. ln lakhs

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit
procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that terms and conditions on which the
unsecured loans have been granted are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, interest free
unsecured loans are given which are repayable on demand and thus there is no stipulated
repayment schedule of principal and interest.

d) Since the repayment schedule for loans granted is not stipulated, no loan is overdue.

e) There are no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during
the year, which has been renewed or extended orfresh loans granted to settle the overdues
of existing loans given to the same parties. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) (e) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

0 The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand. The details are
mentioned below:

Rs. ln Lakhs

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances
in nature
of loans

Aggregate amount granted /
provided during the year
- Subsidiaries

2,182.25- Associates
- Joint Ventures

3,440.30- Others
Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date in respect
of above cases
- Subsidiaries

12,632.76- Associates
- Joint Ventures

3,440.30- Others

Promoters Related
Parties

All parties

Aggregate amount of loans /
advances in nature of loans

16,073.0616,073.06- Repayable on demand (A)

- Agreement does not specify any
terms or period of repayment (B)

16,073.06Total (A+B)

100.00%Percentage of loans / advances in
nature of loans to the total loans

).d,

Particulars

16,073.06
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(iv) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us by the
management, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, with respect to unsecured loans granted, lnvestments made and guarantees
given.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi)

(vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is generally
regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Service Tax, lncome Tax, and any other statutory dues. As informed to us,
there were no dues on account of Provident Fund, Employees'State lnsurance, Sales Tax,
Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax and Cess.

There were no undisputed amounts in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees' State lnsurance, lncome Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise
Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues which were due for more than
six months from the date they become payable as at the year end.

b) According to the records examined by us and as per the information and explanations given
to us, there were no statutory dues as at March 3'l , 2023 which have not been deposited
on account of disputes.

(ix) a) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and records
examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the managemenl and records
examined by us, the Company has applied lhe term loans for the purpose for which the
loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Central
Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section '148(1) of the
Act, for the services of the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were sunendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1 961)
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(viii) of the Order ais not applicable to
the Company.

!*
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(xi)

(xii)

d) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not raised any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix) (e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting under clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x) ofthe
Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully,

partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause

3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and based

upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the Standalone lnd AS financial statements, we report that no fraud by the Company and

no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report,

c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, there are

no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order

is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, transactions with the related parties

are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have

been disclosed in the notes to the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, as required by the

applicable accounting standards.

(xiii)

l6t,-'

(x)
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(xiv) a) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our
verification of records of the company, the company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b) we have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
company during the year and till date of audit report, in determining nature, timing and
extent in our audit procedures.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
company has conducted any Non- Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, reporting under the clause 3(xvi)(b) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company is not a Core lnvestment Company (ClC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of lndia. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) ofthe order is not
applicable to the Company.

d) The Group does not have any clc as part ofthe group and hence reporting under clause 3
(xvi)(d) is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) According to the rnformation and explanations given to us by the management, the company
has incurred cash losses of Rs. 6060.54 lakhs during the financial year and Rs. 5595.59 lakhs
in the immediately preceding financial year covered by our audit.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the Statutory Auditors during the year

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone lnd AS financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating
that the company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We

'''d-

(x ix)

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them
as referred to in section 192 of the Act.

(xvi) a) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
provisions of section 45-lA of the Reserve Bankof lndia Act, 1934 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xviXa) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(xx)

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 106655W

6^ttlr.-
(S. M. Chitale)
Partner
M. No. 1'l 1383

UDIN: 231 1 1 383BGTWY5992
Place: Mumbai
Date: May'16,2023

further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date ofthe audit report and we

neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they
fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to set
aside any amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Accordingly, reporting

under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.
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Annexure 2 to the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone lnd AS
financial statements of DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
Referred to in paragraph f/(iiX0l under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
of our report of even date

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section {43 of
the Companies Act, 20'13 ("the Act")

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone lnd AS financial

statements of DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited ("the company') as of March 31, 2023 in

conjunction with our audit of the Standalone lnd AS financial statements of the Company for the

year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

controls based on the internal control with reference to Standalone lnd AS financial statements

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
,,Guidance Note") issued by the lnstitute of chartered Accountants of lndia" (lcAl). These

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of

its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness oflhe accounting

iecords, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with

reference to Standalone lnd AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit

in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section

i+S1tOy of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both

issuLO iy the lnstiiute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. Those Standards and the Guidance

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance aboui whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting

was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

internal financial controls system with reference to Standalone lnd AS financial statements and

their operating effectivenesi. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone

tnd AS financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls

with reference to Standalone lnd AS financiai statements, assessing the risk that a material

weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal

control based on the assess6d risk. The protedures selected depend on the auditois judgment,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone lnd AS financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to

Standalone lnd AS financial statements.

,$d-
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Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone lnd AS financial
statements
4. A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone lnd AS financial statements

is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of Standalone lnd AS financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
with reference to Standalone lnd AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that ('l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone lnd
AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone lnd AS financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone lnd AS
financial statements
5. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone lnd

AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone lnd
AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 106655W

Ot"hlr-
(S. M. Chitale)
Partner
M. No. 111383
UDIN: 231 1 1 383BGTWY5992
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16,2023

Opinion
6. ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls

system with reference to Standalone lnd AS financial statements and such internal financial
controls over tinancial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,2023, based on the
internal control with reference to Standalone lnd AS financial statements criteria established by

the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of

Chartered Accountants of lndia.
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

'1. Company Overviev,/ and Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 Company Overview

DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited (the'company') is domiciled in lndia with its registered oflice al Bhopal,
Madhya Pradesh, lndia. The Company has been incorporated under lhe provisions ot the Companies
Act, 1956. The company is presently in the business of development ot infrastructure facilities.

The company has changed its name from 'High Fly Airlines Private Limited'to'DBL lnfra Assets Private
Limited' on 26s July 2021.

'1.2 Basis of Preparation offinancial statements

1.3 Basis of accounting

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention,
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values in accordance with lnd
AS. Funher, the guidance notes/ announcements issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia (lCAl) are also considered, wherever applicable except to the extent where
compliance with other statutory promulgations override the same requiring a different treatment.

't.4 Presentation of Financial Statements

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes in equity are prepared

and presented in the lormat prescribed in the Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013 (lhe Act").
The disclosure requirements v,/ith respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement ol Profit and
Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule lll to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the
financial statements along with the other notes required to be disciosed under the notilied

Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015.

L5 Current I NonCurrent classification
An asset or Iiability is classified as 'current' when it satisfles any of the following criteria

(i) it is expected to be realized or settled, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the

company's normal operating cycle;

(iD it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(iiD it is expecled lo be realized or settled within twelve months from the reporting date; or

(iv) an asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for atleast twelve months from the reporting date

(v) in case ol liability, the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement
oI the liabilaty for atleast twelve months from the reporting date.

All other assets and liabilities are classitied as non-current.

I
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The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting
Standards (lnd AS) as notified by l\4inistry of Corporate Affairs under sections 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and

Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 2016.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31tr March 2023 were approved for
issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on '16'h May 2023.

o



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
{Formerly High Fly Airlines private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

All assets and liabilities have been classified as cunent or non-cunent as per the company,s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out above which are in accordance with Schedule lll to the Act.

Operatino Cvcle

Based on the nature of products and services of the company and the normal time between
acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalenls, the company has determined
its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as cunent
and non-cunent

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with lnd As requires management to make
estimales, judgmentrs and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures
of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. changes in
estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if
material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the tinancial statements.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or
complexity and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions lurning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information
about each of these estimates and judgements is included in the relevant note.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

A. Judgements in appllng accounting policies

The judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see note below) that the Company
has made in the process of applying its accounting policies and that have a significant effect
on the amounts recognised in these financial statemenls pertain to useful life of assets. The
Company is required to determine whether its intangible assets have indefinite or finite life
which is a subject matter ofjudgement.

B. Key source of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adiustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to
which components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful lives of tangible assets are
based on the life prescribed in Schedule ll of the Companies Act, 20'13. ln cases, where
the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule ll, they are based on
technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the
asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated
technological changes, manufacturers' warranties and maintenance support.

li\. cH/F
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DBL Infra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

b) Recognition and measuremenl of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary
escalation and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discounl rate is

determined based on the prevailing market yields of lndian Government Securities as at
the Balance Sheet Date for the estimated term of the obligations.

1.7 Functional and presentation currency

These linancial statements are presented in lndian Rupees (lNR), which is also the Company's

functional cuffency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise

indicated.

'1.8 Property, plant and equipment and Depreciation

Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized when it is possible that future economic benefits

associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably.

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing

costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulaled impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties

and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly

attributable cost of bdnging the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and resloring the site on which it is located.

lf significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are

accounted for as separate items (major components) of proPerty, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in prolit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated

with the expenditure will flow to the company. Advance given towards acquisition of ProPerty, Plant and

Equipment outstanding at the reporting date are disclosed as capital advances under Non-Current

Assets.

LIMI
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c) Recognition of deferred tax assets

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised.

d) Recognition and measurement of other provision

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of
the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances
known at the balance sheet date. The actual oumow of resources at a future date may
therefore vary from the figure included in other provisions.

e) Discounting of long{erm financial instruments

All financial instruments are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition.
ln case of financial instruments which are required to be subsequently measured at

amortised cost, interesl is accrued using the effective interest method.



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

lntangible assets that the Company controls and from which it expects future economic benefits are
capitalised upon acquisition at cost comprising the purchase price and directly attributable costs to
prepare the assets for its intended use.

lntangible Assets is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the same period

lntangible assets that have finite lives are amortised over their useful lives by the straighGline method.

l.l0 lnvestments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint ventures

lnvestments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Where an indicalion of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the
investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture, the difference between net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of profit and Loss.

L1l lnvestmenls in Units of lnvlT's

lnvestrnents in units of lnvlls are measured at fair value through other comprehensive lncome as per
lnd AS 109 'Financial lnstruments'. The company may, on lnitial recognition, make an inevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income (FVocl) on an
instrument by-instrument basis.

For equity investment classified as at FVOCI, all fair value changes on the instruments, excluding
dividends and interest are recognized in the OCl. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to prolit
or Loss, even on sale of lnvestments. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity.

,,l2 lmpairment of non-financial assets

$. Cr
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Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized in the
Statement of Prolit and Loss in the same period.

Deprecialion is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives using lhe straighlline method and is generally
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the company
will oblain ownership by the end of the lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which
asset is ready for use (disposed o0.

1.9 lntangible Assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or
cash generating unit (cGU) may be impaired. lf any such indication exists, the company estimates
the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cGU's
net selling price or its value in use. where the carrying amount of an asset or cGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3'l March 2023

ln assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

lmpairmenl losses are recognised in the slatement of profit and loss. They are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is nol reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent lhat the asset's carrying amount does not exceed lhe carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

1.13 Financial lnstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

lnitial Recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument. All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade

receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets that are not at fair value through profit or loss

are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measuremenl, financial assets are classified in two broad categoriesi
il Financial assets at fair value and ii] Financial assets at amortised cost. Where assets are measured

at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of prolit and loss [i.e fair

value through profit or loss], or recognised in other comprehensive income [i.e. fair value through other

comprehensive income]. A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held

within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows

and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Derecognition

The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from

the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a

transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset

are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retain substantially all of the risks

and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

lmpairment of financial asset

For impairment of financial assets, company applies expected credit loss (EcL) model. Following
financial assets and credit risk exposure are covered within the ECL model:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e 9'
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset

ir. cHi
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Noles to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

that result from transactions that are within the scope of lnd AS 115.

The company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables including receivables recognised under service concession arrangemenls.

The application of simplifred approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLS at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other flnancial assets and risk
exposure, the company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. lf credit risk has not increased significantly, 'I2-month ECL is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, then the impairment loss is
provided based on lifetime ECL.

Financial liabilities

lnitial recognition

The company initially recognises borrowings, trade payables and related financial liabilities on the
date on which they are originated.

All other financial instruments (including regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets) are
recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which the company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently canied at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
except for contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequenfly
measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year
from the Balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of
these instruments.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. when an existing financial iiability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and setfle the liabilities
simultaneously.

1.14 Leases

*

*

LIM'

0.

The Company assesses whether a contracl conlains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the righl to control the use of
an identifed asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves i-he use of an identified
asset.(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through lhe
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

MUMEAI



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a righlof-use asset ("ROU") and a

conesponding lease liability for all lease anangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of tvyelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease anangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The righfof-use assels are initially recognized at cost, which comprises lhe initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus

any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounls may
not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the
asset do€s not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. ln such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of lhe fulure lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not

readily determinable, using the incremental bonowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases.

Lease liabilities are remeasured with a conesponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the

Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination oPtion.

Lease liability and RoU asset have been separately presented in the Balance sheet and lease

payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

1.15 Proyislons and Contingencies

provisions involving subslantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a

present obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These are reviewed at each

balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Contingent liabilities are not

provided for and are disclosed by way of notes unless the possibility of oumow of resources

embodying economic benefits is remote

lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax

rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specilic to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost in the

statement of profit and loss.

1.16 Revenue recognition

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract

work, claims and incentive payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue

and can be measured reliably.

lf the oulcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised in

profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion ot the contract. The stage of completion is

assessed by reference to surveys of work performed. Otherwise, contract revenue iS recognised only

to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable.
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

Revenue related to construction or upgrade services provided under a service concession
arrangement is recognised based on the stage of completion of the work performed. Operation or
service revenue is recognised in the period in which the services are provided by the company.

lnterest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method.

1.17 Borrowing Cost

Bonowing cosls are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
cunency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an ad.iustment to inlerest costs) incurred in
connection with the bonowing of funds. Bonowing costs directly attributable to acquisilion or
conslruction of an asset which necessarily take a substanlial period of time to get ready for their
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other bonowing costs are recognised as
an expense in lhe period in which they are incuned.

1.1E Eamings per equity share

Basic eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to
the equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at
fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed to have been converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued al a later
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independenfly for each period.

'1.19 Cash Flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the compaiy are
segregated.

1.20 Employao Benefits

Short Term Employment benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. Benelits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of ex{ratia
are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amounl as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Post Employment Employee Benefits

Retirement benefits to employees comprise payments to govemment provident funds, gratuity fund
and Employees State lnsurance.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company's contribution to defined contributions plans such as Provident Fund, Employee State
lnsurance are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year when the contributi;ns to the
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Gratuity liability is delined benefit obligation. The Company's net obligation in respect of the gratuity
benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the cunent and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation by an independent actuary, using the projected unit credit method, which recognizes each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each
unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the plesent value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the
market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Remeasurement of the net delined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive lncome. Net interest expense (income) on the
net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure lhe net
defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking
inlo account any changes as a result of contribution and beneflt payments during the year. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in beneflt
that relates to past service or lhe gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in Statement of
Profit and Loss. The Company remgnises gains and losses on the settlement of a delined benefit plan
when the settlement occurs.

Actuarial gains/losses are recognized in the other comprehensive income

1.21 lncome Taxes

Current Tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
curent tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. lt is measured using tax rates (and tax
laws) enacted or subslantively enacted by the reporting date.

Cunent tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence thal the Company will pay income tax higher than that computed under MAT,
during the year that MAT is permitted to be set off under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (specified year). ln
the year, in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset the said asset is
created by way of a credit to the Statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement.

The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of
MAT credit entitlement to the e)dent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the
Company will pay income tax higher than MAT during the specified year.
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statemenls for the year ended 31 March 2023

respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the
respective Funds.

Defined Benefit Plans



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or
expense in the period that includes the enactmenl or the substantive enactment date. A deferred
income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. The company
offsets current tax assets and current lax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it inlends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The income tax provision for the interim period is made based on the
best estimate of the annual average tax rate expected to be applicable for the full financial year.

1.22 Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is highly probable.

1.23 Fair value measurement

. ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or
o ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

For cash and other liquid assets, the fair value is assumed to approximate to book value, given the
short-term nature of these instruments. For those items with a stated maturity exceeding twelve
months, fair value is calculated using a discounted cash flow methodology.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

. Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is direclly or indirectly observable

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is s ignificant to the fair value

I
BA

c

cH/

M

ct)

MI

*
0.

I
NI

tr
o

Assets designaled as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount at designation
and fair value less costs to sell.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability lakes place either:

measurement is unobservable



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statemenls for the year ended 3'l March 2023

'1.24 Recent accounting developments - lnd AS amendments which will be effective from 1st April
2023t

On 31st March 2023, Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendments to certain lnd AS. These
amendments will be effective from April 1,2023 and will not have material impact on Company's
financial statements for the financial yeat 2022-23. The following is a summary of the amendments:

.ln lnd AS 101: - Relating to the exceptions to retrospective application of lnd AS on first time
adoption

r ln lnd As 102: - Relating to the fair value of the equity instruments not being possible to be
estimated reliably

o ln lnd AS '103: - Relating to the date on which the transferee obtains control of the transferor.

.ln lnd AS '107: - Relating to disclosure of material accounting policy information about the
measurement basis (or bases) for financial instruments used in preparing the financial
statements.

.ln lnd AS 109: - Relating to a combination of entities or businesses under common control as
described in Appendix C.

. ln lnd AS 115: - Relating to certain corrections

. ln lnd AS 1: - Relating to the following

Reference to the definition of'Accounting Policies' contained in lnd AS 8
Requirement regarding disclosure of material accounting policy information instead of
disclosures about significant accounting policies
Clarification about when an accounting policy information would be regarded as material
The judgements, apart from those involving estimations that management has made in the
process of applying the entity's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

. ln lnd AS 8: - Relating to change in the definition of accounting estimates and further clarifications
relating to the same.
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on lhe lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the
fair value hierarchy as explained above.

.ln lnd AS l2: - Relating to exception to the recognition of deferred tax liability/ asset arising from
a transaction which at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit (tax loss); and at the time of the transaction, does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

o ln lnd AS 34: - Relating to disclosure of material accounting policy information in interim financial
statements.



OBL INFRAASSETS PRIVATE LIM]TED
(Formerly High Fly Airlh.s Private Limited)

?{otes lo financial stat.m.nts for the yea. €nded 31 March 2023

Note !2 TradeRecoivables
ln

2.1 There are no trade receivables due from any director or any officer of tie Company, eilher severally o.joinlly wilh any olher person, or from any
f rms or privale companies in lltich any director is a partner, a director or a member.

2.2 Tmde Receivables aoeino schedul€:

in

c\l T,iHI

cc

i/i 8At
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31 llatch 2022
}{on Curant
TEde Receivables conside.ed goodsecured
Trad€ Rec€ivablss consadored good-lJnsecured

Total Non Current

Current
Trade Receivables considered good-Secu.ed
Trade Rec€ivables considered oood-Unsoqrrcd (Related Pa.tv) 153.15 74.66

153.15 74.66Tota, Current

153.15 74.66Tot6l

Outsrandins forfollowins periods l'om due date ot paym€nt
Less than 6 6 months -

'l -2 years 23 years Mole than 3 Total

As rt March 3'1.2023
(i) Undisputed Trade .eceivables - considered oood 153.15 153.15

(ii)
Undisputed Trade receivables - which have signilicant increase

liii) Undisouted Trade receivables - credil imoaired
{iv) Oisputed Trade Receivables considered oood

(v)
Dasput6d Trad6 aeceivablos - which have signillcant inclease in
crsdit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade rec€ivables - credit imoaired
Total 153.15 153.15

Outstandins forfollourinq periods from due date ofDayment
L6ss than 6

1-2 years 2-3 yeals More than 3
Total

As at arch 31,2022
Undisputed Trade receivables - considered qood 74.66 74.66

(ii)
Undispuled Trade rocoivables - which have signilScanl increase
in caedat risk

{iii) Undisouted Tlade receivables -credit imDaired
{iv) Dispuled Trad6 Receivables considered qood

(v)
Dispuled Trade receivabl€s - which havs signifcant incrsase in
credit risk

(vi) Dispuled Trade rec€{vables -credit impaired
Total 74.66 74.65

31 lilarch 2023

fIIl) l



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE UIIIIITEO
(Formedy High Fly Al.lines Private Limited)

Notes lo linancial Etatements for the y€arended 31 Ma.ch 2023

Note :- 3lnveslments

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
3l March 2023

No of Shares No of Shares

1

Non4orent lnvastmenl
Unquoted Equlty sharea ofSubsidiary Company at cost
DBL Rewa Siddhi Highways Pvl Limited 1,11,727 3,170_97

Total 1,11,727 3,'170.97

2

3

4
5

6
7

I
9

10

11

12

Unquoted Equity share3 o, A33ociate Companies at cost
OBL Bangalore Nidagatta Highways P!,t Limited
DBL Bellary Byrapura Highways Pvt Limited
DBL Byrapura Challakhere Highways A/t Limited
DBL Gofiar Khairatunda Highways A/t Limiled
DBL Nidagatta Mysore Highways hn Limited
Dhrol Bhadra Highways Limited

Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Ad Ltd
Narenpur Pumea Highways Pvt Ltd

Pathrapalli Kathghora Highways A/t Ltd

Repallewada Highways Ljmited
DBL R6wa Siddhi Highways Pvt Limited

4,17,772

62,348
1,32,583

92,941

1.01,071
1,99,205

33,517

11,189.09

1,796.41

2,351.81

3,332.16

1,629.90

1,997.00

951.26

1,58,905

3,67,776
3,57,730

3,46,993
4,17,772

62,U8
90,396

71,896

76,581

88,534

'10,730.67

2,677.36
1,989.40

1,407.12

11,189.09

1,796.41
1,237 _00

1,161.30

1,176.04

Total 10,39,437 23,247.63 20,38,931 35,119.61

13

Unquoted Units ot lnvfT al Fair Value lhrough Other
Comprehensivo lncom. ( OCI )

Units ofShrem lnvlT (Refer Note 3(c)) 3,24,O1,142 36,937_30

Total 3,34,40,579 60,'r84.93 21,50,558 39,290.58

Total Non-current
Total Cunent
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

60,184.93

60.18,1.93

39,290.58

39,290.58

3(e) ln all the above investrnents, few shares are held by individuals as nominees of the crmpany

3(b) Disdosure pu6uant lo lnd AS 27'Separate Fiancials Statements'

Sr. No. Name ot the lnvest€€ Compenl63 Prlnclpal Placs of
guslne3g

31 )ne.ch 2023 31 March 2022
Proportion of

Ownership
lnteresl

Proportlon ol
Ownership

lnt6rest
Subsidiary companies

1 DBL Rewa Siddhi Highways Pvt Limited lndia 70.00%
Assoclat6 companies

2 DBL Bangalore Nidagatta Highways Pvt Limited lndia 49.00%
3 OBL Bellary Byrapura Highways Pvt Limited lndia 49.00%
4 DBL Byrapura Challakhere Hiqhways P!4 Limited lndia 49.00%
5 DBL Goftar Khairatunda Highways Pvt Limiled lndia 49.000/0

6 DBL Nidagatta Mysore Haghways hd Limited lndia 49 00% 49.0070

7 Dhrol Bhadra Hiohwavs Limited lndia 30.12% 35.007.
8 Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Pvt Ltd lndia 49.00% 49.00%
I Narenpur Pumea Hiqhways P\,,t Ltd lndia 49.00% 49.00"/o

10 Pathrapalli Kathghora Highways Pvt Ltd lndia 49.00% 49.00%
11 Repallewada Hiqhways Limited lndia 49.00% 49.000/.
12 DBL Rewa Siddhi Hiqhways P\,.t Limited lndia 21.00%

in Lakhs
Particula13 31 li,larch 2023 31 $arch 2022

33,760.25

1124.19)
3,301.25

36,937.30

At the beginning of lhe year

Add: lnvest nent during the year (,18,28,702 unils atNAV{101.31
and 2.75.72,440 units at NAV4104.70 )

Less: Retum ofCapitaldudng the year

Add: Fair valuation as at year end (Refer Note 22)

OuGtanding rt lh. and oI the ysal

NI

o

3 (c) lnveslment in Unquoted units of lnvlT

3l March 2022



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

Nole :- 4 Loans

4.1

Rs. ln Lakhs

The Company has given interest free loan to its related parties based on the exemption given under
section 186(11) of the Companies Act 2013.

The loans are given for expansion and general purpose of the business.

The loan given is repayable by the related parlies'on demand'.

As on 31 March 2023 Rs in Lakhs

As on 3'l March 2022 Rs in Lakhs

$. ct,

I,'lUMBAI
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4.2

4.3

!,CC

31 March 2022Particulars 31 March 2023
Current
Loan to Subsidiary Companies
- DBL Rewa Sidhi Highways Pvt Ltd

Loans lo Associale Companies
- DBL Bangalore Nidagatta Highways Pvt Ltd
- Bellary Byrapyra Highways Pvt Ltd
- DBL Byrapura Challakere Highways Pvt Ltd
- DBL Gorhar Khairatunda Highways Pvt Ltd
- DBL Nidagatta Mysore Highways hd Ltd
- Dhrol Bhadra Highways Ltd
- Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Pvt Ltd
- Narenpur Purnea Highways Pvt Ltd
- Pathrapali Kathghora Highways Pvt Ltd
- Repallewada Highways Ltd

1,612.90
3,504.50
2,441.19

902.00
1,405.00

3,278.17
162.'13

6,247.06
2,1U.49
3,577.01
3,325.93
2,767.17
'l,612.90

1,322.25
2,44',t.19

902.00
'1,405.00

4,530.00

TotalCurrent 16,073.06 30,264.99

Amount of loan
oulstanding

Promoter
Directors
KMPs
Related parties 16,073.06 100.00%

Total 16,073.06 100.00%

Type of Borrower Amount of loan
outstanding

Percentage to the
tolal Loans and

Advances

Promoter
Directors
KMPS
Related parties 30,264.99 100.000/.

Total 30,264.99 100.00%

x

4.4 Loans and advances to related Darties:

Loans lo Olher Related Parlies
- DBL Poondiyankuppam Highways Pvt Ltd.
- DBL lnfratech Pvt Ltd

Type of Borrower Percentage to the
total Loans and

Advances



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes lo financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note :- 5 Cash And cash Eouivalents

Nole :- o Other Financial Assets

Note :- 7 Other current Non Currenl Assets

.ln Lakhs

ln Lakhs

.ln Lakhs

3l March 2023 31 March 2022Particulars
3.1 6 3.16

92.97
169.42

Cash in hand
Balances with Banks :

- Cunent Account
- Fixed Deposits

264.55 265.55Total

31 Match 20223l March 2023
12.O3
(5.00)

5.00

7.03
9.69

Advance Recoverable
Less: Provision ior Ooubtful Advance ( Refer Note 20 )

Withheld Money
16.72 s.00Total

31 March 202231 March 2023Parliculars

442.56
0.67

1'10.90

0.67

111.57 443.23

62.98

87.',14
0.'17

172.6',1

9.72

89.65

12.65

Currenl
Tax Deducted at source and Advance Tax (net of provision for
taxes)
Duties and Taxes
Advance to Vendor
Unamortised Processing Charges

322.90Total Currenl

434.47 555.26Total

!Nr
*

80.61
180.79

Particulars

s.00

Non€urrenl
Unamortised Processing Charges
MAT Credit Entiftment

Total Non{urrenl

't 12.03



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Fo]me,ly Hlgh Fly Airlin.3 Prlv.te Limited)

NotG3 to financlal atatomonls toi l}6 yeer andad 3l alarch 2023

NoG t: Eoultv Shr.e C.olt l
Rs. ln Lakhs

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Autho,isod .h.re Capital
50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
(P.Y. 50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)

500.00 500.00

500.00 500.00

lssu.d, subscribed and tully p.id.up shares
20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. '10 each
(P.Y. 29,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 'lO each

200.00 200.00

Total 200.00 200.00

a) Ta.mrrlghts sttached lo oquity lhares

b) Reconciliation of th€ no. of shares and amounts oulstanding at the beginning and at the end ofthe repo.ting year:
ln Lakhs

Pa.ticulars 3'l March 2023 31 ltatch 2022
Numbers Amounl Numbers Amount

At the beginning of the year
ls,sued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

20,00,000 200.00 20,00.000 200.00

20,00,000 200.00 20,00,000 200.00

Details o, shareholders holdin more lhan 5% shares in the Com

i. The Company has only ono class of shares refered lo as equity shares havihg a face value of Rs.lO each. Equity holder of €quity
shargs is entidod lo one voto p€r share

ii. t00% shares are held by the holding company Dilip Suildcon Umited.

iii. l0O% shar6 of the company has been pledged in favour of th€ Debenlure tust€e i.e. Axis T.vstee Services Limited.

c
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Numbers % of holding Numbers % of holdins
Equity shares o, Rs. 10 each fully paid
Dilip Euildc.n Limited' 20,00,000 100.00% 20.00,000 100.006/0

'm shares are held by individuals as nominees of the Company

Details of sharehol in the

Note 9: Other Equilv

i. Retained Earni ln Lakhs

ii. other Comprehensive lncome
ln Lakhs

Particulars 3'l March 2023 31 ]tarch 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year

Remeasuremenl gain on revaluation of
2,470.39

at the 6nd of the 2,470.39

3l March 2023 31 Match 2022

Promoter Name Irlo. ol Shares % of total shares No. of Shares % of total 3hares

% Change
du.ing the

yeaJ
Dilip Buildcon Limiled 20,00,000 100.000% 20,00,000 100.00%

20,00,000 100-00% 20,00,000 100.00%

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at lhe beginning of lhe year (s,600.48) (4.89)
- Profit for the year (6,059.46) (5,595.59)

Balance atthe end ofthe year ('t1,6s9.9,r) ,600

tr
o-

+
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# Rotainad Eamings: Retained eamings are the prolils that the Company has earned till a,ate
less dividends or other distributaons paid lo shareholdeG.
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DBL INFRAASSETS PRIVATE UMITEO
(Formorly Hlgh FlyAirlines Private Llmlt6d)

l,lotes to financial .tatemenE fo. the year ended 31.talch2023

Not€ t0: Bo.rowinos
ln Lak

10.1 Details of terms of repayment and securities provided in respect ofsecured term loans are as under:

Non Current Borrowinos- Non Convertible Debentures

On 31st August, 2021 end 2alJ|, October 2021, the Company had issued 5,827 and 1,200 Non
Convertible Debentures respectively on private placement basis at an issue pdce of Rs. 10 lakhs per
debenture for an aggregate consideralion of Rs. 70,270.00 lakhs. The Debentures of lhe Company
are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange.The Company had used the proceeds in accordance with the
objects stated in the Placement Documenl.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2022, the Company has redeemed NCDS aggregating to Rs.

2700.05 lakhs by reducing the face value of NCD from Rs. 1 0,00,000 each to Rs. 9,61 ,576 each.

The se{udties orovided is as follows:
i) Pledge over 100% equityofthe lssuer.

ii) Pledge on 49% equity of the Specified Pojecls to b€ created by the lssuer (after tansfor o,
,19% oquity of th6 Specmed Projocis by DBL lo lhe lssuer) .

(iii) Pledge over inveslnent in units ol Shrem lnvlT and exclusive pledge has been created as
per lhe t6ms of lhe lmnsaction as set out under relevant dause of the Debenture Trusl
Deed.

(iv) Corporate guarantee/ Parent Undertaking from Dilip Buildcon Limited.

(v) A charge by,ray of a deed of hypolhecaton on the (i) debt service reserve a@ount to be
maintained by the lssuer; (ii) the presenl and future identifi6d bank accounts in whici all the
Receivables of the lssuer shall be cr€ditod induding allfuture sale proceeds lo be received
by lssuor upon sale oI the Sp€cifed Projects either into the private lnvestrnent Trust ('lnvif)
or to any third party, and (iii) Company lntra Group Loans availgd by the Specified Projec{s
from lhe lssuer.

The details of redemolion is as iollows:
i) First Face value redemption shall be on the date falling 39 monlhs after lhe Deemed Date of

Allohnent and thereafter eactl subsequent redemption shall be made et in accordance with
the Redemption Schedule. How€ver, as p€r the relevant dause men(oned in the Debenfure
Trust Deed,Company has the oplion to voluntarily redeem lhe Debenturcs and basad on the

same, the company has redeemed debenlures amounting to Rs 2700.05 lakhs during the

ii) The debenturcs are to be redeemed al premium of Rs. 33,523.90 lakhs at the end of the
tem and the company has made appropriate pmvision in the books of ac@unt as p€r

effective interest rate method mentioned in relevant lndian Accounting Standard.

Particulars 3l March 2023 31 March 2022
Non-curant

(.) Sccu.€d
on Convartbla Dab.nlur..

t3% 7027 Non convertible Debenture of Rs.
9,61.576 sach (P.Y. 13% 7027 Non convertible
Debentu.es of Rs. 10,00,000 each)

67,569.S5 70,270.00

Total Non4urront Borrowings

Less: Curenl matudties of non-arnent borrowinos

67,569.95 70,210.00

Non-current borrowlnqs 67,569.95 70,270.00

Cuarent
(a) Secu.cd

Cunent mafurilies of Non Cunent boarowings

(a) t nsecured
From Related Parties 2.507.06 1.12
Current borowlng3 2,507.06 1_12

Total boarowinqs 70,077.O1 f0,?71.12

ACc
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DBL IiIFRAASSETS PRIVATE LIMITEO
(Forrrlsrly High FlyAlrlines Privats Llmlted)

l{otes to financlal atatements for the year endsd 31 Uarch 2023

Note 10: Boraowinos

iii) The details of redemption of principalvalue of debentures are as follows

Sr.No. Redemption Dales
Amounl (in INR

lrkhs) Redemption (%)

1 28-Nov-24 8,446.25 12.50%
2 28-Feb-25 8,446.25 12_50%
3 28-May-25 4,446_25 12.fi%

28-Auq-25 8,446.25 12.500/"
28-Nov-25 8,446.25 12_50%

6 28-FeE26 8,446.2s 12.500/.
7 28-May"26 8,446.25 12.50./.
8 28-Auq-26 8,446.20 12.50%

Total 67,569.9s '100.00%

10.2 E9!.alE!9.8S9b9Cg.q
(i) F:nanclal Year 2022-23

ln

ln

(ii) Financial Yoar 2021-22

Particulars I yea. 1-3 years Beyond 3 Years Total Amount
13% Non Convertible Debentures 17,567.50 52,702.50 70.270_OO
Total 17,567.50 52,?02.50 70,270.00

10.3 There is no pending salisfaction of charge in relation to borowings which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies belond the
slatutory pedod.

10.4 The Company has not created Debenture Redemption Reserve du6lo inadequacy of profits dudng the year.

\\. cHi

IIUI,4BAI
?

ACc

Particulars I year l -3 years Beyond 3 Years lTotal Amount
16.892.5013% Non Convertible Debentures

Total 16,892.50 s0,677.,{5 | 57,55s.9s
@@

*

*

e Llltl



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note 1'l : Other Financial liabilities

11.1 Sundry Creditors ageing:

As at March 31 2023

As at March 31 202?

Rs. ln Lakhs

Rs. ln Lakhs

Rs. ln Lakhs)

$. ql//

MI,JMBAI
o

I

DA

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

2.26
31.67

0.58
18.38
34.69

3.41

1 .15
0.58
0.10

20.28

Current
Accrued Expenses
Creditors for Expenses (Refer Note I 1.1 )
Sitting Fees Payable
Retention money
Withheld Money
Statutory Dues

91.01 22.11Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
years Total

MSI\4E0)
J l.o/(ii) Others 31 .67

(iii) Disputed dues - N/SN4E

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 2-3 years More than 3
years TotalParticulars

MSME(i)
0.58(ii) Others 0.58

(iii) Disputed dues - l\4SME

.ai^(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Particulars

Particulars

1-2 years



OBT I FRA /IIISETS PRIVATE LITITEO
lFmrn Hdh Flv xilB P.n .r. Ltrtt dr

ibt- b nreli .nh.rnb tor tn. ur 6.Ld t'l lrrch 2t Et

{{.12: D.llrEtl Tu

a. Amod rcognb.d ln p.oft o. b.t

f..ch 2022

Curcnl incofi. lar chaE6

R.Lung lo odt iMuon Dd .Nrlal of !.npd.ry ditt@@s (83r 94)

0.04

lncoh. t r .rF.... Epdt d ln th. rLt m.t ol p@fl (831,9,1)

l{. R&@clll.tlon ot .ff.ctivc i.r hl.

Th. t ta b.br.,q,bir.ltr dincuc.6 D€lvi!..r tE .rpcld tr, .4r.!., !t 0r lidi- St t o.y t r Ei6 ot
2G* (P.Y.: 26A) Frd. !, dDo.d. qili(E tn lndL. orr t raL prolit' wtdd t r h'd in tidi., rd lio
collle.Irt d br .r0..!. b. !!. Fs:

I..ct 2022
A.cdndne p.oft b.to.. trr
&rllc.hr. hco a.r rn

CoDpur.d.rp.ct dl.x.&.n..

O.lW Ts op.n!.! €..ount€d in bool6
rlt En cl ol .xp.ir. rcl allorr.d fotr ta, FJrpo*
ru d.d of O.C{!d.don .. p6r lllore Td Acr

(6,000.5a)

26.t 0*

(83191)

(5,595.54)

26.00%

004

(131.94)

lncom. t r .v.n.. oport d ln rh. .t t @ln of p@f,t {611.94)

OFnhr Ad.n6 At ll
1,20212

Clo.lng B.Lnc. ll ch
3r,2023

Pto/i.k r lor oe..e .lo6d ft, br pqpo5. d p.yrsi (1.0!)

ToLl O.l6r.d T.! A!..ts IA! (1_08 1,08

mmd T.r Ll.blltd..
Ol,l.6n@ l. onyng wtu and Lx base ot lnvest €n|!

(830 86) 830.36

Tot l o.l.r.d I.r Ll.bllidd [B] 1830.r6) 830.66

o.r.r.d t r U.bllhl.. (t{.1) l^€l {1,06) 8!0.86 829.78

Nol.13: oln.r Cuncnt ll.bllili..

288 823

2.33 8.23

Not ,/t: Provltlotr.

Povi3on ior Com@.$cd r.b*n6s

PovBion lor R.&mDrion ol Oeb.ntu6s

Provalon b Cqnp..tr.t .l Alr.'D3

0.67
3.00

t5.t I1.50 5,55506
i5,fi5.1, 5.55s.06

018

o6r

15,r15.78 5,555.06

o.04

108



For the year ended
3l lrarch 2023

Fo. the year anded
31March 2022

Particulars

1,064.08 431.51

1,064.08 431.51Total

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LII'ITED
(Formerly Hlgh Fly Alrllnes Prlvate Llrnltedl

Noles to financial 3latements tor the year onded 31 March 2023

Not€ 15 : Rovenu€ faom Ooerations

Note 't6 : Other lncome

Note 18 : Finance Costs

Note 19 : Emplovee B6n6fit Expenses

Note 20 : Other Exp6nses

ln Lakhs

Rs. ln Lakhs)

ln Lakhs

ln La

(Rs, ln Lakhs

(Rs. ln Lakhs)

r\. cr,/ 14

1
BAIMUM

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 Match 2022

Parliculars

58.61
0.39

20.47
19.5'l

11.33(i)
(ii)
(iiD

(iv)

lnteresl lncome on deposil with Banks
lnteresl on lncome tax refund
lnleresl lncome on lnvlT Units
Dividend lncome on lnvlT Units

98.98 t't.33Total

For the year ended
31 Match 2022

For lhe year ended
31 March 2023

Particulars

960.21 405.62subcontraclor charges

405.62Total 960.21

For the year .nded
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Particulars

0.35
0.19

5,555.06
74.U

(D

(iD

(iii)
(iv)

Bank Charges
lnterest on TDS
Provision for redemplion premium on debentures
Unamortised Processing Charges

5,630.249,?28.32Total

For the year and€d
31 ]tarch 2022

For the year 6nd6d
3l irarch 2023

Particulars

55.82
0.94
3.43
1.58

(D

(i0
(iii)
(iv)

Salaries, Allowances, Bonus, etc.
Compensated Absences expense
Gratuity expense
Employer Contribution lo welfare fund

61.77Total

For th6 year ehded
31 March 2023

For the year end6d
l'l arch 2022

Padiculars

2.85
3.44
0.03
0.03
o.44
2.30
1.42

30.03
'15.69

5.00

1.00
o.02
0.06

0.12
0.10
0.84
0.21
0.17

(i)
(ii)
(iiD

(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viiii)
(ix)
(x)

Audit Fees (Refer Note 23)
Miscellaneous expense
lnterest on Dkect and lndirect taxes
Professional Tax paid
Tour and Travel Expenses
Director sitting fees
Advertisement Expenses
Professional and Consultancy charges
Legal Fees
Provision for Doubtul deposit (R6fer Note 6 )

2.5261.23Total t

I

e

0-

ACc

Not6 17 : Costs oI Construction

Contract Receipts

0.'18

9,556.,t4
171.70



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE UMTTED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to llnancial statements for ths year ended 3l March 2023

Noto 2l: Exceptional ltems
Rs. ln Lakhs

2l.l: Exceptional item

The Company'DBL lnta Assels Private Limited" ('DIAPL') along wilh its holding company'Dilip Buildcon Limited'
('DBL') had executed a non-binding Term Sheet, with'Shrem lnvlT" (an infrastructure investment trust, registered
under lndian Trust Act 1882 wath Securities and Exchange Board of lndia) on January 21, 2022, for kansfening their
investment in Equity Share Capital and Promote/s Unsecured Loan in respect of len subsidia.ies (Hybid Annuity
Model ('HAM') projects). Equity transfer to Sh.em lnvlT shall be completed in a progressive manner after the
completion ol the projecls, subject to receipt of approvals from the respective project lenders and NHAI. The
consideration for the transfer of shares will be received in form of Units of the lnvit.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, 49yo Equity Share Capital of DBL Bellary Byrapura Highways Private Limited,
DBL Gorhar Khairatunda Highways Private Limited, DBL Bangalore Nidagatta Highways Pvt Ltd,DBL Byrapura
Challakere Highways Pvt Ltd and DBL Rewa Sidhi Highways Pvt Ltd was tEnsfe.red to Shrem lnvlT against which
48,28,702 Units at a price of Rs. 101.31 W unlt and 2,75,72,440 Units at a price of Rs. 104.70 per unit in aggregate
value of Rs. 33,760.25 lakhs were recaived as consideration and the Promote/s Unsecured Loans was repaid by the
respective companies by way o, bank transfer. The Company has eamed proft of Rs. 3,587.88 lakhs on all these
iransactions and disclosed as a part of'exceptional item' in the statement ol Prolit and Loss.

Note 22: Remeasurement qain on revaluation of lnvestment
Rs. ln Lakhs

.ln Lakhs

Note 24: Earninq oer Share (Basic and dilutedl

Particulars
For the year ended

3'l March 2023
For the year ended

31 March 2022

Profit on Sale of Associates (Refer note 21.1) 3.587.88

Total 3,587.E8

Particulars For the year ended
3'l March 2023

For th€ year ended
31 lAerch 2022

Remeasurement gain on revaluation o, lnvesknent in lnvlT 3,301.25

Total 3,30'!.2s

Particulars
For the year ended

3l March 2023
For the year ended

3'l March 2022
Statutory Audit
For taxation matters

2.85 1.00

Total 2.45 1.00

Parliculars For the year ended
3l March 2023

For the yoar ended
31 March 2022

a) Profit / (Loss) for the year belore tax (Rs. ln Lakhs)
Less : Attributable Tax thereto (Rs. ln Lakhs)
Proft / (Loss) after Tax (Rs. ln Lakhs)

b) Weighted average numbgr ofequity shares used as
d6nominatoa

c) Basic earning per share of nominal value of Rs 10/- each

(6,060.58)
1.'12

(5,595.54)
(0.04)

(6,0s9.46)

20.00,000

(302.97) 1279.78)

hi

1r. CH/ LIMI

Note 23: Remuneration to Auditors

(s,59s.s9)

20,00,000



DAL FRAASSETS PRIVATE LI ITED
(Forn.rt Blsh F Alrlln.. Prlvat Lllrllt.d)

Not.i to flnincl.l .trt m.nt. tor th. y€.r .nd.d 31 Mrrch 2023

!et!lli3tE&C-c!e-!!!!!!!!e!

Nrms of relrlod plnio3 Naturo ol relatlonship
Ollip Bull&on Llmitod
Dlllp Suryavaruhi

Sa&h Chsndra Psnd€y

DBl lnlr.t6ch Priver6 Limit6d
DBt Poondivankuooam Hiohwavs Pvt Lld

Chior Financial Oiflcsr

Nrm6 of r.lit d prrti€. 31{!,2023 3.r{3,2021
Naturo of r.lationship

DBL Nidaqslta MvsoG Hhnwavs Pvl Limil€d 49.00%
Dhrol Bhadra Hiohwavs Limil€d 30.12%
DodaballaDu Hoskot€ Hiqhwavs Pvl Lld 49.00r/,
NE.€nour Pum6a Hiohwavs Pvt Ltd 49-00%
PahlaDalli Kaihohora Hkhwavs Pvt Ltd 49.00%
Ropall6wada Hiohways Limit6d
OBL Rewa SiddhiHiohways Pvl Limil6d

N!m. or rel.l.d p.rll..
Nrture ot rolltion.hip % Sh..o Holding

DBf R6wa SiddhiSiqhwavs Pvl Limitsd 70.oov"
DBL Sanqalorc Nidaaatu Hiqhways Pvl Limitsd 49.000/,
DBL BelbtuAvmoura Hiohwavs Pvt Limitsd
DBL Bvrapura Challakhoa Hiqhways Pvl Limiled
DBL Nidaoalla Mvsors Hiqhwavs Pvt Limited
DBL Gofiar Khairalunda Hiohwavs Pvt Limited
PathraDali Kathoho€ Hiohwavs Pvl Ltd
Naronpur Pum6a Hiqhwavs Pvt Ltd
R6Dall6w6da Hiohwavs Lld
DodaballEDur Hoskolo Hiqhwavs Pvl Ltd 49.00%
Dhrol thadra HEhways Lld 35.00%

*

NI

o-
o I

\. cH/

MUMBAI
b

Asseials Comoanv I 2r.00i.

T------- 4s oo% ---
l----- 4roo% ----
| 49.00?" I

I 49 ooo/" I
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M00'/^ I

| 49.00% I



DBI INFRAASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Fom.rly Hlgh FlyAlrllnd Prtv.!. Umn.d)

ot . to fln.ncl.l !t i.m.ntr for th. y.rr.nd.d 3l Mlrch 2023

l{ot 25: i.l.t d orrtv k.ns.ctlon

D.t.lt. of r.l!1..1 prdy trin!.ctlon.

N.turc ol lraGactlon Y6ar ondod 31 March 2Oi3

Holdins

o

Trlntlctlo.! durlng lh. y6rr

Stl. ol lnwstm.nt
OBL Rowa SiddhiHighoays Pvi Limitsd
DaL gan9alo.6 Nidag6fla Hlghw6 s Pvt Limitod
DBI aolary Bylapula HighwaF Pvl Limited
DaL Ay6plla Chalrakhsr€ Highways PvtLimitsd
DAt Gofia. Khanaiunda Hlohwavs Pvl Limilod

2,2'19.71
10,730.67

2,677.36

1,989.40
1,E07.12

2,219.71

10,730.67

2,477.36
1,989.40

1,807.12
19,121.26 19,.24.26

(ii) lnw.tmonl durlno th. v.ir
Oodaballapur Hoskoia Highways Pvr Lrd

Nar€npu. Purnea Highways Pvl Lld
Path,apalri Kaihgho€ Highways Pvl Ltd

1,114.81

976.94

468.60

420.91

3,30'r.3r 1.31

(ii)
162.13

3,274.17
2,102.252.142.25

6,247.06

2,134.49

3,577.01

3,325.93

2,767.11

6,24f .06

21y.49
3,577.01

3,325.93

2,767.17

4,530.00

r,612.90

1,322.25

2,441.19

902.00

4.530.00

1,6r2.90
't,322.25

2,441.'19

902.00

00
2,1A2,25 3,/140.30 5,622.55 4,530.00 25,735.00 30,265.00

N\. CH/

7
MUMBAI

+

2022

1,114.81

976.94

46E.60

420.97

DBL lntrslsch Priv6t6 Limil6d
OBL Poondiyankuppam HiOhways Pvt Lld.
Oodaballarur Hoskot€ Highwsy. Pvl Ltd

DBL Bangalore Nid6gatla Highwals Pvl Limitsd
DBL aoll.ry AyEpula Highways Pvt Llmitod
DBt Byr4ura Challakh6r6 HighwaF Pvl Limitod
DBL Gofiar Khaihlunda Highways Prt Limilod
DBL Nidaga(a Myso.€ Highways P!,t Ltd

DBL Rowa SidhiHighways Pvt Ltd

Ohrol Bhada Highways Lld
Dodaball.pur Hoskot Highwsys Pvt Ltd

Narcnpu Pumsa Hlghways Pvl Lld
Pa&rapali Karhghora Highways Pvt Ltd

16213
3,278.11



Y.ar sndsd 3l March 2023 Yorr onded 3l Mlrch 2022Nrturo ol lrrnsrctlon
Holdinq

Repryment ol Lorn Giwn

DaL Bangalo.o Nidagarla Highways Pvi Limitad

OAL Bellary Brrapura Highways Pvl Limitod

OBL Byraprra Challalhoro Highways Pvt Lihilod
OBL GodarKhatalunda Highways Pvl Limited

OBL Rs{a SiddhiHiohways Pvl Limitod

6,247.06

2,13,1.49

3,5rl.01
3,325.93

4,530.00

6,247.06

2,'134.49

3,577.01

3,325.93

4,530.00

(iv)

19,Et4.49 19,814.49

Dilip Buibcon Ud 14.160.00 14,160.00 9.77 9.77

(,)

14,160.00 9.77 9.7714,160.00

Ropaym.nt of Loan tal6n
DiIp Auildcon Ltd 11,654.06 11,654.06

(,i)
8.65 8.65

11,654.06 11,654.06Total E.65 8.65

(vii) R.wnuo trom Cont .cl Roc.lPl!
Dilip Buildcon Ltd

Palhapali Kslhgtora Highwayr Pvt Lld

Ns6npur Pumea Hlghways Pvl Ltd

R6pallewada Hignways Lld

Dodaballspur Hoskolo Highways Pvi Lid

Dhrcl Bhadra Highways Lld

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00
6.00

1,003.58

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

1,003.58 43'1.51 €1.51

1,033.5830.00 1,003.58 ,Er.5r 131.51

EdE@!-cc!

DBL Bangalorc Nid.gatlE HighwaF P\.1Limitod

DBL Ao[a.y Bylapura Highways Pvt Limitod

DBL Ayrapura Challakher6 Highw.ys Pvi Limitod

DBL Gofi Khairalunda Highways Pvl Limil6d

DBL Nidagatla Mysorc Highways Pvl Limit6d

DBL R6wa Siddhi Highways Pvt Limited

Ohrol thad6 Highwars timiled
Dodaballapu Hoskot€ Highways Pvt Lld

Namnpu, Pum6a Highways P\t Ltd

Palhrapalli Kathghora Highways Pvt Ltd

Ropall4ad. Hishw6ys Limilod

10,730.67

2.477.34

1.9E9.40

1.007.12

1r.1E9.09

3,170.97

1,7 .1'1

1,237.00

2,355.22

1,161.30

1,176.04

B)

1D

11,189.09

951.26

1,79A.41

2,351.91

3,332.t6
1,629.90

1,997.00

11,1E9.09

951.26

1,796.41

2.35'1.81

3,332.16

1,629.90

1,997.00

1,796.41

1,237.0O

2,355.22
r.161.30

1,176.04
7.63 119.61.63 3 170.97

o-

*

LIM'

DBL II{fRA ASSETS PRIVATE LHrIEO
(Fom.rly Hlgh Fly Alrll..i Prlvd. Llmltod,

Not . to thlncl.l .i!1.h..t3 for th. y.rr endod 31 M!.ch 2021

!d!-&i-EJds!.-e!4.!!q!!dl9!

3,'170.97

10,730.67

2,677.36

1,989.40

1,E07.12

11,189.09



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRNATE LIMITED
(Fomorly Hlgh Fly Ahllnoi PrlEi. Llmlt.d)

Noi.8 lo flnlnchl sl.t m.nt. for th. y..r.nd.d 3t M.rch 2023

Nor. 25: R.llred o.rtvt[n.rctron

Nttur. of traB.clion Ya.r.nd6d 3l Mrrch 2023 2022
Holding

(i0 Un..cur.d Lorn Glven

DBL Bangslorc Nidagaha Highways Pvt tlmitod
DBL a6[.ry By6pula Highways Pvt Limil6d
DBL ByrEpura Chalrakhors Highways P!.t Lihit6d
OBL Gorh.. Khanatunda Highways P!,t Limit6d
OBL Nidagatta Mysors Hlghways Pvt Limil6d
OBL R.wa Siddhi Highways Plt Limiiod
Ohrol BhadG Hlghways Lihitod
Dodaballapur Hosiors Highways Pvt ltd
Naronpur Pumoa HiqhwEF Pvt Lld
Palhrapalli (alhghom Highways Pvr LId

Rspallswada Highw.ys Limitod
DBL lnflatoch Privats Limilod

2.767.17

6,217.06

2,1U.49
3,577.01

3,325.93
2,767.17

6,247.06

2.134.49

3.577.0'l
3,325.93

2,167.17

4.530.00

r.612.90

?,441.'19

m2.00
1,405.00

4.530 00
1,612.90

3,504.50
2,141.19

902.00

1,405.00

1,612.90

1,322.25

2,441,19

902.00

1,405.00

OBL Poondiyrnkuppem
152.'13

3,2?4.17
12,632.76 3,440.30 16.07!.06 4.530.00 25,731.e9 30,264.99

(iii) Un..cur.d Lo.n Trr.n
Dlllo Bulldcon Limlod 2,507.06 1.12 1.12

2,507.06 2,507.06 1.12 1,12

(iv) Tr.d. R.c6lYibl.3
DiIp auildcon Umiled 153.15 153.15 74.66 74.66

153.15 153.15 74.60 7/1.66

s

rl. cH,

MBAI

s

*

1,612.90

3,504.50
2,44'1.19

902.00

1,405.00

142.13

3,278.17

2507.06



Nol.. to fnancialrt tom.nts tor tho year.nded 31 farch 2023

Noto 25: Financialri5k manaq6n6nl oolicv and obiectives

Ih6 ke, ot ecliw of tE Co.npany's cepitd manag€m€nt ir to 6nsurc lhat i maintaim a stau€ capnal nrudur6 wilh tle foq$ oo lotal squty io

uphold invoslor, sedito., end custorner confd€n s and !o ensu.e tuture developm€nl ot ils businBs. Tll€ Conpany h foars€d on mainLinino 3

lrong equrty baso b ensur€ indsp€ndsnc€, €s..udty, .3 rv€ll as financid neidlity bl polenlial irt e bonowings, if roqui.ed wthod impactiiNg

0le tut Eofile of ths Comp.ny.

Th6 Cornpany 3 3enior msnagoment ovsrso€s lh€ mana€omont of thsss risk. Th6 Co.npany's s€nior manag€msnt B supporl€d by a financial

tuk commi(e€ fiat .dvi.ss on financial dsks .nd ths app.ogriale fnanosl tut govomanc€ fi'amowo* tor Uto Co.npany. The financial ntk
co.nmiflo6 provije e3lulanca lo the Company's !€nhr managament thal th€ Cofipany'3 fnano€ldsk acliviti€s are govem€d by appropriale
polici6s and procedulEs and that fimndal ists .ll ii6nlif€d, m€aslrsd end menag€d in @rdance with fi8 Cofipanys polkies and dek

otriorriv8. AI derivrf,v€ advflas tor risk man6g6ryr€.rt purpos€s aro caniod out by sp€.ialist taams flat have lhe sppro9.iat€ skills,

6,e€rionc€ and sllpe ,ision. ft b th€ Cornpany s policy flat no t'ading in deriv.liv6! lor sp€dlalivo FrrPo363 m.y be utdertaken-

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVA]E LIiIITED
lFormorly Hish Fly Ai.llnos Prlvate Llmited)

T}l€ 3€flih/ity anaysis in Elc ,ollowing s€clrons rolat€ lo th€ position as at 31 M.rdl 2023 and 31 Mar.r! 2022. The senit'/ity of the rElevanl

income stalemont itsm is ih6 6ffect of he assurn€d chang6s in respective markai risks. The sensilivily 5n5ly6is hav€ been preparcd on lhe
basis that lh6 amount of not debl and tho ratro ot fix€d to noating ini€rest ratss ol lho d6bt are consiant al 3, March 2023

Th€ analysis sxclud€ lt|€ imp.cl of nlovements in mark6t vaiiaues on: lhe ca.rying valu€s of g€tuily. other post r€tt€m€nl obligalions add

Ma 6t dsk is tl€ tuk thst h€ lan value oI tuturs cash nows ol a linancial anslrumont will nuctuale be.€us€ o, cnanges in ma*et prices. Martel

tut cornpdses thrce typos ol risk inte.esl rdte dsk, arrsnca nsk and otho. pnce dst such as €quiy pnco tisk .nd commodily dsl. Financial

instumonts aflocl€d by ma 6t d3k indud.r bo{ro*ings, lrade .nd other payables. !€cunty degosit, lrade and olh€r r€ceivables, deposils wilh

Cedit .isk on nade rscoivau63 is limited as lhs orslomels ot the Company mainv condsts of fE Hdding ComPany having a st ong crsdil

rorthinGs. The povision mardr tak€s into accounr available odemal and intemal cr€dil dsk faclo.s 3uch as cr€dil lalings ftom c.€dit laling

sgoncies, fnancial coodilion. €g6ing of ac.ounts racoivable and tie Company s hBto,ical experience for dslm.B.

ii) Cred nsk

The ageing ol lrado rcc€ivables ai lire r€porling daie that wsre nol ampated are as ioll'rws

Flnanclal lniEum.ntt .nd caah dapo3lt!

Crcdit rb* fro.n bat.n6r with banks a6d financial institutions B managod by th€ coopsny in accordance with company's policy. lnvsstmonB oI

suetus tunds are made onv with approvsd coonteD.rri€s and wilhin cGdil limiB assign€d to oact count€rpat9. Company monitors laling,

.r€dn iproads and finsnost str€ngth of its coirnrer padios. Co.np.ny monilols ralings, d€dil sp.ead and finsnoal str6ng(h ol ils counter Fl8nios-

Ba36d 0l1 ongdng asse$m.nt cornpany adiust it3 6xpo3ure ro yarbus coirnt6rp.rties. companys manmum erposure b c'edn tBt tor ule

cornponerts of balanc. ah€€l is Olo carrying amounl as d,sdosed in Note 5.

lll) Llquldl"ly rl.k

Lhuidity ftk is U|e tuk $at h. Compsny may not b6 sble to m€€l its pls!3nt ,nd tuturc cash fo^, and collaloml oblbations wit'out inorring

un.cc€ptabte tossss. Company! objsctjve B to, et .ll timo mainlain oplimum l€v6ls of liquidry b meet il! cash end collaleral requirsmonB.

Company clo6et fi|onitoB its liquidity pos ion and doploys . rcbusl c€sh ,nanagemonl lystem. lt maintaiB sdoquate sour.es ol llnsncino at

Th6 lrb*e suflm.E€. th€ mstrrrily p.ofile of comPany3 financi: laabililis. bas6d on conlradual undiscounted paytn€n

As rt 3l tlarch 2023

Loans Lom Relaled P6rlras
Olh€r fr nsnchl liabilitie!

67,569.95
2,507.05

91.01
2,fi7.06

91.01

16,892.50 50,677.45 67,569.95
2.507.06

91.01

31 lrarch 2022 31 March 2022

153 t5 74.65Loss than 180 days

As .t 3'l farch 2022

r7.567.50 52.702.il 70,270.m
1.12

22.11

70,270.@
1.12

22.11

1.12
22.11

Loans toln Rehl€d Parli,ss
Oth3r ltn5ncial liabiliiior

\1. cH,

M MEAI



Notoa to llnancial stalehents for the year ended 3t March 2023

Nole 27: F.ir value of tina ncial ass€rs ahd tiabttities

Sat o0t balow, lt a compaiLon by clats of the csarylng amounl! and tah yallrc ot tha Compary'a financlal Inatruments that aao
rscognlaad ln llia fnanclal datamads,

ln Lakhs

The Company maintains pollcios and procodurss to valu6 fnancial assots or linancial llabilities using the bost and mosl a6l6vant
data availablo ln addition, lhe Crmpany inlem.lly raviews valuations, lncluding indep6nd6nt prico validation for csrtrain
instrumonts, Further, in other inslances, Company relains indep6nd6nt pricing v€ndors to assist in conoborating the valuations
of cortaan instrumenls.

The fair valuo of tho fnanciBl &s€ts and liabilities ere indud€d at th6 arnolnt at which the instrument thal woutd be received io
s6ll an ass€t oa paid lo transfer liabilily in an ord6rly transaction betweon markel particapants at lhe m€esurcment date.

Sr, Partlculars Carrvlno value
31 M.rch 2023 31 March 2022 3'l March 2023 3t March 2022

(a) C.ni.d lt rmorttu.d c6rt

Loans given
Trade Recoavabl€s
Cash and cash equivalent'

Flnahc|ll assets moaaured at Falrvalua thorulh
Othor Comprehsnrlvc hcome (FVOCI)

Fln.ncl.l Lbbllhles
Canlad at rmodisad co3t
Bonowings
Othor Firtancial Liabilili6s

23,247 _63

r6,073.06
r$.15
24t.56

36.937.30

70,o77 _O1

91.01

39,290.58
30,264.99

74.66
265.55

70,271.12
22.11

23.247.63
16.073.06

36.937.30

70,077.O1

91.01

39,290.s8
30,264.99

?0,271.12
22.11

C!.rying valuo ot bans from banks, othor.lon cun6nt tbnoll/ings and oth€r fnancial fiatilfies ls cstimst€d by discountjng
futr€ ceth lt f,s using rates curendy availabb for debt ofl simllar torms. crEdlt isk 6nd re.naining mafurilies. The own noft
p€dollhance risk as al ropo.ling det€ was ass6$i€d to bo lnsignilicant.

F.lr value hhr.rchy
The lollowing tat o providos lho fair value moasur6monl hierarchy of Company's assets and tiebltities grouped inlo Lev6l 1 to
Lovsl 3 as doscribed in 3ignific€nt accounting policios - Note 1. Furthor labl€ descdbss the valualion t6chniquos used. key
inpuls lo valuations and qu6nlilative informatlon about sagnmcsnt unobsorvabl€ inpub for fair value m6asur6m6nls.

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Fonmrly Hlgh Fly Alrline. Prlv.te Llmit6d)

(b)

(c)

The lollowlng methoda and arrumptlohs wcro uaad lo eltimate the falrvalue!r
' The company has not disdosed lhe lah valu6s of Vade payables, trade receavEbles and cash and ca6h oquiv6l6nts because
thoir carying arnounls arc reasonablo approximation ot fair value.

Feir value of seqJdty d€posits have been estimalod usang 6 discount€d cash llow mod6l. Ths valuation roquires managoor€nt to
make certain assumptions aboul interesl rates, maturity p€d)d, caedil risk, lorecaiod cash llows.

Long-tom nxod_rdte and vadeble.rate r6coivabloJborowings are evaluatod by the company bas6d on parameters such as
intoresl €t€5, individual creditworthinoss of tlle o,/stomd and lhe risk characteristics of the nnancod proi6ct. Based on this
ovaluallon. allowanc€s are lakon into accounl for the 6xpecled crodlt lossos ot th6s€ receivabl€s, As ol reporting dat€ U1e
cerrying amounts of such rocsivables, nei of allolvanc6s are nol materially different froh trlek calculatod falr valuos.



Quanlitative dlacloaures of lalr valuo measutemenl hletatchy tor a33al3 a5 at 31 March 2022:

ln Lakhs

ln

Duing the y€€r endod 31 Msrch 2023 and 31 March 2022 lhor6 wsre no lmmfols between level 1 end level 2 fair value measuremonts and no

lransfors into and oi.rt of l6vol 3 fair valuo measur€ment.

Fai.value measurcmeht uslnq
Level 2 Level 3 technlque used

lnputs usedSr
No

Parrticulars

Financial assais measured at amo sed cost(a)
23,247.63

16.073.06
153.15
264.56

Discountedcash Forecest
llor/s cash llows.

discounl rat6,
maturily

(D

(ii)
(iiD
(iv)

Loans gaven

Other fnancial ass6t
Cash and cash equivalent

(bl Flnanclal.3!.L rfl sa3ured at Falr value thorugh
Olher Cofip..hendv. lncomG (FVOCI)

36,937.30(D

lc) Financial liability moasuredat amorti5od cosl
fo,o77 _o1Borrowings Folecesl

discounl rato,
rnafunty

91.01

Discount6d cesho

(il) Olhe. fi nancial liabilili6s

Fair valuo Ineasuram6rrt usinq lnputs used
Level 2 Level 3

V.lu.tlon
tachnlquo usodLevel I

Sr
No

(a) Financialas3ots maaBured at amortis€d cost

discount rale,

33,290.58
30,264.99

74.66
265.55

Discounted cash(D

(ii)

{tll)
(iv)

lnvestnents
Loans given
Othea Iinancial assst
Cash and cesh €qufualent

(b) Flnancial liabllity measur6d at amortlsod cost
70,271.12Bonowings Oiscorrnled cash Foaec€st

discdlnl rats
maturlty

22_11

(D

(t) Other fi nancial liabilities

4

*

DBL NFRA ASSETS PRIVATE U ]TEO
(Fo.me.ly High Fly Alrllnor Pdvate Lllnh.d)

t{otar to in.ncl.l .t t m.nt3 lor lh6 yc.r cndod ll ltarch 2023

}{ot 27: Frlr vakr. ol fn.ncl.l a*r.tr .od llabllltles

Ouantlt va dlacloruiaa of talr valua mea3uaDmal hlcra.chy tor alrsta at at 31 march 2023:



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to tinancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note 28: Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital ,
share premium and all other equity reserves. The primary objectjve of the Company's capital
management is lo maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustrnents in light of changes in
economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retum capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The company includes within net debt, interest bearing
loans and bonowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding
discontinued operatjons.

in lakhs

Note 29: Segment Reporting
segments have been identified in accordance with lndian Accounting standards (lnd AS) 10g on
operating segments considering lhe risk or return profiles of the business. As required under lnd
AS 108, the chief operating Decision Maker (coDM) evaluates the performance and allocates
resources based on analysis of various performance indicators. Accordingly, information has been
presented for the Group's operating segments and the company has identiried business segment
as primary segment. The reportable segment is Construction and Engineering Contracts.

Nole 30 : Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheel for
liabilities arising from financing activities as required by lnd AS 7 ,,statement of Cash
Flows" is as under:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 3'l March 2023 31 March 2022
Loans and borowings
Other Financial Liabililies
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt
Equity
Capital and net debt
Gearing ratio

70,o77 .01

91.01
264.56

69,903.46
(8,989.56)
60,913.91

114.7604

70,271.12
22.11

265.55
70,027.69
(s,400.48)
64,627.21

108.360/0

Particulars Long Term Borrowings short Term Borrowings
t alance as on 31 March 2021

Add : Cash inflow 70,270.O0 9.77
Less : Cash oumow 8.65
Add : Non - Casll inn
Less : Non - Cash outflow
Balance as onJfMarch 2022 70,270.00 1.12

d: 14,160.00
Less : Cash oum 2,700.o5 1 1 ,654.06
Add : Non - Cash inflow
Less : Non - C-sh outflow

ance as on rc 67,569.95 2,507.06

c

a

tt. Cr,/
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DBL IIIFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIM]TED
(Fo7m.dy High Fly Alrlln 3 Prlv6t. Llmlt.d)

ilol.3lo fin.ncl.l .td.m.ntr ,or th. y..r.nd.d 3l t.ch 2023

t{ot 3l: Dl3clo.urt ol Fln ncl.l R.tlo. i

Sr. No. R.tio
3l March

2023
3l Uarch

2022
Raasons lor changa in
r.tio by more th.n 25%

a)

b)

c)

d)

€)

0

9)

i)

i)

Currsnt rato (an limes)

O6bt-6qulty latio (in
Im6s)

D€bl 3eMc6 cove.age
rato (in tim6s)

Relum on oqurty ralio

lnvento.y turiover ralio
(ln lirnos)

Trad€ aoceivebles

tumovor l.ll0 (in tmes)

Trade payeblos tumover
ratio (in tim€s)

Nel capital tumover ratio
(in llm6s)

N6l profit ratio

Retum on capital

Long{erm bonowings
and shortlerm

Profit before inl€€sl and
oxc€ptional items

Revenue fro.n
opoaatons

Revonue from
operalions

Co6l ot constructon,
change in lnvonlorbs and

olh€r €xDenses

op6rartions

Proft aiter tax

Proft aff€. tax excludlng

Cunenl liebiliti€s

Total€quily

Finance cost tog€tier with
princFal repeymenls of long term
bo.rorngs and cun€nl malurities
ol bog-lerm bor.o! /ings dudng the

lr€dod

Average tolal 6quily

Wo*ing cafital (wo ing capital
ref€.s to net drrenl a$6ts anived

all6r redudng cun€nt llabilities
€xcluding curent maturities of

long term bono{,ings from curont
a$€ls)

Revenue ftom operalions

Average cspital employ€d (capilal
employed r€l6rs lo toial 6quity,
long{erm bonowings and sho.t-

term bonowinosl

6.46

(7.80)

N/A

0.44

6.95

o_07

(5.69)

(0.10)

5.50

(13.01)

0.54

5.78

0.02

112.St)

(0.04)

oue to repaymenl of
borowings and d€crease in

shareholders equity

Due io decleago ln P.oft
alter tax and shaleholders

€qurty

Due to increase in
Revenue from oporations

and working capilal

Oue lo De66as€ in proft
allor hr aod lncreas6 in

Rev6nu6 faom operatjons

Oue to D€croase ln profit

ater trax and ins6as6 in

averag6 csprtal omploy€d

ti

[1UT,'IBAI
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DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3,1 March 2023

Note 32: Additional disclosures as per Schedule lll ofthe Companies Act 2013

(i) for the curre -23 and Y.21-22
The company does not fall under the criteria of applicability of provisions of CSR, as per the clauses
of Section '135 ofthe Companies Act, 2013. Thus, no disclosure is given.

(ii) The Company has not entered in to any transactions during the year with the companies struck off
under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

(iii) During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has granted loans to the related
parties (associate companies as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), without specifying any
terms of the repayment.

(iv) There is no benami property held by the Company and no proceedings have been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(v) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of
the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(vi) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial
yeat.

(vii) There are no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts and has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax
Act, 1961. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income and related assets.

(viii) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share oremtum:

A) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either bonowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (lntermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
lntermediary shall -
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate Beneficiaries;

B) The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
company shall -
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identmed in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

MBAI
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{ote 33: F€ures felanng to prevous yea.s have been regrouped / reananged, wherever necessary,to coniirm to clrent perod presenEnon,

Signatlre to noles lo accounts

For and or b€rrall ol lhe Board
Fo. OBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMIIEO
(Formorly Hlgh Fly Alrlhes Private Limitad)

Note3 to financi.lat tements lorthe year ended 3'l March 2023

For Mulund M Chitale & Co.
ChanerEd Accounlafts
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DBL Infra Asset Private Limited

Consolidated Financial Statement for the
year ended 31.t March 2023
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Sr.
No.

Key Audit Matter

lnvestment
its impairm
of lnvlT

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated In d AS financial statements of the current period
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated lnd AS financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our re ort

l1 in Associate Companies and
ent and lnvestment in Units

Auditor Response

Our audit
following.

procedures included the

ment, assessed and testedm ana e

N,

CHARTEREO
ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUOITORlS REPORT

To the Members of DBL lnfra Assets private Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements

1. Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated lnd AS financjal statements of DBL lnfraAssets Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as ,the 

Hording companrr r;Jlt; associates,which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31.iMarch zrizSltne 
-.onsotioated

Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive lncome), tne boniolioateo castrFlow Statement and lhe consolidated Statement of change" in eqriii'io1. tn" yJJitnen enoea
and a summary of significant accounting policies and othei explanaiorv i"roirjtL" (hereinafter
referred to as 'consolidated lnd AS financial statements,).

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,the aforesaid consolidated lnd AS financial statements givJtire inrormairon iequirea Uy tnecompanies Act, 2013 ('the Act') in the manner so reqri-red and give a true ani'rair vlew inconformity with the accounting princrples generally accepted in 
-lndia, 

including the lndian
Accounting Standards (lnd AS) prescribed undei Section 133 of the nct ie'ao wath the
companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended of the consoiidated state
of affairs of the Holding Company and its associates as at March 31, 2023, its consotidated
loss, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing, as prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act Oui responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditois Responsibilities for-the Audit of
the Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Holding Company and its associates, rn accordance with the elhical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements in lndia in terms of the
Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia and the relevant
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We befieve that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.3 Key audit matters

o Obtained an understanding from the
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(Refer to Accounting Policy under Note
1.11 and 1.12 - "lnvestments in
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures" and "lnvestments in Units of
lnvlT respectively)

The Company has equity investments in
associate companies.

The Company accounts for equity
investments in associate companies at cost
under equity method (subject to impairment
assessment).

For investments carried at cost amounting
to Rs. 1'1,662.85 lacs where an indication
of impairment exists, the carrying value of
investment is assessed for impairment and
where applicable an impairment provision
is recognised.

The Company accounts for investments in
Units of lnvlT at fair value through Other
Comprehensive lncome (FVOCI)

The accounting for investments is a Key
Audit Matter as the determination of
recoverable value for impairment
assessment involves significant
management judgement and estimates
such as future expected level of operations
and related forecast of cash flows, market
conditions, discount rates, terminal growth
rate etc.

the design and operating effectiveness
of the Holding Company's key controls
over the impairment assessment.

o Evaluated the Holding Company's
process regarding impairment
assessment by involving auditor's
valuation experts, as applicable to
assist in assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation
model including the independent
assessment of the underlying
assumptions relating to discount rate,
terminal value etc

.Assessed the carrying value of all
individually material investments,
where applicable, to determine
whether the valuations performed by
the Holding Company were within an
acceptable range determined by us
and the auditois valuation experts.

. Assessed the fair value of lnvestment
measured at fajr value through other
comprehenstve lncome (FVOCI) to
determine whether valuation
performed by the Company is made at
fair value.

o Evaluated the cash flow forecasts
(with underlying economic growth rate)
by comparing them to the approved
budgets and our understanding of the
internal and external factors.

. Checked the mathematical accuracy
of the impairment model and agreed
the relevant data on sample basis with
the latest budgets, actual past results
and other supporting documents.

. Evaluated the adequacy of the
disclosures made in the Consolidated
lnd AS Financial Statements.

Based on the above procedures
performed, we did not identify any
significant exceptions in the
management's assessment in relation
to the carrying value of equity
investments in associates and to the
fair value of lnvestments measured at
fat value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Stf.
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4 lnformation other than the consolidated lnd As financial statements and Auditor,s report
thereon
The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Directors Report, Business Responsibjlity Report, corporate Governance and shareholders
lnformation, but does not include the consolidated lnd AS financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of
this auditor's report.

our opinion on the consolidated lnd AS financial statements does not cover the other
information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connectton with our audit of the consotidated lnd AS financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated lnd AS
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the other information included in the above reports. af we conclude that there is
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance and determine the actions underthe applicable laws and regulations. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and those charged with Governance for the consolidated
lnd AS Financial Statements
The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated lnd AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance including consolidated other comprehensive income, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Holding company and its associates in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the lnd AS
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and of its associates are responsible
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Holding company and its associates and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal fanancial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been
used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements by the
directors of the holding company as aforesaid.

ln preparing the consolidated lnd AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of
the Holding Company and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the
Holding Company and its associates to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,

5
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b

matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
[/anagement either intends to liquidate the Holding company or associates or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and of its associales are responsible
for overseeing the frnancial reporting process of the Holding company and of its associates.

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and
associates has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of'
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Holding company and associates.

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of the Holding Company and of its associate,s
management's use ofthe going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Holding company and its associates to continue as a going
concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated lnd AS financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Holding company and its associates to cease to continue as a going
concern.

v) Evaluate the overall presentatjon, structure and content of the consolidated lnd AS financral
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated lnd AS financial

,-i,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consotidated lnd AS Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated lnd AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated lnd AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on auditing, we exercise professronal
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audjt. We also.

i) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated lnd AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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vi) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Holding company and its associates to express an opinion on
the consolidated lnd AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements of sucir entities
included in the consolidated lnd AS financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated lnd AS financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. we remain solely responsrble
for our audit opinion.

we communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding company regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant auOit frnOlngi,
including any significant deficiencres in internal control that we identify during our audit.

we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determjne those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated lnd AS financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters
(a) we did not audit the financial stalements, in respect of of seven associale companies

which includes net loss after tax of Rs.5,730.24 lakhs and total comprehensive rncome of
Rs.(5'730.24) lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2023, as considered in the consolidated
lnd AS financial statements.

These lnd AS financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose financial
statements and auditor's reports have been furnished to us by the management. our
opinion on the consolidated lnd AS financial statements, in so far as it ielates to the
amounts and disclosures as included in respect of this Holding company and its
associates, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of section ta3 of the Aci in so far
as it relates to the aforesaid Holding company and associates is based solely on the report
of other auditors.

fte
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our opinion on the consolidated lnd AS financial statements, and our report on other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified jn respect of the above matters with iespect
to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.
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8 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As requrred by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,2020 (,,the Order,,) issued by the
central Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (1 'l) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the ord6r.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audat, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
lnd AS financial statements.

(i)

(ii)

b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesard consolidated lnd AS financial statements have been kept sofar as ii appears from
our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
consolidated other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equit!
and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agieement with
the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated lnd AS
financial statements.

d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated lnd AS financial statements comply with the lndian
Accounting Standards specified under section .l33 of the Act, read wiih-Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e) on the basis of written representations received from the drrectors of the Holding company
as on March 31 , 2023, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding co-mpany and
the report of the Statutory Auditors of its associates companies, none of the lirectors of the
Holding company and its associate companies, is disqualified as on March 31, 2023, from
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
c.ompany and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate RJport in
"Annexure B" to this report.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance wilh
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
ourinformalion and according to the explanations grven to us, the remuneratron paid / provided
by the holding company and its associates, where applicable, to its directors duiing the year is
in accordance with the provisions of Section ,197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditols Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i There is no pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Holding
Company and its associates in its consolidated lnd AS financial statements.

ii. The Holding company and its associates do not have any long term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there are any material foreseeable losses.

hd,
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the lnvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding company and its associates during the year ended
March 31, 2023.

iv. (a) The Management of the Holding company and its associates has represented that no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or rn any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("lntermediaries,'), with the undersianding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the lntermediary shall, whether, direcly oi indirecly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management of the Hording company and its associates has represented that no
funds have been received. by th-e Company from any person(s) or eniitylies;, including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether r""ord"o lii wri ng ol-
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, direcfly or indirec y, iend or invest in oiherpersons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe tnat tne represeniations
under sub-clause iv (a) and iv(b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Holding company and its associates has neither declared nor paid any dividend during
the year.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the company with effect from Aprit 1, 2o>3, and accordingl!,
reporting under Rule 'l 1(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicalie
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For Mukund M. Chitate & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106655W

01,ilr-
(S.M. Chitale)
Partner
M. No. 111383

UDIN: 231 1 1383BGTW|Z4569
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16.2023
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Annexure A to the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date on the consolidated lnd
AS financial statements of DBL lnfra Assets private Limited

Referred to in paragraph t8(i)] under Report
Requirements of our report of even date

on Other Legal and Regulatory

According to the lndependent Audit Reports issued by the auditors of the Holding company
and its associates, there are no qualifications or adveise remarks by the respectiv" 

"uditorsin the companies (Auditor's Report) order (cARo) reports of the companies included in the
consolidated lnd AS financial statements.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106655W

6titir-
(S.M. Chitale)
Pa rtner
M. No. 111383

MUKUND
,M. CHITALE
& co.

UDIN: 231 1 1383BGTW|Z4569
Place. Mumbai
Date. May 16, 2023
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Annexure B to the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date on the consolidated lnd AS
financial statements of DBL lnfra Assets private Limited

Referred to in paragraph t8(ii) (0] under Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
of our report of even date

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (,,the Act,,)

1 We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DBL lnfra Assets
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding company,,) and its associates as of
March 31' 2023 in conjunction with our audrt of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls
2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its associate companies

incorporated in lndia are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financjal controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essentlal components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of lnternal Financial Controls over Frnancial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia" (lCAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financjal controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company,s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection offrauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company and its associate's internal

financial controls over financial reporting based on.our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the standards on Auditing issued by lcAl and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143( l o) of the companies Act, 201 3, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls. both applicable to an audtt of lnternal Financial
Controls and both issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all matenal respects.

our audit involves performing procedures lo obtain audit evidence about the adequacy ofthe
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understandrng
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists' and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures serected depend on the auditor's

f$'



judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
lnd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other I\/latters paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audrt opinion on the Company,s internal
financial controls system over financial reporttng.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
4 A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated lnd AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financjal reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of consolidated lnd AS financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expendttures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorrsed acquisition, use, or disposition of the company,s assets that could
have a material effect on the consolidated lnd AS financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of rnternar Financiar contrors over Financiar Reporting5 Because of the rnherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation ofthe internal financial controls overfinancial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compriance with the poricres or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
6 ln our opinion, the Hording company and its associate companies, which are companies

incorporated in lndia, have ln all materral respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such lnternal fjnancial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31. 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting crrteria established by the Hording company and its associate companres
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia.
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Other Matters
7 our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the acequacy and operating

effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reportir.rg insofar as it relates to
Holding company and seven associate companies incorporated in lndia, and to whom internar
control over financial reporting is applicable, is based on the corresponding reports of the
Audrtors of such companies.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106655W

6l,itdL-
(S.M. Chitale)
Pa rtner
M. No. 111383
UDIN: 231 1 '13838GTW|24569
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2023
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OBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 3'l March 2023

The notes referred to above form an integral part of lnd
AS financial statements

As per our Repoft ofeven date

FoT MUKUND M CHITALE & CO

Chartered Accountants
5W'Zfr;HI*,.

*
Dilip Suryavanshi

(Dlreclor)

Rs.ln Lakhs

For and on behalf ofthe Board
For DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

CIN : U741 10N.,1P2010PTC023673

1to34

DIN. O 9944

k Jiniwal
ancialOfficer)

;4"
i Verma

(0irector)
N - 00039946

MA

(Chief

\ffi
Pra$ya Raghuwanshi
(Company Secretary)

Particulars Notes Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 Match 2022

(t)

(ll)

Revenue from Operations

Other income

16

17

5.594.76

112.75

11,289.50

22.01

11.311.s1( 0 Total Income (l+ll) 5,707.51
(lv) Expenses

Employee benef ts expense
Operating Expenses

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses 21

18

19

2A

87.23

4.174.18
11.510.19

74.45

11,530.05
7.957.62

Total erpenses (lV) 15,833.36 19,562.12
(v)
(vt)

ProfiU(loss)before exceptional items and tax (lll-l\0
Exceptional items 22

(10,125.86)

11 517.72

(8,250.61)

(vI) Profit / (loss) before tax (Vl - Ul) 1,39't.86 (8,250.61)

(v r) Tax expenses
(1) Cufient tax charge/(reversal)
(2) Defefied tax charqe/(credlt)

(0.04)
88.85

0.04

{89.92)
(x) Profit / (Loss) for the year from continuing

operations {Vll - Vlll)
1,303.05 (8,160.72)

{x) Share of Profit / (Loss) of Associates \5.734.24) (7 451.74)

(xD Profit / (Loss) tor the yeaa from continuing
operations (lX + X)

14,42? .19) l,15.612.47)

(xn) Other Comprehensive lncome
(i) Remeasurement gain on revaluation of lnvestment
(ii) lncome tax relating to above

23
13

3,301.25
(830.86)

(xIr) Total Comprehensive lncome for the year
(Comprising Profit i (Loss) and Other
Comprehensive lncome for the year) (Xl+Xll)

(1,956.80) (1s,612.47)

(xrv)

(xv)

Profit attributable to
Owners ofhe Parent
Non Controlling lnterest
Eamings per equity share (for continuing
operations)
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

(1,956.80)

1221.36)
\221.36)

114,842.93)
(769.54)

(780.62)

1780.62)

cHI$

BAI

+
MUM

Place: N,lumbai

Dale:1610512023
Place: Bhopal
Date: 16/05/2023

S. M, Chitale
( Partner)
M.No. 'i 11383

25
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated lnd AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

l. Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 Company Overview

DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited (the 'company') is domiciled in lndia with its registered offlce at Bhopal,
Madhya Pradesh, lndia. The Company has been incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956. The company is presently in the business of development of infrastructure facilities.

The company has changed its name from 'High Fly Airlines Private Limited'to 'DBL lnfra Assets Private
Limited' on 26h July 2021.

1.2 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated financial statements

The Company's lnd AS financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lndian
Accounting Standards (lnd AS) as notified by lVinistry of Corporate Affairs under sections 133 of the
Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 3 ofthe Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015
and Comapnies (lndian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 2016.

The consolidated flnancial statements of the Company for the year ended 31s' lvlarch 2023 were
approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 16s May 2023.

1.3 Basis of accounting

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convenlion,
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values in accordance with lnd
AS. Further, the guidance notes/ announcements issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia (lCAl) are also considered, wherever applicable except to the extent where
compliance wilh other statutory promulgations override the same requiring a different treatment.

1.4 Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes in equity are prepared
and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule lllto the Companies Act, 2013 (the Acl').
The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Slatement of Prolit and
Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule lll to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the
financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notifled
Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

1.5 Current / Non-Current classification

An asset or liabjlity is classified as 'current' when it satisfies any of lhe following criteria:

(i) it is expected lo be realized or settled, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the
company s normal operating cycle:

(iD it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(iiD it is expected to be realized or settled within twelve months from the reporting date; or

(iv) an asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months ftom the reporting date

[v) ln case of liability, the company does not have an unconditional fight to defer setflement
ofthe liability for at least twelve months from the reporting date.

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 ilarch 2023

All assets and liabilities have been classified as currenl or nonrunent as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other crileria set out above which are in accordance with Schedule lll to the Acl.

Operatino Cvcle
Based on the nature of producls and services of the Company and the normal time between acquisition
of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the company has determined its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as cunent and non-
curent.

'1.6 Use of estimates

The preparation of the linancial statements in conformity with lnd AS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
application of accounling policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures
of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the period. Accounling estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in eslimates are made as
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances sunounding the estimates. Changes in
estimates are reflected in the financial stalements in the period in which changes are made and, if
malerial, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statemenls.

This note provides an overview of the areas lhat involved a higher degree of judgement or
complexity and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information
aboul each of these estimates and judgements is included in the relevant note.

Estimates and undedying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting eslimates are recognised prospectively.

A. Judgements in applying accounting policies

The judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see note below) that the Company
has made in the process of applying its accounting policies and that have a significant eftect
on the amounts recognised in these financial statements pertain to useful life of assets. The
Company is required to determine whether its intangible assets have indefinite or finite life
which is a sub.iect matter of judgement.

B. Key source of estimation uncertainty

The following are lhe key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources ot
estimation uncerlainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a signilicant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounls of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Determination of the eslimated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to
which components of the cost may be capitalized separately. Useful lives of tangible
assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule ll of the Companies Act, 2013. ln
cases, where the useful lives are different from thal prescribed in Schedule ll, they are
based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated
usage of the asset, the operating conditions of lhe asset, past history of replacement,
anticipated technological changes, manutaclurers'warranties and maintenance support.
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

b) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benelit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary
escalation and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is
determined based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government Securities as at
the Balance Sheet Date for the estimated term of the obligations

c) Recognition of deferred tax assets

d) Recognition and measuremenl of other provision

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of
the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances
known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may
therefore vary from the figure included in other plovisions.

e) Discounting of long-term financial instrument

All financial instruments are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition.
ln case of financial instruments which are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost, interest is accrued using the effective interest method.

l-7 Basis of Consolidation
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A deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available againsl which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and associates. The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiaries are
aggregated and consolidated, line by line, from the date control is acquired by any Group entity
to the date it ceases. Prolit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the Group as owners and to the non-controlling inleresls.

The Group preseots the non-controlling interests in the Balance Sheel within equity, separately
from the equity of lhe Group as owners. The excess of the Group's investment in a subsidiary
over ils share in the net worth of such subsidiary on the date control is acquired is treated as
goodwill while a deficit is considered as a capilal reserve in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. On disposal of the subsidiary, attributable amounl on goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
lmpairment loss, if any, to lhe extent the carrying amounl exceeds the recoverable amount is
charged off to the Statement of Profit and Loss as it arises and is not reversed. For impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated to Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or a group of CGUS to which it
relates, which is not larger than an operating segment, and is monitored for internal
management purposes.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
lransactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for
like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented, to the extent
possible, in the same manner as the Company's separate financial statements.



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements foi the year ended 3'l March 2023

List of Subsidiaries/Associates

'1.8 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presenled in lndian Rupees (lNR), which is also the Company,s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise
indicated.

1.9 Property, plant and equipment and Depreciation

Properly, Plant and Equipment is recognized when it is possible that fulure economic benelits
associated with the item will flow lo the Company and the cost can be measured reliably.

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairmenl losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable mst of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

lf significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate ilems (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

profitnised in
c

or

t.s

s
c t,,i

Sr.
No. Name of the Group Date of

investment

Proportion
of

Ownership
lnterest

(31 March
20231

Proportion
of

Ownership
lnterest

(31 March
20221

Subsidiaries

1
DBL Rewa Siddhi Highways Pvt
Limited

lndia 3't.08.2021 70.o0%

Associates

1
DBL Nidagatta Mysore Highways Pvt
Limited

31.08.2021 49.00% 49.00yo

2 Dhrol Bhadra Highways Limited 31.08.202',1 30.120/0 35.00%

3
Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Pvt
Lrd

lndia 3't.08.2021 49.00% 49.O0%

4 Narenpur Purnea Highways Pvt Ltd lndia 31.08.2021 49.00% 49.O00/o

Pathrapalli Kathghora Highways Pvt
Lrd

lndia 31.08.202',1 49.000/.

6 Repallewada Highways Limited lndia 3't .08 .202',1 49.00%

7
DBL Rewa Siddhi Highways Pvt
Limited lnd ia 31.08.2021 2'.t .00yo

8
DBL Bangalore Nidagatta Highways
Pvt Limited lndia 31.08.2021 49.00%

9
OBL Bellary Byrapura Highways Pvt
Limited lndia 49.00%

10
DBL Byrapura Challakhere
Highways Pvt Limited

lndia 49.00%

11
DBL Gorhar Khairatunda Highways
Pvt Limited lndia 49.00yo

+

+
,ri11

T

Any gain or loss on disposal of an ilem of property, plant and equipm

:

Principal
Place of

Business

lndia

lndia

49.00%

49.000/0

31.08.2021

31.08.2021

31.08.2021



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the company. Advance given towards acquisition of Property, Plant and
Equipment outstanding at the reporting date are disclosed as capital advances under Non-Current
Assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benellts are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period.

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is generally
recognised in the statement of prollt and loss. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated
over the shorter of lhe lease lerm and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that lhe company
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on addilions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which
asset is ready for use (disposed o0.

l.l0lntangible Assets

Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are capitalised only when it increases the future economic benetits embodied in

the specific asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

ll\.

MUMBAI

g

?\Y
+s

C

on-{a!

na

(a) Other lntangible Assets

lntangible assels lhal the Company controls and from which it expects future economic benefits are
capitalised upon acquisition at cost comprising the purchase price and directly attributable costs to
prepare the assets for its intended use.

lntangible Assets is derecognized upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the same period.

lntangible assets that have finite lives are amortised over their useful lives by the straight line method.

(blService concession arrangements (Toll Rights)

The Company recognises an intangible asset arising from a service concession arrangement to the
extent the company has right to charge for the use of concession infrastructure. lntangible asset
would be initially measured at cost. The fair value, al the time of initial recognition of such an

intangible asset received as consideration for providing construction or upgrade services in a

service concession arrangemenl, is regarded to be its cost. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
lhe construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost. Subsequent to initial

recognition the intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and

accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its

residual value. Amortisation is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis

over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use,

since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits

embodied in the asset.



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formedy High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service concession arrangement is a period
from when the company has right to charge the user of infraslructure for such use to the end of the
concession period.

l.'t1 lnvestrnents in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries

lnvestments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the
inveslment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture, the difference belween net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.12 lnvestrnents in Units of lnvlT's

lnvestments in Units of lnvlT's are measured at fair value through Olher Comprehensive lncome as per
lnd AS 109 'Financial lnstruments'. The company may, on lnitial recognition, make an irremovable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income (FVOCI) on an
instrument by-instrument basis.

For equity investment classified as at FVOCI, all fair value changes on the instrumenls, excluding
dividends and interest are recognized in the OCl. There is no recycling of the amounls from OCI to profit
or Loss, even on sale of lnvestments. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity.

l.l3lmpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or
cash generating unit (CGU) may be impaired. lf any such indication exists, the company estimates
lhe recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset,s or CGU'S
net selling price or its value in use. Where the carrying amounl of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

ln assessing value in use, the estimated fulure cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre{ax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to lhe asset.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or cGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

lmpairment losses are recognised in the slatement of profit and loss. They are allocated first lo reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been delermined, net of deprecialion or amortisation, if no impairment-loss had
been recognised.

1.14 Financial lnstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

li.4UMBAl
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Pdvate Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

Financial Assets

lnitial Recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets when it becomes a party to the contraclual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assels are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade
receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets that are not at fair value through profit or loss
are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:-
il Financial assets at fair value and iil Financial assets al amortised cost. Vvhere assets are measured
at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of profit and loss [i.e fair
value lhrough prolit or lossl, or recognised in other comprehensive income [i.e. fair value through other
comprehensive incomel. A Rnancial assel is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held
within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates lo cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Derecognition

The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flovvs from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a

lransaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retain substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

lmpairment of financial asset

For impairment ol financial assets, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model. Following
linancial assets and credit risk exposure are covered within the ECL model:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.
loans, debt securities, deposils, trade receivables and bank balance

b. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or anolher linancial asset
that result from transactions lhat are within the scope of lnd AS 1 15.

The company follows 'simplified approach'for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables including receivables recognised under service concession arrangements.

The applicalion of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk.

Ralher, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLS at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognilion. For recognition of impairment loss on other tinancial assets and risk
exposure, the company determines that whether there has been a significanl increase in the credit risk
since initial recognilion. lf credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-monlh ECL is used to provide

for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, then the impairment loss is

provided based on lifetime ECL.

Financial liabilities

lnitial recognition

The company initially recognises borrowings, trade payables and related financial liabilities on the
date on which they are originated.
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formedy High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

recognised on lhe trade date, which is the date on which the company becomes a party to the
conlraclual provisions of the inslrumenl.

Non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred-

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest melhod,
except for contingent consideralion recognized in a business combination which is subsequenfly
measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year
from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of
these instruments.

Derecognition

A flnancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing Iinancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different lerms, or the terms of an exisling liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modilication is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profil or loss.

Offsetting of fi nancial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention lo settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

1.15 Leases

The Company assesses whether a conlract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the conkact conveys the right to conkol the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration- To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU') and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of lwelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short{erm and low
value leases, the company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The rightof-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequenfly measured at cost iess
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease lerm and useful life of the undedying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carryin g amounts may
not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual a
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OBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. ln such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amorlized cosl at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classilied as financing cash flows

1.16 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a
present obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the cunent best estimate. Contingent liabilities are not
provided for and are disclosed by way of notes.

l.'17 Revenue recognition

Contracl revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract
work, claims and incentive paymenls, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue
and can be measured reliably.

lf the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised in
profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. The stage of completion is

assessed by reference to surveys of work performed. OtheMise, contracl revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract cosls incuned that are likely to be recoverable.

Revenue related to construction or upgrade seruices provided under a service concession
arrangement is recognised based on the stage of completion of the work performed. Operation or
service revenue is recognised in the period in which the services are provided by the company

lnterest income is recognised in the Statement of Prolit and Loss using the effective interest melhod.

1.18 Borrowing Cost

'6

t +
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holders of the company by the weighted average number of s considered derivi ng

lf lhe effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liabilily. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost in the
statement of protit and loss.

Borrowing costs are interesl and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in
conneclion with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cosls directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of lime to get ready for their
inlended use are capilalised as part of the cost of that asset. Olher borrowing costs are recognised as
an expense in lhe period in which they are incurred.

1.19 Earnings per equity share

Basic eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year-

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to the equity



DBL lnf.a Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the yeai ended 3l March 2023

basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could
have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity
shares are ad.iusted for lhe proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair
value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares
are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period present.

1.20 Cash Flow stetement

Cash flows are reporled using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the
effects of lransactions of a non-cash nature, any defenals or accruals of past or future operating c€sh
receipts or payments and ilem of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
fiows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.

1.2'l Employee Benefits

Short Term Employment benefits

All employee benelits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benerits. Benelits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of ex-gratia
are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Post Employment Employee Benefits

Retirement benefts to employees comprise paymenls to government provident funds, gratuity fund
and Employees State lnsurance.

Defined Contdbution Plans

The Company's contribution to defined contribulions plans such as Provident Fund, Employee State
lnsurance are recognised in lhe Statement of Profit and Loss in the year when the contributions to the
respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the
respective Funds

Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation. The Company's net obligation in respect of the gratuity
benefit scheme is calculaled by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
Ietum for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
presenl value.

The present value of the obligation under such delined benelit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation by an independent actuary, using lhe projected unit credil method, which recognizes each
period of seruice as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each
unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the
market yields on Govemment securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, lhe
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding inte
are recrgnised immediately in Other Comprehensive lncome. Net interest ense (income)

\\i
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Fomerly High Fly Aidines Piivate Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the nel
detlned liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the slarl of the financial year after taking
into account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Vvhen the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailmenl is recognised immediately in Statement of
Profit and Loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benellt plan

when the settlement occurs. Actuarial gains/losses are recognized in the other comprehensive income.

Curent Tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received afler
considering the uncertainty, if any, related lo income taxes. lt is measured using tax rates (and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is inlended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

Minimum atternalive tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is

convincing evidence that the Company will pay income tax higher than that compuled under lvlAT,

during the year that MAT is permitted to be set off under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (specilied yeao. ln
the year, in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset the said asset is
created by way of a credit to the Statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement.

The Company reviews the same at each batance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of
MAT credit enlitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the

Company will pay income tax higher than MAT during the specified year.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for linancial reporling purposes and the conesponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried foMard tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expecled to apply to taxable

income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The

effect of changes in lax rates on defened income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or

expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred

income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future laxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. The company

offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously. The income tax provision for the interim period is made based on the
best estimate of the annual average tax rate expected to be applicable for lhe full financial year.

1.23 Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assels are classified as held for sale when their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaclion rather than continuing use and a sale is highly probable.

$, crr/
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Assets designated as held for sale are held at the lower of carrying amount at designation and fair
value less costs to sell.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
ordedy transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or lransfer the
liability takes place either:

. ln the principal market for the asset or liabilily, or

. ln lhe absence of a principal ma*et, in the mosl advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or lhe most advanlageous market musl be accessible by the company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that markel participants would use
when pricing the assel or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

For cash and olher liquid assets, the fair value is assumed to approximate to book value, given the
shorl term nature of these instruments. For those ilems with a stated maturity exceeding twelve
months, fair value is calculated using a discounted cash ,low methodology.

A fair value measuremenl of a non-financial asset considers a market participant's abilily to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another.

The Company uses valuation techniques lhat are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient dala are available lo measure fair value. maximizing the use of relevant observable inpuls
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

.ln lnd AS 101:- Relating to the exceptions to retrospective application of lnd AS on first time
adoption

oln lnd As 102: - Relating to the fair value of the equity instruments not being possible

MBAI

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which lhe lowest level input lhat is signiticant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial stalements on a recurring basis, the
company determines wheth-er transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (bbsed on the lowest level input that is significant to the f;ir;alue
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assels and
liabilities based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the
fair value hierarchy as explained above.

1.25 Recent accounting developments - lnd AS amendments which will be effective from lst April
2023i

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant lo the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

On 31st March 2023, Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendments to certain lnd AS. These
amendmenls will be effective from April 1 , 2023 and will not have material impact on Company's
,inancial stalements for the financial yea( 2022-23. The following is a summary of the amendmenis:

estimated reliably

1.2,f Faar value measurement
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

. ln lnd AS 103: - Relating to the date on which the transferee obtains control of the transferor.

.ln lnd AS 107: - Relating to disclosure of material accounting policy information about the
measurement basis (or bases) for financial instruments used in preparing the financial
statements.

.ln lnd AS 109: - Relating to a combination of entities or businesses under common control as
described in Appendix C.

. ln lnd AS 'l '15: - Relating to certain corrections

. ln lnd AS 1: - Relating to the following:

. Reference to the definition of'Accounting Policies' contained in lnd AS 8

. Requirement regarding disclosure of material accounling policy information instead of
disclosures about signifi cant accounting policies

. Clarilication about when an accounling policy informalion would be regarded as material

. The judgements, apart from those involving estimations that management has made in the
process oI applying the entity's accounling policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial slatements.

r ln lnd AS 8: - Relating to change in the definition of accounting estimates and further clarifications
relaling to the same.

. ln lnd AS 12: - Relating to exception to the recognition of deferred tax liability/ asset arising from
a transaction which at lhe time of the transaction, affects neither accounling profit nor taxable
profit (tax loss); and at the time of the transaction, does not give rise to equal laxable and
deductible temporary differences.

o ln lnd AS 34: - Relating lo disclosure of material accounting policy information in interim financial
statements.

\l'.
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Notos to con3olldated tinancial statem€nts for the vear endod 3,t March 2023

Note 2: Croital work In prooress

For the ear ended 31 March 2023 in Lakhs

' The amounl has been reduced/adjusted since it belonged to subsidiary company wtlich is no longer a subsidiary as at 31 March 2023.

For the ended 3l March 2022 Rs in Lakhs
Gross Carrying Value Depreciation/Amortization Nel Carrying Value

Parliculars As al01/04/2, Additions Deductions A. at 31lo3l22 As at 01/04/21 For the year Deductions As at 31/03/22 As 6t31103122 As At 31/03/21

Financial Asset
in Progess 20 131.83 10 862.46 9 076.80 21,917.56 20,131.89

Total 20,131,89 10,862.46 9,076.80 21,9'17.56 21,917.56 20, t3't.89

Ageing of capital work in paogrcss

As rt 31 Msrch 2023

in Lakhs
Amount in CWIP Ior a iod of

As at 31 March 2022

Rs in Lakh3

cwtP
Amount in CWIP for a period of

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3

Projecls in
proqress 1,785.67 1,667.31 18.464.58 2'1,917.56

Projects
temporarily
suspended

*

Gross Carrying Value Deprecialion/Amortization Net Carrying Value

Particulars As at01lo4l22 Additions
Deductions/
Adjustmonts As at 3l/03/23 As at 01104122 For the year Deductions As at 3'l/03/23 As al3't/03/23 As at31103122

Financialasset
in prooress 21 917.56 3,071.94 24.989.50' 21,917.56

Total 21,917.56 3,071.S4 21,s17.56
-

-
--

I--
-I-

---

- ---

-- -

cwlP
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3

yoals
Total

Projects in
proqress

Projects
temporarily
suspended

I

t

+

Less th6n 1 year Total



DBL INFRAASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High FtyAirlines Private Limited)

Notes to consolidated financial statementr fo.the year ended 31 Merch 2023

Note :.3 Trade Receivables
ln Lakhs

3.1

3.2 Trade Receivables aqeino schedule:

There are no trade receivabl€s due f.om anydirector or any ofllcer of the Company,
eithor seve.ally orjointly wth any other person, or from any firms o. private companies
in which any director is a parln6r, a direclor or a member.

in Lakhs

Rs. in Lakhs

[,BAI

ll'.

Y+

Particulars 31 lrarch 2023 31 Match 2022

Non Cu rent
Unsecured, considered good

Curenl
(i) T€de Receivables considered good-Seclred

(ii) TradeR€c€ivablesconsideredgood-Unsecured
{Rdated oartv)

153.15 74.66

153.15 74.66TotalCurrent

Outstanding forfollowing periods from alue date of payment
Particulars Less than 6

nonths
6 months - 1

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3

As at lrarch 31, 2023
(i) UndisDuted Trade receivables - considered qood 153.15 153.15

(iD
Undisputed Tlade receivables - which have
saqnilicant incr€aso in credit risk

(iii) undisouted Trade receivables - credil imoarred
(iv) Disouted Trade Receivables considered qood

(v)
Disputed Trade receivables -which have
siqnificant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables -credit impaired
Total 153.15 153.15I

Ouhtandinq for tollowinq period3lrom due date of pavment

Less than 6
months

6 months " 1 More than 3
Total

Particulaas

As at ira.ch 31, 2022
(i) Undispuled Trade receivables - considered qood 74_66 74.66

(ii)
Undispuled Trade receivables - which have
siqnificant increase in credit risk
lJndrsputed Trade receivables - credit impaired

(iv) DisDuted Trade Receivables considered aood

(v)
Disputed Trade receivables - whidt have
significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables- credit impaired
74.55Total 74.65

--IIEI

I

Total

1-2 years 2-3 yearc



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlino3 Privat. Lhit.d)

Notes lo consolidatod financlal 3tatem6nb forthe year ended 3l March 2023

Note !a lnvestments
.lnL.

Particula13 3l March 2023 31 March 2022

At the beginning of the year
Add: lnvestnent during the year (48,28,702 units at
NAV 1101.31 and 2,75,72,440 uflits at NAV 410.1.70 )
Less: Retum of Capilal during the year

Add: Fair valuation as at year end (Refer Note 23)

Outstanding .t the end ofthe ye.r

33,760.25
(124.19)

3,301.25
36,937.30

5.1

ln

!.9!ei:-5-!94s-
ln Lakh3

Th. Company has given interest free loan to its r€lated parlies bascd on the exemplion given under s€ction 186(11) of the
Compana.s Act 2013.

The loans are given for e)eansbn and gsn€ral purpose of the business-
Thc loan given is repayaHe by the rclated parti.s 'on demand'.

5.2
5.3

cHt\\

e MUMBAI

Particulars 3l March 2023 3'1 Uarch 2022

No ofShrres
(D Unquotod Equlty 3h.rss of As3ociate Companie6

DBL Bangalore Nidagatl,a Highways Pvt Limited
DBL Bellary Byrapura Highways Pvi Ljmited
DBL By6pu.a Challakherc Highways Pvl Limited
DBL Gorhar Khairatunda Highways Pvt Limned
DBL Nidagatta Mysore Highways Pvt Limited
Dhrol Bhadra Highways Limited
Dodaballapur Hoskole Highways Pvt Lid
Narenpur Pumea Highways Pvt Ltd
Pathrapalli Kathghora Highu/ays Pvt Ltd
Repallewada Highways Limited
DBL Rewa SiddhiHaohwavs Pvt Limited

4,17,772
52,34E

1,32,583
92,941

1,01,07r
1,99,205

33 517

8,371.03
1,060.04

1101.241
848.18

36.84
'179.17

1,268.53

r,58,905
3,67,776
3,57,730
3,45,993
4,17,772

52,348
90,396
71.896
76,581
88,534

7.921-19
2,214.44
3,479.29
1.985.39
8,677.08
1.623.27

278.54
1,457.98

549.33
474.28

Total 11,G62.85 28.667.86

(ii)

Unquot d Unlt3 o, lnvlT

Un(rofShrcm lnvlT (refer Note4 (a) ) 3 24.01.142 36,937.30
Grand Total 48,600.16 28.567.86

I

-
I

-

3'l March 2023 31 itarch 2022
(D Loans to A3lociato Companies

DBL Bangalore Nidagatta Highways Pvt Ltd
DBL Bellary Eyrapyra Highways Pvt Ltd
DBL Ayrapura Challakere Highways Pvt Ltd
DBL Gorhar Khairat'rnda Highways Pvt Ltd
DBL Nidagatta Highways Pvt Ltd
Dhrcl Bhadra Highways Ltd
Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Pvt Ltd
Narenpur Pumea Highways Pvl Ltd
Pathrapali Kathghora Haghways Pvl Lld
Repallewada Highways Ltd

Lo.n3 to Other R.lated p..tier
DBL Poondiyankuppam HighwaF Pvl Ltd.
DBL lnfratech Pvl Ltd

2,767 _17

1.612.90
3.504.50
2.441-',19

902.00
1.405.00

3,274.17
162.13

6,247.05
2,1U.49
3.577.O'l
3,325.93
2,757.17
1,612.90
1.322.25
2.441.',19

902.00
1,405.00

Total Cunent 16.073,06 25.734.99I

4 (., lnv€ltrnentin Unquotod unlts of lnvlT



DBL II{FRA ASSETS PRTVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Aidin€s Privat€ Limited)

Note3 to con3olldeted fir.ncial statementB torthsye.r.nded 31 lrarch 2023

5,4 Loans and advances to rdated parties:

Ar .l 3l March 2023

loan

Direclors
KMPs
Related pa es 16.073.06 100.00%

Total 't6,073.06 100.00%

at 3l March 2022

!e!si:-E-e3s!-A!!!..9!!!-Ecciy3!s!E

Note :- 7 Other Financial Assets

!.9!9i:-C-q!9r-Asc9!E

ln Lakhs

Rs, ln Lakhs

Rs. ln L.kh3

the naturc of
loan

P.rcGntage to
tlre totel Loan3

in the naturo

Direclors

25.734.99 100.00%
Total 25,734.99 100.00%

31 March 2023 3'l Ma.ch 2022
(D

(iD Balances with Banks :

- Fixed Deposils

3.16

80.61
180.79

3.16

2,039.64
159.42

264.56 2.212.12TotalI

3l March 2023 3l March 2022Particulars
12-O3
t5 00)

5.00

7.03
9.69

5.00

Advance Recoverable
Provision for Doubtful Advanc! (Refer Note 21)

(ii) Withheld Money

(D

16.72 5.00Total

31 March 2023 31 March 2022Particulars

110.90
0.57

592-A2
0.67

Unamortised Plocessing Charges
MAT Credit Entdemanl

593.48't 1'1.57

0.17
62.98

46.24
18.66

3,200.44
24.42

Current
Ofter Advancls - Advanc€ to Supplie6/Creditors
Tar Deducted at source and Advance Tax (net of

Oulies and Taxes
Unamortised Processing Charges
Prepaid E)eenses
Ealance with Govemment Autloities

Totalcunent 322.91 3,308.40

131.18 4,001,88Total

ifl.l(,

,,{J11

t
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47.15
172_61

18.63



Paaticulals 3l March 2023 3'l Ma.ch 2022
Authorised shara Capltal
50,00,000 Equity Shares ol Rs. 10 each
(P.Y. 50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)

500.00 500.00

500.00 500.00

lssued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
20,0C,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
(P.Y.20,00.000 Equrtv Shares of Rs. 10 eachr

200.00 200.00

Total 200.00 200.00

OBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIIIITED
{Formerly Hioh FlvAirlines Private Llmlled}

NotB lo consolldated financial statements forthe yearended 31 lrarch 2023

tlote 9: Eoutw Share C.oital

i. The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a face value of Rs.10 each. Equity holder of equity
shares is enlitled to one vote per sharc

ii. 100% shares are held by the holding company Dilip Buildcon Limited.

iii. 100% shares of the company has been pledged in favour of the DebenlLrre truslee i.e. A.xis Trustee Services Limited

Rs. ln Lakhs

a) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

Deta of shareholdefs holdi mo.e than 5% shares in the Com

'20 shares are held by individuals as nominees oflhe Company.

d) Detalls ofsharsholding ln lhe Company by the Holdtng Company

i. Retained in ln Lakh

li. Other Comprehensive lncome
ln Lakhs

* Retalned E.ming.: Retained eamings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, Iess dividends or
other distributions paid to shareholdeE.

b) Reconciliation oflhe no. of shares and amounts outstanding atthe beginning and atlheend ofthe reporting year:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Numbeas

{Rs.in lekhs)
Numbers

(Rs.in lakhs)
At the beginning ofthe yea.
lssued during the year
Outstanding atthe end of lhe year

20 00 000 20,00,000 200.00

20,00,000 200.00 20,00,000 200.00

J

$.fft/

31 March 2023 31 Match 2022Particulars
Numbe13 % of holdinq Numbers % ol holdinq

Equity sha.es of R!. '10 each fully paid
Dilip Buildcon Limited' 20,00,000 100.00% 20.00,000 100.00%

31 March 2023 31 $iatch 2022
No. ot Shares % of total shares No. of Shares % of total shares

% Change
during the year

Dilip Buildcon Limited 20,00,000 100.000% 20,00,000 100.00%
Total 20.00.000 100.00% 20,00,000 100.00%

-Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beoinninq oflhe veai ('14.42O.04) (4.69)
- Profit / {Loss) for the year (4,427 _19) (14,842.93)
- On account ofSale ofsubsidiafies (4,397.s0)
- On account of acquisition 427.78
Balence at the end of thi year 123,244.721 {14,420.04)

3t March 2023 31 arch 2022
Balance at the beoinnino ofthe vear
Other Comorehensrve lncome dunno the vea..
Remeasurement gain on revaluation of
lnvestfiEnt 2,470.39
Balance atlhe end ofthe year 2,170.39

- *
!

ttr -\

t

200.00

Note l0; Other Eouitv

t,4UMBAI



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE Llti,llTED
{Fo.lnerlv Hloh FlvAlrllo.3 Priv.le Limiled)

l{ote6 to con3olidatod finenci.l3t temenE fo. th6 year ended 31 ilarch 2023

Note 11: Borrowinos

On 31sl Augu3t. 2021 and 28th October 2021, the Company had j3sued 5,827 and

1.200 Non Convertible Debentur$ respeciively on private placement basis at an
assue price of Rs. 10 lakhs per debenture for an aggregate consideration of R3.

70,270.00 lakhs. The Oebentures of the Company are listad on Sombay Stock
Exchange.The Company had used the proceeds in accodance with the objecls
stated in the Placsment Document.

. ln L.khs

11, t D.t ik ot tG rms of repayment and securitl.s ptovided in respect of Deb€nturos .re .3 under:

Dudng the quarter ended December 31. 2022, the Company has redeemed NCDS

aEgregating tc Rs. 2700.05 lakhs by reducjng lhe fac€ value of NCD from Rs.

10,00,000 each to Rs.9,61.575 each.

Tho socuntie3 provlded b .3follo\r/3:
i) Pledge over '100% equity of ths lssuer.

ii) Pledge on 49% aquity of the Specilied Projects to be qeated by the lssuer (affer

transfer ol49% equity ofthe Specified Pmiec6 by DBL to the lssueo.

.r
:u

(iii) Pledge over investment in units of Shrem lnvlT and exclusive dedge has been
. created as per the terms of the tEnsaclion as sel out under relevant dause of the

. Debenlure Trust Oeed.

iv) . oool'.te gua6nte€/ Par.nt Undertaking lrom Dilip Buildcon Limited.

v) A,ci*ge by way of a deed of hypothecation on lhe (i) debt servic€ r63erve account to
bc maintained by the lssueri (ii) lhe present and tuture identrr€d bank accounts in

*hich all the Receivables of the lssuer shall b€ credited induding all future sale
proceeds to be eceived by lssuer upon sale ol the Specified Proiects either into the
private lnvestnent Trust Clnvlf) or lo any thard party, and (iii) Company lnlra Group

Loans availed by the Specified Projecb from the lssuer.

$.

o

o
?,

M9AI

31 M.rch 2022Particulars 3'l March 2023

67.569.95 70.270.00

67,569.95 70,270.00

25,369.00

25,369.00

Nonauraant
Secuied

(.) Non Conv.rdbl. D.bentur.!
1 3% 7027 Non converliblo D€benture of Rs.
9,61,576 each
(P.Y. 13% 7027 Non convertide Debentures of
Rs. 10,00,000 each)

Less: Currcot matudties of nor}cUr.ent borrowings

(b) T6rm loans
From Eanks

Total llon+urrant boirowinqs 67,569.95 95,639.00

1.12

Cu]ralrt
lrnaacurad
From Relaied Partia
Cunent maturilies of norFcurenl boflowinos

(a)

2.507.06

Total Curant borowino! 2 507.06 '1.12

7O,077.01 95,640.12

--



)lolGr to consolldated financial Btat€ments forth.year.nded 3l lrarch 2023

l{ote I l: Borrowinos

iii) The detaas of redemption ot principalvalue ofdebentur€s are as follows

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
lFormerlv Hioh Flv Airline3 Private Limitedl

11.2 RcpaymentSchedule

{i) Financial Y.ar 2022-23

Th. d6t lk of redemotion is .3 aollowsi
i) First Face value redemption shall be on the date falhng 39 months afte. the Deemed

Date ot Allotment and lhereafter each subsequent .edemplion shall be made at in
accotdance wilh the Redemption Schedule. However as per the relevani clause
menljoned in lhe Debenture lrust Deed,Company has the option to voluntarity
redeem the Deb€ntures and based on the same. lhe company has redeemed
debentures ahounting to Rs 2700-05 lakhs during the year.

ii) The debentures are to be redeemed at premium ol Rs. 33.523.90 lakhs atthe end of
lhe term and lhe company has made appropriate provisron in lhe books of account as
per effecijve interesl rate method mentjoned in relevant lndian Accounting StEndard.

11.3

11.4

Rs. ln Laths
Less than I year 'l -3 yea6 Beyofld 3 Y€ars

13% Non Converlible Debenturcs 16 892.50 50.677.45
Total 16,892.50 50,577.45

Finallcial Y6ar 2021.22

There is no pending satisfaction of charge in retation to borowings which is yet to be
regislered with Regislrar of Companies beyond the staturory pedod.

The Company has not qeated Debentu.e Redemption Reserve due to inadequacy of profits during the year

\\. cH/

I

q ACc

Sr.}{o. R€demption Dates
Amounl { ln INR

lakh!) Redemptjon (%)

1 28-Nov-24 8.446.25 12.50o/o
2 2&Fet25 8_445.25 12-50%
3 28-May-25 8.446.25 12.500/r

28-A\to-25 E.446.25 '12.50%
5 2&Nov-25 8.446.25 12.50%
6 28-Fe'26 8.446.25 12.50d/.

2A-May-26 8 446.25 12.50%
6 28-Aue26 I446-20 12.50%

Total 67.569.95 100.00%I

Particulals Less than 1 y€ar 1-3 years Beyond 3 Years
13% Non Convertible Debentu@s 17.567.50 52.702.50 70 270.O0
Total 17,567.50 52,702.50 70,270.00

[ 67,509.9s I

67,569.95 |



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerlv Hioh Flv Aidines Private Limited)

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

Note 12: Other Financial liabilities
(Rs. ln Lakhs)

12.1 Sundry Greditors ageing:

As at March 31 2023

As at March 3'l 2022

in Lakhs

Rs in Lakhs

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(i)
(iD

(iiD

(iv)
(v)
(vi)

Current
Accrued Expenses
Creditors for Expenses (Refer Note 12.1)

Sitting Fees Payable
Retention money
Witheld Money
Statutory Dues

2.26
31.67

0.58
18.38
34.69

3.41

97.63
3.28

0.10
20.28

Total 91.01 121.29

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
SR No.

Particulars
Less than 1

year 1-2 years
2-3

years
More than

3 years Total

(i) MSME
(ii) Others 31.67 31.67
(iiD Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
2-3

years
More than

3 Years
Total

SR No.
Particulars

Less than 1

year 1-2 years

(i) tvlstvlE
3.283.28(ii) Others

(iii) Disputed dues - l\ilsME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others

rl. crl

ACc
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Not6 to con3olid.t.d fln.nclalstrt hcnts tor the vearended 3l Mrrch 2023

!sEL!:.-Peil!!-trr

i. Amount rcognB.d in profit or loss

2023 2022

Ckenl hcome tar cha.oe/ (reve.sd)

Relalho to orhinalion and reveEal ol temoorary dinereices

(0.o4)

(742.01\

0.04

189.92)
lncom. tar .ryonse rcported in tho stat ment of prorn and loss 1742,05) tE9.EE)

ln La

The tabl6 bdow salaift Ihe difffis bet €€.) ti€ €rpected tax e4€nse, ar the lndian stai/ro.y rar rare of
26% (P.Y.. 26%) payade by corpdale entilies in lndaa on taxabl€ prol5ts under tax laE in lndia, and the
comparvs totallar s)eense for tre yea.

ii. R.conciliation ot offective tar rat.

(iii) oetered Tar

Not. 14: Other Currenr lirbiliri.s

2023 2l,22
Accounting profit / (lo*) b€for. tar
Applicable lncom. lar r.t.

Co.nputed e&ecred td epense

O€f€.ted T.x erp€flses accourned in books
Ot|€r!

t,39i.85
26.0O%

o42.O1l
(0.01)

(E,250.61)

26.OO.i

(89.92)
0.04

(E9.88)
lncome tax .rp.ns. reported in ihe 3tat6m.nt ot protit rnd toss 1742.051 (89.88)

ln Lakh

ln Lakh

Opening Balanc.
Aptll1,2022

Othor
Closing

Merch 31,

2023

Prou3ion for e)q€.tse alowed to. tax purpose oo parnont basis 89.92 84.45

Total Ocf6ned T.r Assets IAt 89.92 E8.85 1.08

D.t rItd T.x Lhbll[i..
Dif€r.rEe in .arryi{ vJue and iEr ba3e d lm/estmqrs canied ai Frir

(830.86) 830.86

Toral Dofer.d Tax LiabilirisalBl (630.86) 830.E6
oeterrcd tar {Assers)/Liabilities (Neo ta-Bl {89.92} 88.85 E30.86 829.76

3l irarch 2023 31 Match 2022

2.AA E./15

107.19
17.12

2.88 433.36

3l l{arch 2023 3t Ma.ch 2022

Pr@isim rd Cohpensaled Absences

Provision fo. Red4prion of Oebentres

gJ[t!!
Pro$dm for Cornp€nsat€d AbsercB

0.67
3.00

15,1't 1.50
15,t15.!7

0.18
0.43
0.61

5,555.06
5,555.06

t5,1t5.78 5,555.06

\\. cr,/
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Note l9: Costs of cqnslrqeltiatr

Rs. ln Lakhs

s. ln Lakhs

Rs. ln Lakhs

Rs. ln Lakhs

+

N\. cH/

o

t

Particu la rs Year ended
3l March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

(i)
(ii)
(iiD

Contrdcl Receipts
lnterest lncome on Balance Completion Cost
lnterest lncome on Financial Assets

4,172.O4
940.92
481.79

I 1,289.50

Total 5,594.76 11,289.50

Particulars Year ended
3l March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

(D

(ii)
(iiD

(iv)

71.92
0.85

20.47
19.51

20.90
1.12

22.01Total 112.7 5

Year ended
31 Match 2022

Year ended
3l March 2023

Particu la rs

55.82
0.94
3.43
1.58

(i)
(iD

(iii)
(iv)

Salary Expenses
Compensated Absences expense
Gratuity expense
Contribution to VBF Fund

51.75Total

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
3'l ltlarch 2023

Particu la rs

I 1,268.08
133.08
90.72
38.16

4,032.15
106.68

7.02
28.33

(i)
(iD

(iii)
(iv)

Subcontractor charges
lndependent Engineering Fees
Labour cess deduc{ed and taxes
lnsurance charges

4,171.18 11,530.05Total

IrlBAt

.Y

@
aFormerlv Hioh Flv Airlines Private Limitedl

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

Note l6 : Revenue from ODerations

N@-q@

lnterest lncome on deposit with banks
lnterest on lncome Tax refund
lnteresl lncome on lnvlT Units
Dividend lncome on lnvlT Units



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerlv Hioh Flv Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to consolidated financialsta ents for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note 20 ; Finance Costs

Note 2l : Other Expenses

\.

.ln Lakhs

Rs. ln Lakhs

IIBAI

ACC

Particulars Year ended
3'l March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

(D

(i0
(iii)
(iv)

Bank Charges
Provision for redemption premium on debentures
Unamortised Processing Charges
lnterest on term loan

5.26
9,556.44

197.32
1 ,7 51.17

Total 11,5't0.19 7,957.62

Particu la rs Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

0
(i0
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
(x)
(xii)

Audit Fees (Refer Note 24)
Miscellaneous expense
Fines and Penallies
Tour and Travel Expenses
Director sitting fees
Advertisement Expenses
Professional and Consultancy charges
Legal Fees
Professionaltax
lnterest on GST and TDS
Provision for Doubtul deposit (Refer Note 7 )

2.00

1.42
53.39
15.69
0.05
0.05
5.00

2.35
0.08
0.07
1.34
0.'10
0.84

23.',t6
't.92
0.03

44.57

Total 87.23 74,15

a

*

60.44
5,555.06

105.8'l
2,236.32



Rs. ln Lakhs

Note 22.1:

The Company "DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited" ('D|APL") along with its holding company 'Dilip Buildcon
Limited'("DBL") had executed a non-binding Term Sheet, with'Shrem lnvlT" (an infrastructure investment trust,
registered under lndian Trust Act 1882 with Securities and Exchange Board of lndia) on January 21, 2022, lor
transferring their investment in Equity Share Capital and Promote/s Unsecured Loan in respect of ten
subsidiaries (Hybrid Annuity Model ('HAM") projects). Equity lransfer lo Shrem lnvlT shall be mmpleted in a
progressive manner after the completion of the projects, subject to receipt of approvals from the respective project
lenders and NHAI. The mnsideration for the transfer of shares will be received in form of Units of the lnvit.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, 49y. Equity Share Capital of DBL Bellary Byrapura Highways Private
Limited, DBL Gorhar Khairatunda Highways Private Limited, DBL Bangalore Nidagatta Highways Pvt Ltd,DBL
Byrapura Challakere Highways Pvt Ltd and DBL Rewa Sidhi Highways Pvt Ltd was transferred to Shrem lnvlT
against which 48,28,702 Units at a price of Rs. 101.3'l per unit and 2,75,72,440 Units at a price of Rs. '104.70 per
unit in aggregate value of Rs. 33,760.25 lakhs were received as consideration and the Promote/s Unsecured
Loans was repaid by the respective companies by way of bank transfer. The Company has earned proft of Rs.
11,5'17.72 lakhs on all lhese lransaclions and disclosed as a part of 'exceptional item' in the statement of Profit
and Loss.

. ln Lakhs

ln Lakhs

'$. 
CH/

I
BAI

c

o

Yea. ended
3l March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

Particulars

Proflt on Sale of Associates (Refer note 22.1 ) 11,517.72

11,5',t7 .72Total

Year ended
31 March 2023

Particulars

3,301-25Remeasurement gain on revaluation of lnvestment in lnvlT

3,301.25Total

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 llla?ch 2022Particulars

3.75 2.35Statutory Audit
For other services

2.3s3.75Total

Parliculars Year ended
3l March 2022

b) Weighted average number of equity shares used as
denominator

c) Basic eaming per share of nominal value of Rs 10/- each

(4,427.19)

20,00,000

(15,612.47).

20,00,000

(221.361 (780.62)

M

+

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerlv Hioh Flv Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 3l March 2023

Note 22: Exceptional ltems

Note 23: Remeasurement qain on revaluation of lnvestment

Note 24: Remuneration to Auditors

Note 25: Earninq per Share (Basic and diluted)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
3l March 2023

a) Profit / (Loss) after Tax (Rs. ln Lakhs)
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The key objcctive of tne Company's capital management is to ensure thal it mainlains a staua capital structure with the focus on total
equity to uphold investor, cfedilor. and cuslomer confidence and to ensure future development of its business. The Company is focus€d on
maintaining a strong equity base to €nsure independen,:€. security. as well as financial fexibility for potentjal future bonowings, it required
wdhout mpacting the nsk profile ol the Company.

The Company's 3enior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management is supported by a
tinancial isk committee that advis€s on financial isks and the apprcpriate flnancial risk govemance framework for the Company. The
linancial dsk committee provides assurance to the Company'3 senior management that lhe Company's financjal risk activities are
gov.med by appropriatE policbs and proccdures and that financial risks are identili.d, measured and managed in accordance wilh the
Company's policies end risk objectiv8. All derivative aclivilies for dsk managemenl purpos* are cariod out by specialist team3 thet have
lhe appropriatc skills, experience and 3upe ision.ltislhe Compan/s policy thal no trading in derivatives for sp€culatve pueoses may be

Notes to consolidated financialstatem€nts torthe vear ended 31 March 2023

Not€ 27r Financial risk manaoemsnt policv and obiectives

i)MarkGt rkk

ii)Crodft risk

The ageing of trade receivaHes at$e reporting date that were noi impaired are as fottows

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
lFormerlv Hioh Flv Airline3 Privat. Llmitedl

Particula.s 3'l March 2023 31 March 2022
Less lhan 160 days 153.15 74.66

Market dsk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ltows of a financjal instrument will lluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Ma*et risk comprises three types of risk inlerest rate risk, curency dsk and other price risk such as .quity price risk and coomodity isk.
Fanancial instruments affecled by ma*el 6sk indude bonowings. trade and other payables, s€cunty deposh, lrade end other receivables,
deposils with banks.

Tho sensitiviiy analysis in the following sections relate to the posilion as at 3 1 March 2023. The sensitjviiy of the relevant income statement
item i3 the effect of the assumed changes in resf'ective mEftet risks. The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the
amount of net dobl and lhe ralio of fxed lo ioating interest rates of the debt are constant at 31 March 2023.

The analysis exclude the impacl of movemenls in markel variables on: the carying values of gratuity, other post reliremont oHigations and

Credii risk on lrade receivables is limiled as lhe customers of ine Company mainly consists of the Hdding Company having a slrong credit
wor(' ness. The provision mavix takes into account available extemal and inlemal credit risk factors such as credil ratjngs from credit
rating agencies, fnancialcondition, aoeing of accounts receivaHe and the Company's hastorical expedence for drsiomels.

ln

Financlal lnlt'umenta and crah d6posit3

Credit risk from bal.nces wilh banks and financial inslitutions is managed by the company in accordance with company's policy.
lnveshenb of surplus tunds are made only with approved counterpsrti$ and wilhin credit limils a*igned to each counterparty- Company
monitoB raling, ctedil sprcads and ftnancial slr€ngth of its counler parties. Company monitors mtings, c{€dit spread and financiat stength
of its collnler Parlhs. Based on oogoing assssment company adiust its oposur. to vadous count€rparties. Companys maximum
6ryosur. to credit risk for the components of bdance 3heet is th€ carrying amount as disdosed in Note O.

As at 31 March 2022 C.rrying amount I year 1-3 years Beyond 3 Years

Loans from Related Parties
Other f nancial liabilities

95,639.00
1.12

121 29
1.12

121.29

21.62A-54 74.O12.16 95,639.00
1.12

121.29

lii) Liquidity nsk

Liquidity isk i3 the risk that the Company may not be able to meet ib prasent .nd futi.e cash lioy/ and collaterat obligations without
incuning unaccePta e losses. Company's objcctive is to, at all lime maintain optimum teveis of liquidity to meet its cash and co aterat
requirem.nB Company dosely monitors its lhLridity position and deploys a robust cash management system. lt maintains ad€quate
$urc€s of financjng at optimised cost.

Thc t ble lummarises lhe hatuity pmlile of companys financial liab ities based on conaactual undiscounted payment3

As at 3l Ma.ch 2023 Carrying amount 1 year l-3 years Beyond 3 Y.arB

Bonowings
Loans from Related Parties
Olher f nancial liabilities

57,569.95
2.507.06

91.01
2.507.06

91.01

16.892.50 so 677.45 67,569.95
2,507.06

91.01

ln

cHlN\.
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DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
lForme.lv Hioh FlvAirlines Private Limit€dl

Notes to consolidated financial statements forthe vaar ended 31 March 2023

Set out bclow, is a comparlson by cla33 ofthe ceiyng amounB and falr value oftha Com pany'3 linancial lnsEumsnts
tiatara racognlsad in the linancial 3tatements.

ln Lak

95,640.12

The Company mainlains pdicies and procedures lo value fnaflcid assets orlinancial liabiliiies using the best and most
relevant data availablo. ln additon. the Company internally reviews valualions, including independent price vdidalion
for cealain iostrumenls. Fudher, in other inslances, Company relains andependent pricing vendors lo assisl in
corobo€ling lhe valuaiions ol certain inslruments,

The fair value ol lhe financial assets and liabililies are inc.luded at the amounl al which the inslrumenl lhal would be
received to sellan assel or paid lo transfer liabilily in an ordedy lransaclion belween markel panicipanls at lhe

Th. following methods and assumptions were usedto Etim.te the t irv.lues:
' The company has not disdosed lhe fair vdues of lrade payables, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents
because their caftying amounts are reasonable appronmalion of fan value.

Fair value of socurity deposils have been estimaied using a discountad cash iow model. The valuation requi€s
managemenllo make cedain assumplions aboul interesl rales, matudty pedod, credil dsk, forecaled cash nows.

Long-lem fixed-rate and vadablerate receivables/borrowings are evaiualed by the company based on parameters such

as inler.st .ales, individual creditworthinoss of lhe cuSomer and lhe isk characledslics of the fnanced proie<i. Based

on this evduation, allo anc$ are taken inlo account for lhe exp€cled credil losses of these receavables- As of repo ng

dale lh€ c€nytng amounts ol such receivables, nel of allowances are nol materially diferent from then cabulaled fair

CJnying vafue of loans from banks. olher non cunenl borrowings and other fnancial liabililies is estimated by
discounling fulure cash fows using lales curently availaue for deu on similar lems, credit risk and .emaining
matudties, The own non- perfomance.isk as at raporling date was assessed to be insignilicanl.

F.h v.lu. hl.r.rchy
The following table provides lhefair value measu.ement hierarchy of Companys assEls and liabilitjes grouped into Level

1 lo Level 3 as desc.ibed in signilicani accounling Policjes - Note 1. Furlher lable descnbes the vdualion lechniques
used, key anputs to valualions and quantitative information aboul significaol unobseruable inpuls for fak value

$. CH/

MU[4PAtI

eD ACco

Sr.
31 March 2023 31 March 2023

Particulars
31 $arch 2022 31 Marcn 2022

36,937.30 36,937.30

'16_72

11,662.85
16,073.06

{a}

(b)

(al

Finenchl As5et
C.nl,.d.t.monised cost

Loans given

othcr financial assel
Cash and cash equivalenl '

Maasured at felr value throurh Other
Compreh.nslv. lncome (FVOCI)

Financial Liabilities
Carried at emortised cost

Olher fi nancial liabilities
70.077.01

91 01
70,077.01

9t 01
95,640.12

12129

ETS

@o*
*

Note 28: Fairvalue offinancial ass€ts and liabilities

11,662.85
16,073.05

153.15
15.72

264.56

28.667.86
25,734.99

74.65
5.00

2,212.12

28,667.86
25.734.99

5.00

Carrvinq value



DBL INFRAASSETS PRIVATE LIMITEO
(Formertu Hiqh Flv Aidines Private Llmitedl

Notes to consolld.t d financial statements for the v6ar.nd6d 3'l l!tra.Eh 2023

Itloto 28: Felrv.lu. offinancial 656ts and ll.bllitie3

Quanlilativ. dlEclGures offair yalue m6asurem6nt hierarchy for assets .s at 3l |larch 2023:
ln

ln
Qu.ntltative d isclosuros of f.ir v.lue m easu.lment hierarchy for assots as at 31 lrarch 2022:

Sr.
No-

Fair Yelua msasurement usino Valuation
technique used

lnputs used
Lev€l 1 Lovcl 2 Level 3

{a) Financial assets mo.sured at-mo.tisod cost
(i)
(ai)

(iiD Oher fnancial asset

26,567.86
25,7U.99

5_00

Discounted cash

tb) Financlal liability measured at amortissd cost
(D

(ii)
Borao /ings
Olher financial liabiliiies

95,640.12
121.29

Discount.d cash

h\. clr

UMPAI
%

4

Acc;

F.ir valu€ m€asurement usinoSr.
No.

Particulars
Levcl 1 Level 2 LeYel 3

lnputs used

la) Financial assats measured at.mortisad cost
(i)

(iD

{iiD Other ,inancial assel

11,662.85

16,073.06
16.72

Dascounted cash

maturity
(b) Finencial asiets measured at Fair yalu€

tft oiugh Other Comprehen3ive lncome
(0 36 937.30

(cl Financial liability measur€d at amortised cost
Bonowings 70.077.01(i)

(ii) Olher financial liabililies 91.01

Discounted cash

matudly

I

* *



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerlv Hiqh Flv Airlines Private Limited)

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital ,

share premium and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the Company's capital
management is to maximise the shareholder value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in
economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest
bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents,
excluding discontinued operations.

Rs. in lakhs

Note 30: Segment Reporting
Segments have been identified in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) 108
on Operating Segments considering the risk or return profiles of the business. As required
under lnd AS 108, the Chief Operating Oecision Maker (CODM) evaluates the performance and
allocales resources based on analysis of various performance indicators. Accordingly,
information has been presented for the Group's operating segments and the company has
identified business segment as primary segment. The reportable segment is Construction and

Note 31: Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for
liabilities arising from financing activities as requi.ed by lnd AS 7 "Statement of Cash
Flows" is as under:

Rs. in Lakhs

ll. cHl 14

MUMBAI
%

.t.\z
{

Particulars 3l March 2023 31 March 2022
Loans and borrowings
Otherfinancial liability
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt
Equity
Capital and net debt
Gearinq ratio

70.o77.O1
91.01

264.56
69,903.46

(2O,574.33)
49,329.13

141.71%

95.640.12
121.29

2,212.42
93,548.99

(15,126.75)
74,422.25

't'19.29./.

Short Term BorrowingsParticulars Long Term Borrowings
Balance as on 31 March 2021

95,639.00 1.12Add : Cash inflow
Less : Cash outflow
Add : Non - Cash inflow
Less : Non - Cash outflow

1.'t2Balance as on 3l March 2022 95,639.00
14,'160.00Add : Cash inflow

2,700.05 '1'1,654.06Less : Cash oumow
Add : Non - Cash inflow
Less i Non - Cash oumow 25.369.00

2,507.0667,569.95Balance as on 31 March 2023

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

Note 29: Capital management



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note 32: Additional disclosures as perSchedule lll ofthe Companies Act2013

(i) CSR details for the current vear (F.Y.20 22-23\ and previous vear (F.Y. 2021-22\
The Holding Company and its associates does not fall under the criteria of applicability of
provisions of CSR, as per the clauses of Section 135 of lhe Companies Act, 2013. Thus, no
disclosure is given.

(iv) There is no benami property held by the Holding Company and its associates and no proceedings
have been initiated or pending against the Holding Company and its associates for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder.

(v) The Holding Company and its associates has complied with the number of layers prescribed under
clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017 .

(vii) There are no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts and has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax
Act, 1961 . Also, there are no previously unrecorded income and related assets.

A) The Holding company and its associates has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (lntermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the lntermediary shall -
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiariesi

B) The Holding Company and its associates has not received any fund from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or olherwise) that the company shall -
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
lvhatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

PAI

cHtrl

M

?

(iD The Holding Company and its associates has not entered in to any transactions during lhe year
with the companies struck off under seclion 248 of Companies Act, 20'13 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956.

(iiD During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Holding Company has granted loans to the
related parties , without specifying any terms of the repayment.

(vi) The Holding Company and its associates has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual
Currency during the financial year.

(viii) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:



OBL TNFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITEO
{Formerlv Hioh Flv Ai.lines Private Llmited)

Notes to consolidated financial statemenB for the vea, ended 31 March 2023

Note- 33 Disclosure oI Ratios:

Sr. No. Numerator Denominatol 31 ltlarch
2021

3l March
2022

Reasons fo,
change ln ratio by
.nore lhan 25%

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

0

s)

h)

D

i)

Cunent ratio (in times)

Debt-equity ralio (in
times)

Debl service coverage
ratio (in times)

Return on equity ralio

lnventory tumover.atio
(in times)

Trade receivables
tumover ratio (in times)

TEde payables lumover
ratio (in limes)

Net capital tumover latio
(in times)

Net proft ratio

Return on capital
employed

Current Assets

Long-tem
borowings and

short{erm
borowings

Profil before
interest and

exceptional items

Profit after lax

Revenue from
operations

Revenue ftom
opeErtions

Cost of
construclion.

change in

inventories and
other expenses

Revenue from
opeE(ions

Proft after tax

Profit afier tax
exduding fnance

costs

Current liabilitaes

Totalequity

Finance cost together with
principal repayments of long
term bonowings and cunent]
maturities of long{erm
borrowinos dudno the Dedod

Tolalequity

lnvenlories

Net trade receivables

Trade payables

Working capital (working
capital relers lo net cufienl
assels anived after reducing
current liabilities excluding
currcnt matudties of long
lem bonowings from
current assets)

Average capital employed
(capital employed refers to
total equity, long-term
bonowings and short-tem
bonowings)

6.46

-3,41

N/A

6.33%

36.53

0.39

2329%

25.88%

5.13

4.32

53.95%

N/A

151.21

0.45

-72.29%

4.25%

Due to decrease in
current Asset and
lncrease in Curent

rlities

Due to repayment
of bonowings and
decrease in
shareholders equity

Due lo decrease in
Profit afrer tax and
shareholders equity

Decrease in
revenue from
operation and
increase in Trade
Receivable

NA

NA

Due to lncrease in

Profit afrer tax

Due to Decrease in
profit afrer tax and
increase in average
capital employed

\1. ct,

I BA
..

t4utJ

Ratio

Revenue from operations

NA

NA



DBL INFRAISSETS PRIVATE LIMITEO

{Formerly High FlyAirlines Private Limired)

Notos to co.rsolidat€d financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Nota 34: Figu€s relaling lo previous years have been rcgbuped / rearranged whercver n€€essary,to coafirin to cur€nt period
p.esentalrcn,

Signalure lo notes to accounts

For and on behalf
For OEL lnfra AS.EI!

ct N7411OMP2O\/-
-,.2,a

Oilip Suryavan3hl
(Directoo

10PTC023673

1t^Mt-
S. M. Chitale
( Parlner)
M.No. 111363

oate i6/05/2023

,-fu=-:
DIN .

IvE''llE...-.--
(D €clo4

- 00039946

Secretary)nanc al officer)

Place: Bhopal
Date 16/05/2023

MUMBAI
s

\t'' cH/

For Mukund Chltale & Co.
Chartercd Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 106655W
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